
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD GWENER, 3 RHAGFYR 2021 
 
 

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC 
ADNODDAU 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU RHITH 
CYFARFOD O’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 
SYDD I’W GYNNAL AM 2.00 YP AR DYDD GWENER, 10FED 
RHAGFYR, 2021 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A 
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA ATODEDIG. 
 
 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 
 
 
 
 

Swyddog Democrataidd: Martin S. Davies 

Ffôn (Llinell Uniongyrchol): 01267 224059 

E-bost: MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 

 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 
13 AELOD 

 
 
 

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU – 6 AELOD 
   
1. Y Cynghorydd  Kim Broom 
2. Y Cynghorydd  Handel Davies 
3. Y Cynghorydd  Ken Howell  
4. Y Cynghorydd  Gareth John (Is-Gadeirydd) 
5. Y Cynghorydd  Carys Jones 
6. Y Cynghorydd Elwyn Williams  
   
   
GRŴP  LLAFUR – 3 AELOD 
   
1. Y Cynghorydd  Deryk Cundy 
2. Y Cynghorydd  Kevin Madge 
3. Y Cynghorydd  John Prosser 
   
   
GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL – 3 AELOD 
   
1. Y Cynghorydd  Sue Allen 
2. Y Cynghorydd Arwel Davies 
3. Y Cynghorydd  Giles Morgan (Cadeirydd) 

 

GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL NEWYDD – 1 AELOD 
   
1. Y Cynghorydd  Jeff Edmunds 

 

  
 



 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA   
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB.   

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS 
UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I 
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA.  

 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 
LAW).  

 

4. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 
2021/22.  

5 - 46 

5. ADRODDIAD CHWARTEROL YNGYLCH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS 
A DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH EBRILL 1AF 2021 I MEDI 30AIN 
2021.  

47 - 64 

6. BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR - 
ASESIAD DRAFFT O LESIANT LLEOL SIR GÂR.  

65 - 158 

7. COFNODION BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR 
GÂR - MEDI 2021.  

159 - 168 

8. DIWEDDARAF AM WEITHREDIADAU AC ATGYFEIRIADAU'R 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU.  

169 - 172 

9. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL.  173 - 182 

10. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A 
GYNHALIWYD AR 20FED HYDREF, 2021.  

183 - 190 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 
10 RHAGFYR 2021 

 

ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB  
CYFALAF A REFENIW 2021/22 

 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

 Bod y Pwyllgor Craffu yn derbyn yr Adroddiad Monitro Gyllideb Corfforaethol yr 
Awdurdod, Adroddiadau adrannol y Prif Weithredwr a’r Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol 
a’r Adroddiad Monitro Arbedion ac yn ystyried y sefyllfa cyllidebol. 

 

Y Rhesymau:  
 

 I ddatgan i’r Pwyllgor sefyllfa bresennol y gyllideb ar 31ain Awst 2021, ynglyn â 
2021/22. 

 

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:  
NAC OES 
 

 

Aelodau’r Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:  

 Cyng. Emlyn Dole (Arweinydd) 

 Cyng. Mair Stephens (Dirprwy Arweinydd) 

 Cyng. David Jenkins (Adnoddau) 

 Cyng. Ann Davies (Cymunedau a Materion Gwledig) 
 

 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol  
 
Enw Cyfarwyddwr y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Chris Moore 
 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Chris Moore 

Swydd: 
 
 
 
Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 
 

Rhif Ffôn / Cyfeiriad E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224120  

CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

  

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4

mailto:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk


 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10th DECEMBER 2021 
 

REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET  
MONITORING REPORT 2021/22 

  

The Financial Monitoring report is presented as follows: 
 
Revenue Budgets  
Appendix A – Authority Corporate Budget Monitoring Report 
Overall, the monitoring report forecasts an end of year underspend of £399k on the 
Authority’s net revenue budget with an underspend at departmental level of £869k. 
At a high level this is due to a combination of: 

- additional COVID19 related costs and lost income being largely refunded under the 
Welsh Government hardship scheme 
- some services still paused or impacted by lockdown measures and social distancing 
during Q1. 
- Proposed utilisation of some capital financing underspends, due to some significant 
pressure points on in-year capital project budgets, which will be considered as part of a 
separate report. 

 
Appendix B 
Chief Executive and Corporate Services detailed variances for information purposes 
only. 
 
Capital Budgets 
Appendix C – Corporate Capital Programme Monitoring 2021/22 
The current capital programme is based on information available as at the end of August 
2021. Appendix C shows a forecasted net spend of £76,230k compared with a working 
net budget of £130,893k, giving a -£54,663k variance.   The variance projected at this 
time relates mainly to delays with the Pentre Awel development and delays with some 
school developments because of restrictions associated with the COVID19 pandemic.  
 
The net budget includes the original HRA and General Fund capital programmes 
approved by Council on 3rd March and slippage from 2020/21.  Some of the budgets 
have also been amended to account for differences in actual grant allocations compared 
with the anticipated allocations at the time the programme was approved. 
 
Appendix D 
Details the main variances against agreed budgets for each department. 
Finally, a number of external circumstances have given rise to budget pressures on 
several projects, details of which are set out below together with a package of new monies 
and recommendations for virements and reprofiling of the five-capital programme to 
accommodate the works.   
A summary of the reprofiling is shown in the tables in Appendix Dii.  Note that the funding 
for these projects will be reviewed as part of the exercise to set and approve the new five 
programme 2022/23-2026/27. 
 
Virements to be approved: 
Leisure: Burry Port Harbour Walls additional budget of £97k to be funded by £47k from 
Pembrey Cycling Hub and £50k from capital maintenance. 
 

Tudalen 6



 

New Projects to note and approve for the current year: 
Private Housing: £41k - A programme of remedial works to private properties under the 
former Renewal Areas project. To be funded from capital receipts received in year from 
clawback of grants. 
 
Leisure: £150k – a new 100% grant received for the fit-out of the new museum of speed 
at Pendine from the Heritage Lottery Fund. 
£85.36k – a new 80% grant from the Welsh Government under its Brilliant Basics 
programme for improvements to the footpaths and landscaping at Pembrey Country 
Park.  £21.34k match funding to be proved a direct revenue financing contribution. 
 
Regeneration: Also, under the Brilliant Basics programme £127.8k for new carparking 
machines and beach wheelchairs at Pendine Sands.  Match funding of £31k to be 
provided by a virement from the strategic regeneration budget. 
£1,400k - A loan from the Town Centre Development fund will be let this year to the 
developers of the Linc project in Llanelli town centre.  This is an earmarked fund 
financed by Salix Borrowing that has already been received into the authority. 
 
Environment: £81k – A new project of urgent works to arrest the ongoing erosion of the 
riverbank at Pontyberem Park and to "retrain" the river.  Funding will be from 
departmental reserves. 
160k – Works to install a stone access ramp at the entrance to Llanelli Town Hall.  
Funding is set aside from a corporate reserve for this project. 
£163k – Additional funding is available for the ReFit Cymru programme to retro fit the 
authority’s estate with energy efficient measures. 
 
Slippage to future years of the five-year capital programme. 
Education: £12.4m of expenditure on the Modernising Education Provision programme 
to be slipped forward to future years.  This will update the programme to correlate it with 
the profiled draw down of Welsh Government 21st Century School grant.  The slippage 
will be built into future years of the five-year capital programme. 
   
Reprofiling of the 2021/22-2025/26 capital programme to accommodate additional 
pressures. 
 
Pendine Attractor – Following several complications on this project it is subject to 

additional budget costs.  A new contractor has also been engaged because the original 

contractor was placed into administration.   The increased costs can be attributed to the 

following: tender inflation (the previous contract was based on 2018 prices); shortage of 

materials and supply complications, additional fees owing to the prolonged duration and 

need for additional design input, additional scaffolding costs to facilitate roof remediation 

works.  The additional budget cost is forecast at £1.7m worst case scenario, however, 

some of this expenditure will be mitigated by insurance claims currently being pursued to 

recover the costs in due course. 

 

Trebeddrod Reservoir - £300k is needed to complete this project.  £1m was awarded 

as part of the approved budget for 2021/22 following an expression of interest for 

emergency works.  This was an indicative budget at that time.  Since the project has 

been worked up and tendered an additional £300k is required in 2022/23 for the works 

element of the project. 

 

Tudalen 7



 

Carmarthen Mart – The mart site is currently closed.  Before it can be relet to new 

tenants works to the estimated value of £750k need to be completed. – Works have 

already commenced on this project under the capital maintenance programme. 
 

Park Howard – There is a shortfall on the current project because of increasing 

contractor costs associated with COVID protocols and the deterioration of the building 

since the essential works were agreed. Emergency electrical works which sit outside the 

scope of the current project have become essential. These include the rewiring of the 

property and replacement of the fire alarm and CCTV. Further building and electrical 

works are necessary to relocate the public entrance to a wheelchair accessible route 

which will reduce fire risks identified in the main escape route. It is not cost effective or 

safe for the museum to reopen without this work being completed.  The cost is estimated 

at £310k.  

 

Recommendations for Funding: 

In 2021/22 £300k was awarded as emergency works for the realignment of the coastal 

part at Morfa Bacas, Llanelli.  The Environment Department has been successful if 

bidding for and receiving a WG grant for £256k to undertake the realignment works.  In 

addition to the £256k other others are estimated at £100k. 

 

Recommendation: Note and approve the £256k grant for inclusion in the capital 

programme and award £100k to fund other works.  Vire £200k to other projects. 

 

Amman Valley Leisure Centre – There is currently £1,042k underspend against this 

project in 2021/22 owing to the wider aspiration to develop, in conjunction with the 

Education Department, the masterplan further, to expand the leisure provision in the 

Amman Valley.  Given this wider master-planning expenditure on the project will 

inevitably be delayed in the short term and the funding can therefore be slipped. 

 

Recommendation: Slip £1,042k AVLC from 2021/22 to 2023/24.  This project will then 

be funded from funds currently assign as funding to the MEP programme. 

 

Recommendation: Slip £1042k of MEP funding, from the 2023/24 to 2024/25 and 

2025/26 so that it can be funded by the unallocated funds in five for the programme.    

This two-pronged slippage allows £1042k to be utilised in 2021/22. 

 

Recommendation: Introduce £1,200k of new funding to the capital programme funded 

by direct revenue financing/ funds set aside. 

 

Recommendation: To complete the reprofile it is proposed to slip £300k of DGF and 
318k of capital maintenance from 2022/23 to 2024/25.  This will allow it to be funded 
from the unallocated funding in 2024/25 while enabling the £618k to be reallocated in 
2022/23.  
 

  

Tudalen 8



 

St. David’s Park Block 3 
As part of update of the capital programme upgrade works to Block 3 St David’s Park, 
already approved, will be brought into programme.  Funded from reserves the works will 
be profiled over two years, £10k in 2021/22 and £1,290k in 2022/23, before the renewal 
of the lease to University of Swansea.   
 
Appendix E 
Details a full list of Chief Executive and Regeneration schemes, respectively. There are 
no Corporate Services schemes. 
 
Savings Report 
Appendix F 
The Savings Monitoring report. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
YES – A list of the main variances is 
attached to this report. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors 
/ Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated 
with this report. 
Signed:    Chris Moore 

 
Director of Corporate Services 
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE 
 

YES  
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

3. Finance   
 
Revenue 
Overall, the Authority is forecasting an underspend of £399k. 
Policy and Resources Services are projecting to be under the approved budget by £992k. 
 
Capital 
The capital programme shows an in-year variance of -£54,663k against the 2021/22 
approved budget. 
 
Savings Report 
The expectation is that at year end £281k of Managerial savings against a target of 
£451k are forecast to be delivered. There were no Policy savings put forward. 

  

Tudalen 9



 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
Signed:    Chris Moore 

 
 Director of Corporate Services 

1. Local Member(s) – N/A  
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE / CONSULTED? 
YES 

(Include any observations here) 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:  
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

2021/22 Budget 
 
2021-26 Capital 
Programme 

Corporate Services Department, County Hall, Carmarthen 
 
Online via corporate website – Minutes of County Council Meeting 
3rd March 2021 

 

Tudalen 10



APPENDIX A

Director and Designation Telephone No

C Moore, Director of Corporate Services 01267 224886

Table 1

Aug 2021 June 2021

Department

Controllable Controllable Net Non Total Controllable Controllable Net Non Total

Expenditure Income Controllable Net Expenditure Income Controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 31,841 -12,748 -2,578 16,515 34,271 -15,521 -2,578 16,172 -342 -219 

Communities 159,384 -64,865 13,586 108,104 162,704 -67,709 13,586 108,580 476 769

Corporate Services 77,079 -45,838 -1,686 29,556 76,271 -45,679 -1,686 28,906 -650 -590 

Education & Children (incl. Schools) 189,326 -33,026 23,360 179,660 208,421 -52,115 23,360 179,666 5 -5 

Environment 129,760 -80,964 12,819 61,616 140,886 -92,447 12,819 61,258 -358 -241 

Departmental Expenditure 587,390 -237,440 45,501 395,452 622,552 -273,471 45,500 394,582 -869 -285 

Capital Charges/Interest/Corporate -20,155 -20,355 -200 -750 

Levies and Contributions:

  Brecon Beacons National Park 152 152 0 0

  Mid & West Wales Fire & Rescue Authority 10,737 10,737 0 0

Net Expenditure 386,185 385,116 -1,069 -1,035 

Transfers to/from Departmental Reserves

   - Chief Executive 0 171 171 109

   - Corporate Services 0 325 325 295

   - Education & Children (incl Schools) 0 -5 -5 2

   - Environment 0 179 179 120

Net Budget 386,185 385,786 -399 -508 

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted for year to 31st March 2022

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

R Hemingway, Head of Financial Services Corporate Services

COUNCIL'S BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2021/22

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE SERVICES

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Author & Designation Directorate

T
udalen 11



POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 885 0 -845 40 724 -1 -845 -122 -163 -131 

People Management 4,499 -1,558 -2,619 322 5,442 -2,477 -2,619 346 24 11

ICT & Corporate Policy 5,999 -940 -4,780 279 6,008 -1,040 -4,780 187 -91 -71 

Admin and Law 4,495 -846 703 4,351 4,369 -982 703 4,090 -261 -252 

Marketing & Media 2,708 -696 -1,430 581 2,537 -596 -1,430 510 -71 -54 

Statutory Services 1,286 -310 281 1,258 1,903 -957 281 1,227 -31 8

Regeneration 11,969 -8,398 6,112 9,683 13,289 -9,466 6,112 9,934 251 271

GRAND TOTAL 31,841 -12,748 -2,578 16,515 34,271 -15,521 -2,578 16,172 -342 -219 

Chief Executive Department 

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 12



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a

r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive

Chief Executive-Chief Officer 237 0 210 0 -27 Savings on supplies & services -20 

Chief Executive Business Support Unit 649 0 514 -1 -136 

3 vacant posts not anticipating filling 2 this year & a staff member on maternity 

leave, £27k savings on supplies & services -111 

People Management 

TIC Team 233 -60 246 -60 13 1 x employee regraded with no funding 14

Business & Projects Support 262 0 240 0 -22 Savings on supplies and services -31 

Employee Well-being 775 -350 767 -306 36

Shortfall on budgeted external SLA income. Referrals have reduced from pre 

COVID19 levels. 46

Organisational Development 522 -39 506 -10 13

Underspend on supplies & services offset by training efficiency target not currently 

being met. 2

Employee Services – HR/Payroll 

Support 134 0 160 0 27 £18k graduate not funded, 2 x employees regraded with no funding £9k 26

DBS Checks 124 0 87 -2 -39 Review of DBS checks process & budget to be undertaken -39 

Other variances -4 -7 

ICT & Corporate Policy

Welsh Language 148 -11 125 -11 -23 

Vacant post will be filled once pending team review is completed. Delayed due to 

COVID19 but due to be completed imminently. -19 

Chief Executive-Policy 854 -31 790 -31 -64 

3 Vacant posts will be filled once pending team review is completed. Delayed due to 

COVID19 but due to be completed imminently. -52 

Other variances -4 -0 

Admin and Law

Democratic Services 1,886 -273 1,809 -318 -122 

Underspend on Members pay £59k & travelling costs £33k, along with an additional 

£30k of income for work undertaken for the HRA -120 

Democratic Services - Support 506 0 475 -36 -67 

Additional income for work undertaken for the Wales pension partnership (£21k), 

ERW (£7k) & PCC (£8k); Posts vacant for part of year, due to be filled from October, 

savings on supplies & services. -46 

Land Charges 136 -305 91 -294 -33 Savings on supplies & services -52 

Legal Services 1,898 -267 1,870 -260 -21 2 vacant posts during the year. Expected to be filled imminently. -17 

Central Mailing 45 0 28 -2 -19 Saving on franking machine leasing costs. -18 

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Chief Executive Department Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

T
udalen 13



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a

r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Chief Executive Department Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Marketing & Media

Marketing and Media 330 -167 471 -109 199

Overspend on salaries pending divisional realignment. Loss of income streams from 

external partners (e.g. ERW £80k). Looking at alternative potential partnership 

arrangements 107

Translation 566 -52 476 -52 -91 

Vacant post pending divisional realignment & number of staff members working 

reduced hours, savings on supplies & services -44 

Customer Services Centres 1,141 -353 1,018 -348 -119 A number of vacant posts in the team, due to fill from November. -71 

Yr Hwb, Rhydamman a Llanelli 191 -94 89 -53 -61 

3 vacant posts pending divisional realignment offset partly by less income due to 

decreased demand for desk rental space -46 

Statutory Services

Registrars 441 -307 507 -407 -35 

Additional income being generated compared to budget. Includes reimbursement for 

lost income due to COVID19 for quarter 1 2020/21 -9 

Coroners 372 0 408 0 36 Additional costs associated with jury inquest case. 37

Electoral Services - Staff 294 0 260 0 -33 Vacant post pending divisional realignment. -22 

Other variances 1 2

Regeneration & Property

Property 1,273 -88 1,176 -4 -12 

Vacant post due to be filled imminently, this partially offsets a shortfall in external 

income generated. -20 

Commercial Properties 33 -594 66 -476 152

General loss of income due to properties becoming vacant & no immediate prospect 

of re-letting 150

Provision Markets 596 -660 552 -487 128

General downturn in demand for stalls & consequent reduction in achievable rents. 

Partially offset by COVID19 income claim from WG for losses specifically 

attributable to COVID19 for quarter 1 2021/22. 166

Administrative Buildings 2,926 -777 2,753 -688 -84 

Additional essential maintenance planned during the year. Offset by savings on 

utilities, as staff continue to work from home -86 

Industrial Premises 485 -1,482 405 -1,483 -81 Occupancy levels are still high despite the pandemic. -92 

County Farms 76 -342 76 -329 14 Shortfall on rent due to market conditions. 16

Livestock Markets 61 -213 23 -38 137

No rental income for 24 months for Nant Y Ci as per the terms of the new 

agreement 139

Other variances -2 -3 

Grand Total -342 -219 

T
udalen 14



POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Services

Older People 63,848 -22,686 3,193 44,354 63,359 -23,199 3,193 43,353 -1,002 -1,218 

Physical Disabilities 8,056 -1,875 276 6,456 8,656 -2,578 276 6,354 -102 33

Learning Disabilities 40,527 -11,098 1,282 30,710 41,556 -10,775 1,282 32,063 1,353 1,482

Mental Health 10,405 -4,107 228 6,526 10,737 -4,104 228 6,860 334 401

Support 7,796 -6,623 1,133 2,306 7,827 -6,753 1,133 2,206 -100 -207 

Homes & Safer Communities

Public Protection 3,349 -1,248 532 2,633 3,661 -1,574 532 2,619 -14 7

Council Fund Housing 9,199 -7,996 1,021 2,224 10,868 -9,659 1,021 2,230 6 -2 

Leisure & Recreation

Leisure & Recreation 16,203 -9,230 5,922 12,895 16,040 -9,067 5,922 12,895 -0 273

GRAND TOTAL 159,384 -64,865 13,586 108,104 162,704 -67,709 13,586 108,580 476 769

Department for Communities

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 15



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Services

Older People

Older People - LA Homes 8,237 -3,891 8,105 -4,184 -425 

Reduced costs associated with fewer beds occupied plus additional income from 

Hardship Fund -536 

Older People - Private/ Vol Homes 26,705 -13,479 26,289 -13,479 -417 

Reduced costs associated with fewer beds occupied plus additional income from 

Hardship Fund -424 

Older People - Extra Care 788 0 861 0 73 Cwm Aur contract - savings proposals in previous years only partially delivered 72

Older People - Day Services 873 -82 718 -0 -74 Reduced provision of day services due to COVID19 restrictions 0

Older People - Private Day Services 276 0 75 0 -201 Reduced provision of day services due to COVID19 restrictions -200 

Older People - Other variances 42 -130 

Physical Disabilities

Phys Dis - Private/Vol Homes 1,693 -306 1,346 -306 -346 Demand led - Reduced use of residential respite care due to COVID19 -345 

Phys Dis - Group Homes/Supported 

Living 1,120 -170 1,212 -170 91

Rightsizing in Supported Living ongoing but delayed due to COVID19.  

Accommodation and Efficiency project plans for strategic longer term future 

accommodation options as well as current client group has experienced delays due 

to COVID19. 131

Phys Dis - Community Support 204 0 115 0 -90 Reduction in provision of community based services due to COVID19 restrictions -71 

Phys Dis - Direct Payments 2,809 -589 3,100 -589 291

Demand for Direct Payments increasing as a consequence of fewer alternatives 

during COVID19 restrictions e.g. community support and respite 317

Phys Dis - Other variances -48 1

Learning Disabilities

Learn Dis - Private/Vol Homes 10,767 -4,373 11,599 -4,373 832

Pressure remains on this budget as alternative provision is unavailable due to 

COVID19 restrictions.  Timelines for achieving savings have slipped as many of the 

initiatives require face to face contact with service users and providers. 869

Learn Dis - Direct Payments 3,916 -558 4,798 -558 882 Direct Payments increasing due to demand 872

Learn Dis -  Group Homes/Supported 

Living 11,171 -2,254 11,532 -2,254 361

Rightsizing in Supported Living ongoing but delayed due to COVID19.  

Accommodation and Efficiency project plans for strategic longer term future 

accommodation options as well as current client group has experienced delays due 

to COVID19. 376

Learn Dis - Day Services 2,515 -405 2,272 -292 -129 

Loss of income received, staff vacancies and client taxis not used.   Reduced 

premises and running costs as building based provision is reduced due to social 

distancing regulations and alternatives provided. -134 

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Department for Communities Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

T
udalen 16



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Department for Communities Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Learn Dis - Private Day Services 1,351 -82 881 -82 -470 

Day Services significantly reduced.   Where care has been reassessed and 

alternative has been provided, the additional cost is shown as an overspend in that 

budget. -479 

Learn Dis - Other variances -124 -22 

Mental Health

M Health -  Private/Vol Homes 6,203 -3,294 6,337 -3,294 135

Pressure remains on this budget as alternative provision is unavailable due to 

COVID19 restrictions.  Timelines for achieving savings have slipped as many of the 

initiatives require face to face contact with service users and providers. 198

M Health - Group Homes/Supported 

Living 1,265 -410 1,501 -410 236

Rightsizing in Supported Living ongoing but delayed due to COVID19.  

Accommodation and Efficiency project plans for strategic longer term future 

accommodation options as well as current client group has experienced delays due 

to COVID19. 242

M Health - Direct Payments 148 -44 260 -44 113 Direct Payments increasing due to demand 118

M Health - Community Support 952 -76 838 -76 -114 No payment to Hafal Dom care grant scheme -99 

M Health - Other variances -36 -57 

Support

Holding Acc-Transport 1,462 -1,735 1,459 -1,876 -145 Provision of additional services to support Hywel Dda -143 

Other Variances - Support 45 -64 

Homes & Safer Communities

Public Protection

Animal Safety 162 0 142 0 -20 Vacant Posts. -20 

Food Safety & Communicable 

Diseases 506 -38 527 -40 20 Overspend on Agency costs. 23

Other Variances -14 3

Council Fund Housing

Non HRA Re-Housing (Inc Chr) 168 0 162 0 -6 Part year Vacancy. -10 

Home Improvement (Non HRA) 726 -303 681 -251 6 Underachievement of income 6

Other Variances 6 3

T
udalen 17



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

In
c

o
m

e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r

Y
e

a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Department for Communities Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Leisure & Recreation

Pembrey Beach Kiosk 0 -42 0 -81 -40 Higher level of income achieved than budgeted -20 

St Clears Leisure Centre 151 -43 247 -42 96 Estimated cost of planned maintenance 19

Llandovery Swimming Pool 345 -239 301 -228 -33 In year staff vacancies 5

Actif Facilities 295 0 289 -22 -27 Capital recharge not budgeted £22k plus smaller expenditure underspends -7 

Actif health, fitness and dryside 199 -125 181 -145 -37 

Grant award not budgeted £20k, in year vacancy £10k plus numerous smaller 

underspends -0 

PEN RHOS 3G PITCH 16 -36 6 -42 -16 Higher level of income achieved than budgeted -6 

Pembrey Country Park Restaurant 422 -326 440 -328 16 small overspends forecast in a number of Supplies & Services areas 31

Carmarthen Museum, Abergwili. 182 -19 197 -5 29 Car park development costs not budgeted 33

Museum of speed, Pendine 86 -26 81 0 21 Museum Development consultancy fees not budgeted 25

Museums General 150 0 219 -18 50 Unable to fully achieve vacancy factor 38

Archives General 141 -3 169 -3 28 Part year effect of new Archive Assistant not budgeted 25

Arts General 16 0 0 0 -16 Vacant post being held pending restructure -16 

St Clears Craft Centre 107 -38 75 -34 -28 In year vacancies -13 

Laugharne Boathouse 151 -114 133 -107 -11 Forecast underspend on Materials for Resale due to COVID restrictions 14

Entertainment Centres General 468 -62 403 -48 -50 In year staff vacancies -7 

Other Variance - Leisure & Recreation 17 150

Grand Total 476 769

T
udalen 18



POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Services 13,576 -2,592 -856 10,128 13,089 -2,622 -856 9,611 -517 -551 

Revenues & Financial Compliance 63,504 -43,246 -830 19,428 63,182 -43,058 -830 19,295 -133 -39 

GRAND TOTAL 77,079 -45,838 -1,686 29,556 76,271 -45,679 -1,686 28,906 -650 -590 

Corporate Services Department 

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 19



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a

r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Services

Corporate Services Management 

Team 489 -129 532 -183 -12 Small savings on supplies and services -8 

Accountancy 1,748 -467 1,732 -477 -26 

£16k part year net vacancies, due to be filled during the year. £10k net additional 

external SLA income over budget. -37 

Treasury and Pension Investment 

Section 265 -195 244 -212 -38 

£21k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. £17k external SLA income 

from the WPP and other smaller underspends -55 

Grants and Technical 343 -111 304 -83 -11 Part year net vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -27 

Payments 557 -77 517 -75 -38 

£23k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. £15k savings on supplies 

and services -28 

Audit Fees 322 -93 281 -92 -40 A proportion of audit fees are chargeable directly to grants -42 

Bank Charges 68 0 49 0 -19 Charges reduced since introduction of new contract -29 

Miscellaneous Services 8,230 -122 7,815 -43 -335 £335k underspend on pre LGR pension costs. -328 

Other variances 3 3

Revenues & Financial Compliance

Procurement 611 -35 564 -34 -47 £47k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -30 

Audit 487 -19 462 -19 -26 £23k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -6 

Business Support Unit 142 0 118 0 -24 £24k part year vacancy, due to be filled during the year. -15 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 16,828 0 17,400 0 572

Increased demand since COVID19. WG contribution received for the shortfall in 

2020/21, but no confirmation to date whether that will be replicated in 2021/22 572

Rent Allowances 41,323 -41,540 40,961 -41,472 -294 

Predicted underspend based on anticipated payments due, anticipated 

reimbursement from DWP and recovery of overpayments. -294 

Rates Relief 328 0 195 0 -133 Low take-up anticipated in 2021/22 -138 

Housing Benefits Admin 1,684 -752 1,383 -624 -173 

A number of posts have been vacant during the year to date. A large number of staff 

members are currently on lower points of the salary scale but budgeted at the top of 

scale. (£269k). £39k saving on supplies and services costs anticipated. This is offset 

by the ongoing annual reduction in admin grant received from DWP. -105 

Other variances -8 -23 

Grand Total -650 -590 

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Corporate Services Department Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

T
udalen 20



POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools Delegated Budgets 141,173 -19,375 12 121,810 146,798 -19,375 12 127,435 5,625 6,116

Reserve utilisation 0 -5,625 -5,625 -5,625 -6,116 

Director & Strategic Management 2,214 0 -109 2,105 1,413 0 -109 1,304 -801 -911 

Education Services Division 7,004 -2,218 17,981 22,768 9,116 -4,102 17,981 22,995 228 179

Access to Education 3,097 -100 1,410 4,407 10,256 -7,117 1,410 4,549 142 146

School Improvement 2,494 -523 460 2,431 3,680 -1,693 460 2,447 16 41

Curriculum & Wellbeing 8,271 -4,102 895 5,063 9,183 -4,882 895 5,196 133 130

Children's Services 25,073 -6,707 2,711 21,077 27,975 -9,321 2,711 21,365 289 409

TOTAL excluding schools 48,153 -13,651 23,348 57,851 61,623 -27,115 23,348 57,856 5 -5 

GRAND TOTAL 189,326 -33,026 23,360 179,660 208,421 -52,115 23,360 179,666 5 -5 

 Department for Education & Children

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 21



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a

r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Director & Strategic Management

Director & Management Team 1,808 0 1,008 0 -800 

£390k previous year efficiency deferred to next year being held centrally to cover 

one off in year pressures.  £400k to be allocated to service pressures detailed below 

following DMT review -897 

Other variances -1 -14 

Education Services Division

School Redundancy & EVR 1,925 0 2,009 0 84

Forecast based on known redundancies year to date & £100k contingency for late 

notifications 82

Special Educational Needs 3,343 -1,299 5,357 -3,217 97

Staffing costs for additional class in attached unit £60k & additional statements 

approved £130k, partially funded by part year vacancies across the dept (-£100k) 51

Sensory Impairment 358 0 406 0 47

Increased staffing required to meet demand, recruitment to be progressed once 

funding identified 47

Other variances -1 -0 

Access to Education

School Modernisation 144 0 226 -37 45

£36k closed schools & £9k additional transport costs following school 

reorganisations 46

School Meals & Primary Free 

Breakfast Services 2,648 -100 9,632 -6,991 93 Primary school free breakfasts voluntary income shortfall. 90

Other variances 4 11

School Improvement

National Model for School 

Improvement 785 0 851 -40 26 One off costs re ERW £70k partially offset by 3 part year vacant posts 27

Other variances -10 14

Curriculum and Wellbeing

Music Services for Schools 1,036 -727 1,201 -850 41

Forecast SLA income not sufficient to cover projected staffing costs - vacant posts 

to be reviewed for affordability 43

Education Other Than At School 

(EOTAS) 2,268 -150 2,538 -358 62 Increase in demand resulting in additional staffing in PRUs 56

Other variances 30 31

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Department for Education & Children Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

T
udalen 22



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e
a

r Notes

F
o

re
c

a
s

te
d

 

V
a
ria

n
c
e

 fo
r

Y
e
a

r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Department for Education & Children Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Children's Services

Commissioning and Social Work 7,281 0 7,601 -171 149

Increased staffing costs forecast at this stage in the year (£394k) and overspend 

forecast on legal costs (£155k)- more external providers being used as a result of 

increased sickness levels internally and also complexity of cases, partially offset by 

part year vacancies across the dept (-£400k) 157

Corporate Parenting & Leaving Care 1,012 -135 1,209 -289 43 Additional staff costs forecast in relation to LAC Education Support Team 44

Fostering Services & Support 4,200 0 4,260 0 60

Additional costs forecast assuming more normal activity continues to resume 

following pandemic e.g. school transport costs 25k. Also increased enhancement 

boarding out costs forecast in August return re more complex placements £135k 

partially reduced by growth budget allocation of £100k 31

Adoption Services 551 0 827 -255 21 Overspend forecast mainly in relation to panel member costs 27

Respite Units 971 0 998 0 27

Additional costs forecast in relation to removal and repair of various play equipment 

at one of the units and also needing to purchase additional beds 15

Short Breaks and Direct Payments 714 -75 852 -152 61

Overspend mainly due to increased Direct Payments demand since change in 

legislation & further increase linked to COVID19 56

Family Aide Services 111 0 280 -208 -39 

Maximisation of grant income, partially offsetting overspends elsewhere within the 

division 6

School Safeguarding & Attendance 398 -120 702 -505 -81 

Maximisation of grant income, partially offsetting overspends elsewhere within the 

division 7

Other Variances 47 67

Grand Total 5 -5 

T
udalen 23



POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net Expenditure Income

Net non-

controllable Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Business Support & Performance 43 -93 130 79 87 -142 130 75 -4 3

Waste & Environmental Services 26,581 -4,590 1,364 23,355 27,282 -5,327 1,364 23,319 -36 2

Highways & Transportation 54,804 -32,768 10,372 32,407 53,702 -31,553 10,372 32,521 114 69

Property 43,698 -41,699 624 2,622 55,528 -53,833 624 2,318 -304 -214 

Planning 4,635 -1,813 330 3,152 4,287 -1,592 330 3,025 -127 -101 

GRAND TOTAL 129,760 -80,964 12,819 61,616 140,886 -92,447 12,819 61,258 -358 -241 

Environment Department 

Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Working Budget Forecasted Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

Forecasted 

Variance for 

Year

T
udalen 24



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c

o
m

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c

o
m

e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r 

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Business Support & Performance

Emergency Planning 76 0 63 0 -13 

LRF commitment covered by WG grant for 2021/22 (£11k); post not at top of 

budgeted scale point (£2k). -9 

Departmental - Core 48 0 63 0 15

H&Wellbeing posts not budgeted for (£11k); previous year efficiency not yet 

delivered. 20

Other variances -6 -8 

Waste & Environmental Services

Flood Defence & Land Drainage 608 -0 578 -1 -30 Two posts vacant for 1st qtr, filled July 2021 -31 

SAB - Sustainable Drainage approval 

Body Unit 127 -130 115 -55 63

Anticipated income not materialised - Dependent on number of submissions and 

market buoyancy of development projects 63

Green Waste Collection 555 -435 540 -462 -42 Increased customer base -35 

Other variances -27 4

Highways & Transportation

Section 106 Transport schemes 0 0 0 -14 -14 Income received in 2021/22 for expenditure incurred in previous years -14 

Traffic Management 581 -70 1,029 -530 -13 Net increase in Traffic Regulation orders income -13 

Car Parks 2,068 -3,134 2,113 -3,014 165 Volume of anticipated ticket sales does not match budgeted levels. 117

Nant y Ci Park & Ride 82 -34 120 -56 16 Reduced demand on the service 16

Road Safety 184 0 155 -0 -30 

Underspend due to vacant post being filled part way during the year and an officer 

working part time -31 

Other variances -11 -6 

Property 

Property Maintenance Operational 26,918 -28,233 35,154 -36,720 -251 

Increased income from internal recharges reflecting work projected during the year, 

included significant unexpected projects. -159 

Design Services CHS Works 4,068 -4,329 4,291 -4,602 -51 Increased income from internal recharges reflecting work projected during the year. -6 

Other variances -2 -49 

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Environment Department Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

T
udalen 25



-

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY 10th DECEMBER 2021

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c

o
m

e

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c

o
m

e

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r 

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a
s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c

e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Main Variances

Working Budget Forecasted

Environment Department Budget Monitoring - as at 31st August 2021

Planning

Planning Admin Account 352 -16 257 -16 -94 

Savings on supplies and services and vacant posts including the part-year effect of 

the Head of Service vacancy -97 

Building Regulations Trading - 

Chargeable 441 -492 417 -383 86 Shortfall in income anticipated 106

Policy-Development Planning 706 -2 570 -2 -136 

£60k underspend due to staff vacancies and £76k savings on consultants fees due 

to COVID19-related delay in the LDP process -129 

Development Management 1,693 -935 1,573 -758 57 Shortfall in income anticipated 30

Conservation 471 -13 481 -52 -29 Vacant post to be filled from November -20 

Other Variances -10 8

Grand Total -358 -241 

T
udalen 26



APPENDIX B

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive

Chief Executive-Chief Officer 237 0 -259 -23 210 0 -259 -49 -27 Savings on supplies & services -20 

Chief Executive Business Support Unit 649 0 -586 63 514 -1 -586 -73 -136 

3 vacant posts not anticipating filling 2 this year & a staff 

member on maternity leave, £27k savings on supplies & 

services -111 

Chief Executive Total 885 0 -845 40 724 -1 -845 -122 -163 -131 

People Management 

TIC Team 233 -60 -221 -47 246 -60 -221 -34 13 1 x employee regraded with no funding 14

Agile Working Project 0 0 0 0 64 -64 0 0 -0 0

SCWDP 672 -417 1 256 673 -417 1 256 -0 -0 

Practice Placements 70 -67 0 3 74 -72 0 2 -1 -1 

Health & Social Care Induction Training 

Pilot 0 0 0 0 94 -95 0 -0 -0 -1 

Business & Projects Support 262 0 -275 -14 240 0 -275 -36 -22 Savings on supplies & services -31 

Payroll 634 -357 -285 -8 609 -339 -285 -16 -7 -7 

People Services – HR 1,073 -268 -786 19 1,063 -254 -786 23 4 2

Employee Well-being 775 -350 -423 2 767 -306 -423 38 36

Shortfall on budgeted external SLA income. Referrals have 

reduced from pre COVID19 levels. 46

Organisational Development 522 -39 -498 -15 506 -10 -498 -2 13

Underspend on supplies & services offset by training efficiency 

target not currently being met. 2

Employee Services – HR/Payroll Support 134 0 -132 2 160 0 -132 29 27

£18k graduate not funded, 2 x employees regraded with no 

funding £9k 26

School Staff Absence Scheme 0 0 0 0 859 -859 0 -0 -0 -0 

DBS Checks 124 0 0 124 87 -2 0 85 -39 Review of DBS checks process & budget to be undertaken -39 

People Management Total 4,499 -1,558 -2,619 322 5,442 -2,477 -2,619 346 24 11

ICT & Corporate Policy

Information Technology 4,987 -899 -3,841 247 4,973 -889 -3,841 243 -4 -0 

Welsh Language 148 -11 -153 -16 125 -11 -153 -39 -23 

Vacant post will be filled once pending team review is 

completed. Delayed due to COVID19 but due to be completed 

imminently. -19 

Chief Executive-Policy 854 -31 -786 37 790 -31 -786 -27 -64 

3 Vacant posts will be filled once pending team review is 

completed. Delayed due to COVID19 but due to be completed 

imminently. -52 

Public Services Board 5 0 0 6 5 -0 0 6 0 -0 

Food Procurement Project 0 0 0 0 7 -7 0 0 0 0

Armed Forces Covenant Scheme 0 0 0 0 85 -85 0 0 0 0

Armed Forces Veterans Hub 0 0 0 0 19 -19 0 -0 -0 -0 

Armed Forces and Rememberance 5 0 0 5 5 0 0 5 0 0

Total ICT & Corporate Policy 5,999 -940 -4,780 279 6,008 -1,040 -4,780 187 -91 -71 

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 31st August 2021 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

T
udalen 27



APPENDIX B

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 31st August 2021 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

Admin and Law

Democratic Services 1,886 -273 2,372 3,984 1,809 -318 2,372 3,863 -122 

Underspend on Members pay £59k & travelling costs £33k, 

along with an additional £30k of income for work undertaken for 

the HRA -120 

Democratic Services - Support 506 0 -494 12 475 -36 -494 -55 -67 

Additional income for work undertaken for the Wales pension 

partnership (£21k), ERW (£7k) & PCC (£8k); Posts vacant for 

part of year, due to be filled from October, savings on supplies 

& services. -46 

Corporate Management 0 0 296 296 0 0 296 296 0 0

Civic Ceremonial 24 0 21 45 24 0 21 45 0 -0 

Land Charges 136 -305 20 -150 91 -294 20 -183 -33 Savings on supplies & services -52 

Police and Crime Commissioner 0 0 0 0 72 -72 0 0 0 0

Legal Services 1,898 -267 -1,511 120 1,870 -260 -1,511 99 -21 2 vacant posts during the year. Expected to be filled imminently. -17 

Central Mailing 45 0 1 45 28 -2 1 27 -19 Saving on franking machine leasing costs. -18 

Admin and Law Total 4,495 -846 703 4,351 4,369 -982 703 4,090 -261 -252 

Marketing & Media

Marketing and Media 330 -167 -213 -50 471 -109 -213 149 199

Overspend on salaries pending divisional realignment. Loss of 

income streams from external partners (e.g. ERW £80k). 

Looking at alternative potential partnership arrangements 107

Translation 566 -52 -502 13 476 -52 -502 -78 -91 

Vacant post pending divisional realignment & number of staff 

members working reduced hours, savings on supplies & 

services -44 

Customer Services Centres 1,141 -353 -762 26 1,018 -348 -762 -93 -119 A number of vacant posts in the team, due to fill from November -71 

Yr Hwb, Rhydamman a Llanelli 191 -94 8 106 89 -53 8 45 -61 

3 vacant posts pending divisional realignment offset partly by 

less income due to decreased demand for desk rental space -46 

Marketing Tourism Development 370 0 18 388 373 -4 18 388 -0 -0 

Visitor Information 61 -5 18 74 61 -5 18 74 0 0

Events 49 -26 2 25 49 -26 2 25 0 0

Total Marketing & Media 2,708 -696 -1,430 581 2,537 -596 -1,430 510 -71 -54 

Statutory Services

Elections-County Council 9 0 129 138 3 0 129 131 -7 -7 

Elections-Community Council 0 0 0 0 6 -6 0 -0 -0 0

Elections-Police & Crime Commissioner 0 0 0 0 332 -332 0 -0 -0 1

Elections-Welsh Government 0 0 0 0 190 -190 0 0 0 0

Registration Of Electors 170 -2 243 410 196 -22 243 417 7 8

Registrars 441 -307 192 326 507 -407 192 292 -35 

Additional income being generated compared to budget. 

Includes reimbursement for lost income due to COVID19 for 

quarter 1 2020/21 -9 

Coroners 372 0 8 380 408 0 8 417 36 Additional costs associated with jury inquest case. 37

Electoral Services - Staff 294 0 -291 3 260 0 -291 -30 -33 Vacant post pending divisional realignment. -22 

Statutory Services Total 1,286 -310 281 1,258 1,903 -957 281 1,227 -31 8

T
udalen 28



APPENDIX B

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 31st August 2021 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

Regeneration & Property

Regeneration Management 295 0 38 333 293 0 38 331 -2 -3 

Parry Thomas Centre 32 -32 11 11 33 -33 11 11 -0 -0 

Betws wind farm community fund 87 -87 1 1 87 -87 1 1 -0 -0 

Welfare Rights & Citizen's Advice 166 0 2 168 167 0 2 168 0 0

Llanelli Coast Joint Venture 150 -150 5 5 150 -150 5 5 -0 -0 

The Beacon 154 -141 50 64 137 -123 50 64 -0 0

Business Grants 0 0 0 0 31 -31 0 0 0 0Carmarthenshire Business Flood Relief 

Support Programme 0 0 0 0 8 -8 0 0 0 0

BREXIT (WLGA Grant) 0 0 0 0 48 -48 0 0 0 0

Econ Dev-Rural Carmarthen, Ammanford, 

Town Centres 389 0 7,988 8,377 389 0 7,988 8,377 0 0

Econ Dev-Llanelli, C Hands, 

Coastal,Business, Inf & Ent 452 0 89 541 452 0 89 541 -0 0

Community Development and External 

Funding 521 0 89 610 521 0 89 610 -0 -0 

Coronavirus 0 0 0 0 6 -6 0 0 0 0

Food Hubs & Banks - Covid 19 0 0 0 0 70 -70 0 0 0 0

Kickstart DWP Employment Scheme 0 0 0 0 2,100 -2,100 0 -0 -0 0

Cockle Harvesters 0 0 0 0 169 -169 0 0 0 0

Wellness 25 0 19 44 25 0 19 44 -0 0

City Deal 0 0 24 24 -0 0 24 24 -0 0

Property 1,273 -88 -1,251 -66 1,176 -4 -1,251 -78 -12 

Vacant post due to be filled imminently, this partially offsets a 

shortfall in external income generated. -20 

Commercial Properties 33 -594 537 -25 66 -476 537 127 152

General loss of income due to properties becoming vacant & no 

immediate prospect of re-letting 150

Provision Markets 596 -660 373 309 552 -487 373 437 128

General downturn in demand for stalls & consequent reduction 

in achievable rents. Partially offset by COVID19 income claim 

from WG for losses specifically attributable to COVID19 for 

quarter 1 2021/22. 166

Renewable Energy Fund 0 -52 0 -52 0 -52 0 -52 -0 -0 

Net Zero Carbon Plan 127 0 0 127 127 0 0 127 0 -0 

Operational Depots 337 0 -324 13 337 0 -324 14 0 0

Administrative Buildings 2,926 -777 -3,189 -1,040 2,753 -688 -3,189 -1,124 -84 

Additional essential maintenance planned during the year. 

Offset by savings on utilities, as staff continue to work from 

home -86 

Industrial Premises 485 -1,482 899 -98 405 -1,483 899 -179 -81 Occupancy levels are still high despite the pandemic. -92 

County Farms 76 -342 425 158 76 -329 425 172 14 Shortfall on rent due to market conditions. 16

Livestock Markets 61 -213 3 -149 23 -38 3 -11 137

No rental income for 24 months for Nant Y Ci as per the terms 

of the new agreement 139

Externally Funded Schemes 3,784 -3,781 323 326 3,088 -3,085 323 326 0 -0 

Regeneration & Property Total 11,969 -8,398 6,112 9,683 13,289 -9,466 6,112 9,934 251 271

T
udalen 29



APPENDIX B

Aug 2021 June 2021

Division

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re

In
c
o

m
e

N
e
t n

o
n

-

c
o

n
tro

lla
b

le

N
e
t

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r Notes

F
o

re
c
a

s
te

d
 

V
a
ria

n
c
e
 fo

r

Y
e
a
r

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Report 
Budget Monitoring as at 31st August 2021 - Detail Monitoring

Working Budget Forecasted

Financial Services

Corporate Services Management Team 489 -129 -422 -62 532 -183 -422 -74 -12 Small savings on supplies and services -8 

Accountancy 1,748 -467 -1,253 28 1,732 -477 -1,253 2 -26 

£16k part year net vacancies, due to be filled during the year. 

£10k net additional external SLA income over budget. -37 

Treasury and Pension Investment Section 265 -195 -70 0 244 -212 -70 -38 -38 

£21k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. £17k 

external SLA income from the WPP and other smaller 

underspends -55 

Grants and Technical 343 -111 -218 14 304 -83 -218 3 -11 Part year net vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -27 

Payroll Control 91 0 -88 3 94 0 -88 6 3 3

Payments 557 -77 -457 23 517 -75 -457 -15 -38 

£23k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. £15k 

savings on supplies and services -28 

Pensions 1,378 -1,314 -58 6 1,448 -1,384 -58 6 0 0

Audit Fees 322 -93 4 233 281 -92 4 194 -40 A proportion of audit fees are chargeable directly to grants -42 

Bank Charges 68 0 1 69 49 0 1 50 -19 Charges reduced since introduction of new contract -29 

Wales Pension Partnership 84 -84 0 0 74 -74 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous Services 8,230 -122 1,705 9,813 7,815 -43 1,705 9,478 -335 £335k underspend on pre LGR pension costs. -328 

Financial Services Total 13,576 -2,592 -856 10,128 13,089 -2,622 -856 9,611 -517 -551 

Revenues & Financial Compliance

Procurement 611 -35 -551 26 564 -34 -551 -21 -47 £47k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -30 

Audit 487 -19 -463 5 462 -19 -463 -21 -26 £23k part year vacancies, due to be filled during the year. -6 

Risk Management 152 -0 -149 2 160 -0 -149 11 9 -4 

Business Support Unit 142 0 -81 61 118 0 -81 37 -24 £24k part year vacancy, due to be filled during the year. -15 

Corporate Services Training 60 0 -59 1 51 0 -59 -9 -9 -9 

Local Taxation 949 -763 528 713 953 -776 528 705 -8 -8 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 16,828 0 78 16,906 17,400 0 78 17,478 572

Increased demand since COVID19. WG contribution received 

for the shortfall in 2020/21, but no confirmation to date whether 

that will be replicated in 2021/22 572

Rent Allowances 41,323 -41,540 1,495 1,278 40,961 -41,472 1,495 985 -294 

Predicted underspend based on anticipated payments due, 

anticipated reimbursement from DWP and recovery of 

overpayments. -294 

Rates Relief 328 0 5 333 195 0 5 200 -133 Low take-up anticipated in 2021/22 -138 

Housing Benefits Admin 1,684 -752 -877 55 1,383 -624 -877 -118 -173 

A number of posts have been vacant during the year to date. A 

large number of staff members are currently on lower points of 

the salary scale but budgeted at the top of scale. (£269k). £39k 

saving on supplies and services costs anticipated. This is offset 

by the ongoing annual reduction in admin grant received from 

DWP. -105 

Revenues 939 -136 -755 48 935 -132 -755 48 -0 0

Revenues & Financial Compliance Total 63,504 -43,246 -830 19,428 63,182 -43,058 -830 19,295 -133 -39 

TOTAL FOR POLICY & RESOURCES 108,920 -58,586 -4,264 46,071 110,542 -61,200 -4,264 45,078 -992 -809 

T
udalen 30



APPENDIX C

Working Budget Forecasted

Department

Expenditure 

£'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Expenditure 

£'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Public Housing 39,655 -8,652 31,003 36,883 -9,522 27,362 -3,641

Private Housing 3,871 -270 3,601 2,673 -270 2,403 -1,198

Leisure 5,343 -1,261 4,082 2,734 -358 2,376 -1,707

Social Care 511 -114 397 465 -135 330 -67

Environment 36,686 -13,640 23,046 30,637 -14,624 16,013 -7,033

Education & Children 27,082 -6,693 20,389 20,066 -6,460 13,606 -6,784

Chief Executive 2,533 0 2,533 1,636 -179 1,457 -1,076

Regeneration 88,736 -42,894 45,842 19,838 -7,153 12,685 -33,157

TOTAL 204,417 -73,523 130,893 114,932 -38,702 76,230 -54,663

Capital Programme 2021/22

Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for August 2021

Variance 

for Year

T
udalen 31



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX D

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

COMMUNITIES

 - Public Housing 39,655 -8,652 31,003 36,883 -9,522 27,362 -3,641

Sewage Treatment Works Upgrading 184 0 184 104 0 104 -80

Telecare Upgrade 0 0 0 5 0 5 5

Internal and External Works (Property) 16,239 0 16,239 17,344 -150 17,194 956 Acceleration of voids work.

Environmental Works (Housing Services) 380 0 380 577 0 577 197
Garages investment programme accelerated. Overspend will be covered 

within department. 

Adaptations and Equalities Works (Building Services) 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 0

Programme Delivery and Strategy 896 0 896 777 0 777 -119 Owing to staffing vacancies.

Housing Development Programme 20,257 -827 19,429 16,376 -1,547 14,829 -4,600 Ongoing impact of COVID19.  

CX Housing Assets - Asset Management System 200 0 200 200 0 200 0

MRA and IHP Grants Income 0 -7,825 -7,825 0 -7,825 -7,825 0

 - Private Housing 3,871 -270 3,601 2,673 -270 2,403 -1,198

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 3,033 0 3,033 1,835 0 1,835 -1,198

Current commitment on approved DFGs is £800k. We have a further 400 

enquiries that are yet to be assessed. Therefore, despite there being the 

demand to spend the full budget because of the available resources and 

contractor capacity the likely spend will be lower.

Renewal Area: Remedial Works 41 0 41 41 0 41 0 Remedial Works to be funded from Capital Receipts.

ENABLE - Adaptations to Support Independent Living 270 -270 0 270 -270 0 0

Travellers Sites 27 0 27 27 0 27 0

Empty Properties Initiatives 500 0 500 500 0 500 0

 - Leisure 5,343 -1,261 4,082 2,734 -358 2,376 -1,707

Carmarthen Leisure Centre & Track 0 0 0 37 0 37 37 Retentions to be covered from within the capital programme.

Amman Valley Leisure Centre Masterplan 1,052 0 1,052 11 0 11 -1,041 Slip to 2022/23. Project in development with Education Department.

Oriel Myrddin Redevelopment 1,887 -1,000 887 200 -100 100 -787
Contractor to be appointed by December 2021. Projected start on site 

March 2022.  Project to slip into 2022/23.

Burry Port Harbour Walls 668 0 668 765 0 765 97
Overspend to be covered by underspends on other projects within the 

department. 

Libraries & Museums 1,112 -150 962 1,185 -150 1,035 73
Overspend to be covered by underspends on other projects within the 

department. 

Country Parks 624 -111 513 536 -108 428 -86

Majority of underspend is on the Pembrey Country Park Cycling Hub and 

will be utilised to cover spend on other projects, mainly the new BMX pump 

track. 

 - Social Care 511 -114 397 465 -135 330 -67 Slip to 2022/23.

Capital Programme 2021/22
Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for August 2021 - Main Variances

Forecasted V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

T
udalen 33



APPENDIX D

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

Capital Programme 2021/22
Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for August 2021 - Main Variances

Forecasted V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

ENVIRONMENT 36,686 -13,640 23,046 30,637 -14,624 16,013 -7,033

Highways & Infrastructure 29,775 -13,640 16,135 23,120 -14,444 8,676 -7,460

Main slippages into 2022/23: -£6,250k fleet replacement because social 

welfare buses, refuse and highways lorries are not being replaced in this 

financial year, -£452k Trebeddrod Reservoir, -£300k Cross Hands 

Economic Link Road, -£214k Works at Nantycaws delayed because of fire.

Property 6,911 0 6,911 7,517 -180 7,337 427
£750k Works are Carmarthen Mart, Nantyci.  -£249k slippage on works at 

County Hall.

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 27,082 -6,693 20,389 20,066 -6,460 13,606 -6,784

21stC - Band A - Design Stage Schemes 1,363 0 1,363 232 0 232 -1,131
Delays with acquiring land for Laugharne Primary School. Rhydygors and 

Dewi Sant on budget for 2021/22.

21stC - Band A - WG FBC Approved Schemes 6,753 0 6,753 5,732 0 5,732 -1,020 Delivery profiles need to be amended.  Slip to future years.

21stC - Band B - Design Stage Schemes 5,274 0 5,274 2,716 0 2,716 -2,557

Some projects have been reprofiled and slipped forward to future years.  

This reflects the grant funding expected from the Welsh Government this 

year.  Further slippage on non grant funded projects.

21stC - Band B - WG FBC Approved Schemes 7,524 0 7,524 4,636 0 4,636 -2,888

Some projects have been reprofiled and slipped forward to future years.  

This reflects the grant funding expected from the Welsh Government this 

year.  Further slippage on non grant funded projects.

Education - Equality Act Works 0 0 0 250 0 250 250 Ongoing commitment to Equalities Act works.

Dyffryn Taff Bus Bays 41 0 41 176 0 176 135
Urgent and critical works to be undertaken from within the existing capital 

budget. Works will continue into 2022/23.

Infant Class Size 799 -799 0 893 -843 50 50 Covered by MEP match funding.

Welsh Language Immersion Centre (Maes y Gwendraeth) 688 -364 324 947 -377 569 245

Initial project specification changed to allow cost effective creation of 

additional classrooms.  Additional Costs to be covered by savings on other 

projects.

School Buildings - Education Capital Maintenance Grants 3,174 0 3,174 3,174 0 3,174 0

Funded from displaced 2020/21monies. Grant received in 2020/21 but 

authorised by WG to be applied in other areas of capital to displace funds 

to deliver the education maintenance project in 2021/22.

Flying Start Capital Expansion Programme 675 -675 0 645 -645 0 0

Childcare Offer Places 620 -620 0 360 -360 0 0

Play Opportunities Grant Projects 50 0 50 50 0 50 0
Purchase of van funded from displaced 2020/21 monies.  Grant received in 

2020/21 and applied in other areas.

MEP Income - 21
st

 Century Schools Grant 0 -4,234 -4,234 0 -4,234 -4,234 0
Income stream have been reprofiled to reflect funding expected from the 

Welsh Government this year.  Balance slipped forward to future years.

Other Projects with Minor Variances 121 0 121 254 0 254 133 Other minor projects, retentions and provision expenditure.

T
udalen 34



APPENDIX D

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

Capital Programme 2021/22
Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for August 2021 - Main Variances

Forecasted V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 2,533 0 2,533 1,636 -179 1,457 -1,076

IT Strategy Developments 1,219 0 1,219 782 -179 603 -616
Slippage of -£74k, and -£39k against broadband hardware and invoice 

infrastructure, respectively.

Purchase of Grillo Site, Burry Port 414 0 414 0 0 0 -414 Saving against the purchase of the site.

Glanamman Industrial Estate Redevelopment 818 0 818 773 0 773 -45

Rural Estates 67 0 67 67 0 67 0

Other Projects with Minor Variances 15 0 15 15 0 15 0 Retentions works on St David's Park buildings.

REGENERATION 88,736 -42,894 45,842 19,838 -7,153 12,685 -33,157

Swansea Bay City Region Projects 52,815 -32,021 20,794 2,393 -2,193 200 -20,594
Contractor expected to be appointed September 2021. Majority of spend 

expected in 2022/23. Budget needs to be slipped 2022/23.

County Wide Regeneration Funds 8,504 -3,000 5,504 5,025 -3,000 2,025 -3,479
Delays on grants to third parties due to impact of COVID19 on project 

delivery timeframes.  Project to slip to 2022/23.

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Phase 1 652 0 652 652 0 652 0

Cross Hands East Phase 2 513 -202 311 513 -202 311 0

Cross Hands East Plot 3 Development 7,335 -3,970 3,366 354 -186 168 -3,198 Construction expected to start in February 2022.  Slip to 2022/23.

Valleys Town Centres 513 -122 391 68 -68 0 -391

Carmarthen Town Regeneration - Jacksons Lane 97 0 97 53 -33 21 -76

Carmarthen Old Town Quarter 713 0 713 150 0 150 -563 Detailed design to follow Greening Infrastructure masterplan outcome.

Pendine Iconic International Visitors Destination 2,846 -130 2,716 2,209 -130 2,079 -637

Currently in discussion with insurance company regarding storm damage 

claim, and in discussion with new contractor following contractor failure. 

Works will continue into the next financial year.

Llandeilo Market Hall 3,586 -821 2,764 2,255 -821 1,434 -1,331 Completion expected September 2022.

Ammanford Regeneration Development Fund 299 0 299 192 0 192 -106
Progress delays on third party schemes due to COVID19. Slipped to 

2022/23.

Ammanford Town Centre Regeneration 21 0 21 21 0 21 0

Town Centre  Loan Scheme 1,400 0 1,400 1,400 0 1,400 0
Loan will be let this financial year for the Linc Llanelli.  Funding already 

received from the Welsh Government. 

T
udalen 35



APPENDIX D

Working Budget

DEPARTMENT/SCHEMES

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
e

n
d

itu
re

 

£
'0

0
0

In
c

o
m

e
        

£
'0

0
0

N
e

t             

£
'0

0
0 Comment

Capital Programme 2021/22
Capital Budget Monitoring - Report for August 2021 - Main Variances

Forecasted V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

TRI Strategic Projects - Market Street North 1,811 0 1,811 61 0 61 -1,750
Project called in by Welsh Government planning division.  Likely to slip to 

future years.

TRI Strategic Projects - Former YMCA Building, Stepney 

Street, Llanelli
1,868 0 1,868 3,169 0 3,169 1,301 Funded by Strategic TRI allocation.

Transforming Town Centres Strategic Projects 4,226 -2,500 1,726 85 0 85 -1,640
Slip to 2022/23. External funding will be drawn down in advance of CCC 

monies that will be required in future years. 

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives 500 0 500 100 0 100 -400
Slip to 2022/23.  Grant Programme to be launched in the second half of the 

financial year.

Ten Towns Growth Plan 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800

Other Projects 37 -128 -91 937 -520 417 508 Llanelli JV and Levelling up Carmarthen West and South Pembs bid.

TOTAL 204,417 -73,523 130,893 114,932 -38,702 76,230 -54,663

T
udalen 36



APPENDIX Dii

Capital Reprofile to accommodate additional pressures

Project 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25 Total

Pendine Attractor 1,700,000 1,700,000

Trebeddrod 300,000 300,000

Carmarthen Mart 750,000 750,000

Park Howard 310,000 310,000

St David's Park Block 3 10,000 1,290,000 1,300,000

Total 1,070,000 3,290,000 0 0 0 4,360,000

Financed by: 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2024/25 Total

DRF from MRP Capital Charge 

underspend
New Funding -18,000 -1,182,000 -1,200,000 

Amman Valley Leisure Centre Slippage -1,042,000 1,042,000 0

MEP match funding (Llandeilo 

CP School)
Slippage -1,042,000 346,000 696,000 0

Morfa Bacas Virement -200,000 -200,000 

Capital Mentenance Slippage -318,000 318,000 0

DFG's Slippage -300,000 300,000 0

St. David's Park Reserve New Funding -10,000 -1,290,000 -1,300,000 

Unallocated funding in 5 year 

programme
-964,000 -696,000 -1,660,000 -2,430,000 

Balance of unallocated 

funds in 2025/26.

-1,070,000 -3,290,000 0 0 0 -4,360,000 

T
udalen 37



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX E

Chief Executive

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

Target Date 

for 

Completion

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Acquisitions of County Buildings 414 0 414 0 0 0 -414

Purchase of Grillo Site, Burry Port Complete 414 0 414 0 0 0 -414 Funding no longer needed for purchase.

Agile Working 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Agile Working Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

St David's Park Complete 15 0 15 15 0 15 0

St David's Block 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 0

St David's Park - Building 14 13 0 13 13 0 13 0

IT Strategy Developments Ongoing 1,219 0 1,219 782 -179 603 -616 Slip to 2022/23.

Digital Transformation 380 0 380 257 0 257 -123

PSBA Network 86 0 86 28 0 28 -58 Waiting for outcome of new ways of working.

Strategic Digital Initiatives 100 0 100 100 0 100 0

Corporate Wifi Environment/Meraki Broadband Hardware 224 0 224 43 0 43 -181

Data Centre and Power 14 0 14 14 0 14 0

Voice Infrastructure 139 0 139 125 0 125 -14

HWB for Schools Infrastructure Grant 226 0 226 165 -179 -14 -240

Information Security and Governance 50 0 50 50 0 50 0

Rural Estates Capital Schemes Mar'22 67 0 67 67 0 67 0

House Improvements - Farms 67 0 67 67 0 67 0

Other Outbuildings Improvements - Farms 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Industrial Redevelopments Mar'22 818 0 818 773 0 773 -45 Retention.  Slip to 2022/23.

Glanamman Industrial Estate Redevelopment 818 0 818 773 0 773 -45

NET BUDGET 2,533 0 2,533 1,636 -179 1,457 -1,076

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For August 2021

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

Comment

T
udalen 39



APPENDIX E

Regeneration

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

Target Date 

for 

Completion

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Llanelli JV General Ongoing 47 0 47 47 0 47 0 Funded by JV Capital Receipts.

Llanelli JV General 47 0 47 47 0 47 0

Swansea Bay City Region Projects Ongoing 52,815 -32,021 20,794 2,393 -2,193 200 -20,594 Slip to 2022/23

SB City Region - Pentre Awel - Phase 1 25,521 -25,521 0 2,140 -2,193 -53 -53

SB City Region - Digital Project 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SB City Region - Yr Egin 2,000 -2,000 0 0 0 0 0 Slip to 2022/23

SB City Region - Pentre Awel - Ecology Pre-

Commencement Work
0 0 0 53 0 53 53

Swansea Bay City Region - Llanelli Leisure Centre - New 

Development
18,436 -4,500 13,936 200 0 200 -13,736 Slip to 2022/23

Swansea Bay City Region - Older People's 

Accommodation (including Llanelli Area)
6,858 0 6,858 0 0 0 -6,858 Slip to 2022/23

County Wide Regeneration Funds Ongoing 8,504 -3,000 5,504 5,025 -3,000 2,025 -3,479

Transformation Strategy Project Fund 3,601 -3,000 601 3,601 -3,000 601 0

Rural Enterprise Fund 1,868 0 1,868 337 0 337 -1,531

Transformation Commercial Property Development Fund 3,035 0 3,035 1,087 0 1,087 -1,948

Llanelli, Cross Hands & Coastal Belt Area 8,623 -4,294 4,329 1,641 -510 1,131 -3,198 Slip to 2022/23.

Cross Hands East Strategic Employment Site Ph1 Complete 652 0 652 652 0 652 0

Cross Hands East Plot 3 Development Dec '22 7,335 -3,970 3,366 354 -186 168 -3,198 Slip to 2022/23. Contribution expected to start in Feb '22.

Cross Hands East Phase 2 Dec '22 513 -202 311 513 -202 311 0

Valleys Town Centres - Digital Infrastructure Mar '22 97 -97 0 97 -97 0 0

Valleys Town Centres - Feasibility Studies Mar '22 25 -25 0 25 -25 0 0

Ammanford, Carmarthen & Rural Area 7,644 -1,079 6,565 5,079 -1,112 3,967 -2,599

Ammanford Town Centre Regeneration 21 0 21 21 0 21 0

Carmarthen Town Regeneration - Jacksons Lane (81086) 21 0 21 53 -33 21 0

Pendine Iconic International Visitors Destination Ongoing 2,846 -130 2,716 2,209 -130 2,079 -637 New contractor on site. Awaiting revised programme costs.

Brilliant Basics Fund - Sustainable and Accessible 

Pendine Sands
Mar '22 160 -128 32 160 -128 32 0 New project.

Carmarthen Western Gateway & Wetlands (RCDF 

81192)
Complete 0 0 0 1 0 1 1

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For August 2021

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

Comment

T
udalen 40



APPENDIX E

Regeneration

Working Budget Forecasted

Scheme

Target Date 

for 

Completion

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Expendit

ure £'000

Income        

£'000

Net             

£'000

Capital Budget Monitoring - Scrutiny Report For August 2021

V
a

ria
n

c
e

 fo
r 

Y
e

a
r £

'0
0

0

Comment

Ammanford Regeneration Development Fund Ongoing 299 0 299 192 0 192 -106
Delays because of changes to state aid rules following 

Brexit.

Llandeilo Market Hall Dec '22 3,586 -821 2,764 2,255 -821 1,434 -1,331 Slip to 2022/23.

Levelling Up Carmarthen West and South Pembs Ongoing 0 0 0 38 0 38 38 Funding to be identified.

Carmarthen Old Town Quarter Regeneration Ongoing 713 0 713 150 0 150 -563
Slip to future years. Detailed design following masterplan 

outcome.

Town Centre  Loan Scheme Mar'22 1,400 0 1,400 1,400 0 1,400 0

Town Centre  Loan Scheme (TCLS) - Y Linc Llanelli 1,400 0 1,400 1,400 0 1,400 0 Loan will be let this financial year for the Linc Llanelli.

Transforming Towns Strategic Projects (formerly 8,202 -2,500 5,702 3,953 -338 3,615 -2,087 Slip to 2022/23,

TRI Strategic Projects - Market Street North Ongoing 1,811 0 1,811 61 0 61 -1,750
Called in by Welsh Government planning division.  Likely to 

slip to future years.

TRI Strategic Projects - Former YMCA Building, Stepney 

Street, Llanelli
Ongoing 1,868 0 1,868 3,169 0 3,169 1,301

TRI Strategic Projects - Llanelli Goods Shed / Community 

Hub
Nov '22 98 0 98 150 -50 100 2

Transforming Towns  (Green Infrastructure & Biodiversity) 

- Llanelli Library Green Wall
0 0 0 5 -5 0 0

Transforming Towns  (Green Infrastructure & Biodiversity) 

- Carregamman Car Park Enhancements
199 0 199 199 0 199 0

TRI Strategic Projects Ongoing 4,226 -2,500 1,726 85 0 85 -1,640
Slip to 2022/23.  To be applied against projects in the 

Transforming Towns Programme.

Transforming Towns - 8-12 Vaughan Street Acquisition 0 0 0 284 -284 0 0

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives Ongoing 500 0 500 100 0 100 -400
Slip to 2022/23.  Grant Programme to be launched in the 

second half of the financial year.

Business Support for Renewable Energy Initiatives 500 0 500 100 0 100 -400

Ten Town Growth Plan Ongoing 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800 Slip to 2022/23.

Ten Town Growth Plan 1,000 0 1,000 200 0 200 -800

NET BUDGET 88,736 -42,894 45,842 19,838 -7,153 12,685 -33,157

T
udalen 41



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



APPENDIX F

1 Summary position as at : 31st August 2021 £170 k variance from delivery target

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 451 281 170

Corporate Services 0 0 0

451 281 170

2 Analysis of delivery against target for managerial and policy decisions:

Managerial £170 k

Policy £0 k

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

Target Delivered Variance Target Delivered Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Chief Executive 451 281 170 0 0 0

Corporate Services 0 0 0 0 0 0

451 281 170 0 0 0

3 Appendix F (i) : Savings proposals not on target

Appendix F (ii) : Savings proposals on target (for information)

MANAGERIAL POLICY

2021/22  Savings Monitoring Report

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

10th December 2021

2021/22 Savings monitoring

Off delivery target

ahead of target

page 1 of 3

Tudalen 43



APPENDIX F (i) - SAVINGS NOT ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2020/21 

Budget

2021/22 

Proposed

2021/22 

Delivered

2021/22 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - Off Target

Chief Executive

People Management division 2,947
Includes Payroll, People Services, Organisational Development, Employee 

Wellbeing , HR Development Team, Business and Project Support
88 0 88

£40k service review/regional working; £20k income generation provision of People 

Management services; £28k review of training provision (part 1). 
Service, income and Training reviews yet to be completed

Regeneration division 3,475

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, 

employability, grant funding and skills support and advice. We also deliver physical 

regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea Bay City Deal 

Pentre Awel Life Science and Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The 

Regeneration Division is responsible for the management of  land assets (those 

within the economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, taking a strategic 

commercial view to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s economic 

development needs.  The Division is also responsible for the delivery of the 

Council’s Net Zero Carbon agenda. 

20 0 20 Income Generation

Scope to generate additional income is reduced during the 

pandemic. It is anticipated however that this will be delivered as 

normality returns.

 

Marketing & Media 2,015
Business Unit comprising of translation, marketing and tourism, contact centres, 

customer services, press and communications.
62 0 62

Relocation of Tourist Information Centre from Castle House. Reduction in supplies 

& services.

Savings will potentially be incorporated into current service 

review which is nearing completion.

Chief Executive Total 170 0 170

Policy - Off Target

NOTHING TO REPORT

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION REASON FOR VARIANCE

page 2 of 3

T
udalen 44



APPENDIX F (ii) - SAVINGS ON TARGET

DEPARTMENT
2020/21 

Budget

2021/22 

Proposed

2021/22 

Delivered

2021/22 

Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Managerial - On Target

Chief Executive

Chief Executive 259 Office of the Chief Executive and secretariat 4 4 0 Reduction in supplies / postages

Information Technology 3,915

ICT Services underpins and contributes towards all that the Council delivers both internally as an organisation and externally 

to service users and communities, independently or in partnership. It is a vital function providing innovative opportunities for 

improving services and achieving our priorities in an efficient and effective way. IT Services is pivotal as an enabler of 

change and a vehicle for driving forward transformational improvement to all services. As we continually strive to deliver our 

solutions in an efficient manner and in line with our key Digital Strategies (Digital Transformation Strategy, Digital Technology 

Strategy, Digital Schools Strategy) our major savings in future years however will have to be found from our staffing budget.  

The work the service does significantly contribute to financial savings being delivered from revenue budgets held across the 

Authority by other service areas. 

121 121 0

£73k This will be delivered by further streamlining the software solutions used and 

reduction in annual maintenance costs through exploiting the Microsoft Enterprise 

Agreement.  £27k -  Further improvements work will be carried out by ICT Services on 

the Corporate network that should deliver increased revenue savings.  £21k - further 

reduction in operations costs.

Corporate Policy 818

Policy & Partnership team deal with Council policy (in relation to Welsh language, sustainable development, equalities and 

tackling poverty), consultation & engagement with elected members and public, data & information, and public service 

collaboration through the Local Service Board (to be a statutory requirement) and related strategic partnerships

39 39 0
£20k reduction in grants; £3k reduction in postages; £16k this will be delivered by 

taking a different approach to the way projects are undertaken within Corporate Policy.

Regeneration division 3,475

Regeneration is a key priority for the council. The Division provides Business, employability, grant funding and skills support 

and advice. We also deliver physical regeneration projects throughout the county, including the Swansea Bay City Deal 

Pentre Awel Life Science and Wellness Village planned for Delta Lakes.  The Regeneration Division is responsible for the 

management of  land assets (those within the economic/commercial portfolio) of the Council, taking a strategic commercial 

view to ensure the portfolio is managed to meet the Council’s economic development needs.  The Division is also 

responsible for the delivery of the Council’s Net Zero Carbon agenda. 

98 98 0 Service review.

Statutory services / Coroners 384

The Coroner is an independent Judicial Officer and discharges his duties in accordance with the Coroners Act 1988. He has 

a duty to investigate deaths reported to him where he has reasonable cause to suspect that the death was violent, unnatural 

or of unknown cause or which occurs in prison.

19 19 0 Reduction in staffing costs 

Chief Executive Total 281 281 0

Policy - On Target

NOTHING TO REPORT

FACT FILE EFFICIENCY DESCRIPTION

page 3 of 3

T
udalen 45



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 
 

 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 

10fed RHAGFYR 2021  
 

ADRODDIAD CHWARTEROL YNGYLCH RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS A 
DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH EBRILL 1AF 2021 I MEDI 30AIN 2021 

 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 

Gofynnir i aelodau sicrhau eu bod yn fodlon bod y gweithgareddau a gyfeiriwyd atynt yn yr 
adroddiad atodedig, yn gyson â gofynion Polisi a Strategaeth Rheoli’r Trysorlys a gafodd ei 
gymeradwyo gan y Cyngor Llawn ar y 3 Mawrth 2021. 

  

Y Rhesymau:  

Mae gan y Pwyllgor rôl allweddol ynghylch craffu ar swyddogaeth Rheoli’r Trysorlys o fewn yr 
Awdurdod.  

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: OES 

 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad  OES     

  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad  OES        

            
Aelodau’r Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: Cyng. David Jenkins (Adnoddau) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Gwasanaeth 
Corfforaethol 

Cyfarwyddwr: Chris Moore 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Anthony 
Parnell 

 

Swyddi: 

 

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 
 

Rheolwr Pensiwn a 
Buddsodiadau Gyllidol 

 

 

Rhif ffôn: 01267 224120; E-
bost:CMoore@sirgar.gov.uk 

Rhif ffôn: 01267 224180; E-
bost:AParnell@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

 

Tudalen 47

Eitem Rhif  5



 
 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10/12/2021 

Mid-Year Treasury Management and Prudential Indicator Report 

 1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 

 

 
1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
      To provide members with an update on the treasury management activities from 1st    

      April 2021 to 30th September 2021. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

IMPLICATIONS 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report: 

Signed:        C Moore                                                           Director          

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES NONE YES  NONE  NONE NONE  NONE  

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

       Within the requirements of the Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Report     

        2021-2022 
 
3.  Finance 
     The authority’s investments during the period returned an average return of 0.05%,    
     exceeding the 7-day LIBID rate.  
 
     Gross interest earned on investments for the period amounted to £38k and       
     interest paid on loans was £8.46m. 
 
     The Authority did not breach any of its Prudential Indicators during the period.   
     At the period end the investments included £0.52m of KSF investments.  
 
     The Administrators have confirmed that the twenty third dividend received on 19th August 2021 
     will be the final dividend paid.                      

 

Tudalen 48



 
 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below 

Signed:       C Moore                                                           Director 

 

1. Local Member(s) – N/A 

2. Community / Town Council – N/A 

3. Relevant Partners – N/A 

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

Title of Document File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

CIPFA  
Treasury Management 
in the Public Services 
- Code of Practice 
Revised 2017 

 County Hall, Carmarthen 

 

 
 

Tudalen 49



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE:  10TH DECEMBER 2021 

 
MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND 

PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR REPORT 
 

1ST April 2021 – 30TH September 2021 
 
 

A. TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
The Treasury Management Policy and Strategy for 2021-2022 was approved by Council on 
3rd March 2021. Section B 1.1(2) stated that Treasury Management activity reports would be 
made during the year. This report outlines the Treasury Management activities in the period 
1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 and satisfies the reporting requirement stated above.  
 
There are no policy changes to the Treasury Management Policy and Strategy for this 
period and this report updates the position in light of the updated economic position and 
budgetary changes already approved. 
 
  
2. Economic update  
 
The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) kept Bank Rate unchanged at 
0.10% on 24th September 2021. It also made no changes to its programme of quantitative 
easing, which is due to finish by the end of the year at £895bn.  
 
The MPC indicated that there was a concern that more recent increases in prices, 
particularly the increases in gas and electricity prices in October and due again next April, 
are likely to lead to faster and higher inflation expectations and underlying wage growth.  
This will in turn increase the risk that price pressures would prove more persistent next 
year than previously expected. To emphasise its concern about inflationary pressures the 
MPC reaffirmed its commitment to the 2% inflation target in its statement. 
 
Financial markets are now pricing in a first increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% in 
February 2022, but this looks ambitious as the MPC has stated that it wants to see what 
happens to the economy, and particularly to employment once furlough ends at the end 
of September.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. Prospects for Interest Rates 

Tudalen 51



 
Based on the average projection from a number of sources we can expect the trend in base 
rates over the year to be as follows: 
 

 Dec 2021 Mar 2022 Jun 2022 Sep 2022 Dec 2022 

Base Rate % 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 

              (Source: LINK Asset Services) 
             
 
Link Asset Services undertook its last review of interest rate forecasts on 29th September 
2021 after the Quarterly Inflation Report of the Bank of England and Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) meeting 24th September 2021, where the decision was made to keep the 
Bank Rate unchanged at 0.10%. 
 
 
The revised projection based on this review: 
 

 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

 % % % 

Revised Average Bank Rate 0.10 0.25 0.56 

Original Average Bank Rate 
(TM Strategy 2021-22) 

0.10 0.10 0.10 

 
 
 
 
 
4. Investments 
 
One of the primary activities of the Treasury Management operation is the investment of 
surplus cash for which the Authority is responsible. As well as the Authority’s own cash the 
County Council invests School Trust Funds and other Funds, with any interest derived from 
these investments being passed over to the relevant Fund.    
 
All surplus money is invested daily on the London Money Markets. The security of the 
investments is the main priority; appropriate liquidity should be maintained and returns on 
the investments a final consideration. It continues to be difficult to invest these funds as the 
market continues to be insecure and as a consequence, appropriate counterparties are 
limited. 
 
The total investments at 1st April 2021 and 30th September 2021 analysed between Banks, 
Building Societies, Local Authorities and Money Market Funds, are shown in the following 
table:  
 
 
 

Tudalen 52



Call and Fixed Call and Fixed 

notice Term Total notice Term Total 

£m £m £m % £m £m £m %

Banks 34.50 7.53 42.03 36 34.50 7.52 42.02 32

Building Societies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 7.00 7.00 5

Money Market Funds 25.00 0.00 25.00 22 25.00 0.00 25.00 20

DMADF (DMO) 0.00 36.50 36.50 31 0.00 50.00 50.00 38

Local Authorities 0.00 13.00 13.00 11 0.00 7.00 7.00 5

TOTAL 59.50 57.03 116.53 100 59.50 71.52 131.02 100

Investments 01.04.21 30.09.21

 
 
Investments on call are available immediately on demand. Fixed term investments are fixed 
to a maturity date. The current longest investment is maturing on 26th August 2022.  
 
The £131.02m includes £0.52m (12.97% of original claim) invested in Kaupthing Singer 
and Friedlander which has been reduced from the original £4.0m by distributions.  
 
During the period the total investments made by the Council and repaid to the Council 
(turnover) amounted to £706.51m. This averaged approximately £27.02m per week or 
£3.86m per day. A summary of turnover is shown below: 
 

£m

116.53

360.50

477.03

(346.01)

131.02

Sub Total

Investments Repaid during the period

Total Investments 30th September 2021

Total Investments 1st April 2021

Investments made during the period

 
 
 
The main aims of the Treasury Management Strategy is to appropriately manage the cash 
flows of the Council, the required short term and longer term market transactions and the 
risks associated with this activity. Lending on the money market secures an optimum rate of 
return and also allows for diversification of investments and hence reduction of risk, which is 
of paramount importance in today’s financial markets.  
 
The benchmark return for the London money market is the “7-day LIBID rate”. For 2021-
2022 the Council has compared its performance against this “7-day LIBID rate”. For the 
period under review the average “7-day LIBID rate” was -0.08% whereas the actual rate the 
Council earned was 0.05%, an out performance of 0.13%.  
 
 
 

Tudalen 53



This outperformance can be quantified to £104k additional interest earned compared to the 
“7-day LIBID rate”. 
 
The gross interest earned on investments for the period amounted to £38k. 
 
The income from investments is used by the Authority to reduce the net overall costs to the 
Council taxpayer.  

 

5. Update on the investments with Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander (KSF) 

 
As at 30th September 2021 the sum of £3.48m principal and £213k interest had been 
received from the Administrators, which equates to 87.03% of the claim submitted.  
 
The Administrators have confirmed that the twenty third dividend received on 19th August 
2021 will be the final dividend paid. 
 
 
 
6. Security, Liquidity and Yield (SLY) 
  
Within the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2021-2022, the Council’s 
investment priorities are: 

 Security of Capital 

 Liquidity and 

 Yield 

The Council aims to achieve the optimum return (yield) on investments commensurate with 
proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is considered 
appropriate to keep investments short term to cover short term cash flow needs but also to 
seek out value available in significantly higher rates in periods up to 12 months with highly 
credit rated financial institutions.  
 
Attached at Appendix 1 is the Investment Summary and Top 10 Counterparty Holdings 
(excluding the £0.52m in KSF) as at 30th September 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 54



7. Borrowing 

One of the methods used to fund capital expenditure is long term borrowing. The principal 
lender for Local Authorities is the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  

 
Under the Treasury Management Strategy, it was agreed to borrow when interest rates are 
at their most advantageous.  
 
The total loans at 1st April 2021 and 30th September 2021 are shown in the following table: 
 
 

Balance at Balance at Net Increase/

01.04.21 30.09.21 (Net Decrease) 

£m £m £m

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 403.38 397.61 (5.77)

Market Loan 3.00 3.00 0.00

Salix, Invest to Save, HILS & TCL 7.46 7.82 0.36

TOTAL 413.84 408.43 (5.41)

Loans

 

The Salix interest free loans have been provided by an independent publicly funded 
company dedicated to providing the public sector with loans for energy efficiency projects. 

The interest free ‘Invest-2-Save’ funding is to assist in the conversion of traditional street 
lighting to LED, which will help deliver a legacy of reduced energy costs and associated 
carbon taxes. 

The Home Improvement Loan Scheme (HILS) repayable funding is provided by the Welsh 
Government to help individual homeowners, small portfolio landlords, developers and 
charities to improve homes and increase housing supply. 

The Town Centre Loan (TCL) repayable funding is provided by the Welsh Government to 
provide loans to reduce the number of vacant, underutilised and redundant sites and 
premises in town centres and to support the diversification of the town centres by 
encouraging more sustainable uses for empty sites and premises, such as residential, 
leisure and for key services.  

 

7.1 New Borrowing  

 

The following loan was borrowed during the period: 

 

Loan 

Reference

Amount 

(£m)

Interest 

Rate Start Date Period Maturity Date 

Salix 0.36 0.00% 16th April 2021 8yrs 01/04/2029

Total 0.36

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 55



7.2 Interest Paid 
 

Interest paid on loans during the period was: 
 
 

PWLB Market Loan Total

Interest Interest Interest

Paid Paid Paid

£m £m £m

8.39 0.07 8.46

 

 

8. Rescheduling and Premature Loan Repayments 

The current economic climate and the consequent structure of interest rates meant that no 
rescheduling opportunities arose during the period and there were no premature loan 
repayments.  

 

9. Leasing 

 
No leases were negotiated during the period 1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 56



 
 
 
B. PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR REPORT 
 

1. Prudential Indicators 

As part of the 2021-2022 Budget and the Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 2021-
2022, the Council adopted a number of Prudential Indicators. These Indicators are designed 
to ensure that any borrowing or other long-term liabilities entered into for capital purposes 
were affordable, sustainable and prudent. 

The indicators are required by the Local Government Act 2003 and the Revised Prudential 
Code of Practice in order to control Capital Finance. The Prudential Code also required that 
those Prudential Indicators that were forward looking should be monitored and reported. 
Some of the indicators are monitored by officers monthly and are only reported if they are 
likely to be breached, others are to be monitored quarterly by the Executive Board. 

 
 
 
 1.1 Affordability Prudential Indicator 
 
 
 1.1.1 Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
The indicator set for 2021-2022 in the Budget was: 
 

 

 2021-2022 
% 

Non-HRA   4.50 

HRA 32.71 

 
 

An examination of the assumptions made in calculating this indicator concluded that 
there have been no changes in this period. 

 
1.2 Prudence Prudential Indicators 

 
 

1.2.1 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 

The Director of Corporate Services reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current 
or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.   
 

2021-2022 As at 2021-2022

Estimate 30.09.21 Forecast

£m £m £m

CFR – non housing 284 279 279

CFR – housing 182 178 178

CFR - housing subsidy buy-out 70 70 70

Total CFR 536 527 527

Capital Financing Requirement

 
 
 

Tudalen 57



 
 
 

1.2.2. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 
 

The actual value of loans outstanding must not exceed the Authorised Limit.  In normal 
activity actual loans outstanding should be close but less than the Operational Boundary. 
The Operational Boundary can be breached in the short term due to adverse cash flows. 

 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22

Estimate Forecast Estimate Forecast

£m £m £m £m

Borrowing 589 589 535.8 535.8

Other Long-Term Liabilities 0.5 0.5 0.1 0.1

Total 589.5 589.5 535.9 535.9

Authorised Limit for 

External Debt

Operational Boundary for 

External Debt

 

 

Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Authorised Limit 589 589 589 589 589 589

Operational Boundary 536 536 536 536 536 536

Loans Outstanding 414 414 414 412 412 408  
 
 
Neither the Authorised Limit nor the Operational Boundary have been breached. 
 

 
 

250

275

300

325

350

375

400

425

450

475

500

525

550

575

600

625

Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21

£m

Month

Authorised Limit

Operational Boundary

Actual Loans Outs tanding

Tudalen 58



 
2.1 Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 

 
2.1.1 Interest Rate Exposure 

 
Position as at 30th September 2021: 

 

 Fixed Interest 
Rate 
£m 

Variable 
Interest Rate 

£m 

TOTAL 
 

£m 

Borrowed 405.42   3.00 408.42 

Invested   (71.52) (59.50)   (131.02) 

Net  333.90 (56.50) 277.40 

Limit 516.00 52.00  

    

Proportion of Net 
Borrowing Actual 

 
   120.37% 

 
  (20.37)% 

 
100.00% 

Limit    125.00%   5.00%  

 
The authority is within limits set by the 2021-2022 indicators. 
 

 
2.1.2 Maturity Structure of Borrowing 

 
 

 Structure at 
   30.09.21 
         % 

    Upper 
     Limit 
        % 

    Lower 
     Limit 
        % 

Under 12 months        2.70        15         0 

12 months to 2 years        3.00        15         0 

2 years to 5 years        7.28        50         0 

5 years to 10 years      10.36        50         0 

10 years to 20 years      21.60        50         0 

20 years to 30 years      22.21        50         0 

30 years to 40 years      25.38        50         0 

40 years and above        7.46        50         0 

 
The authority is within the limits set by the 2021-2022 indicators. 
 
 
2.1.3 Maximum Principal Sums Invested Longer than 365 Days 

 

  2020-2021 
       £m 

Limit  
 

       10 
 

Actual as at 30th September 2021 
 

       NIL 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that this report be received by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Tudalen 59



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Investment Summary as at 30th September 2021 Carmarthenshire County Council

Total £130,500,000 Yield 0.06% < 1 year £7,353 0.006%

Calls & MMFs £59,500,000 46% Maturity (Days) 1 - 2 years £0 0.000%

Fixed Deposits £71,000,000 54% Total Portfolio Total Portfolio 42.26 2 - 3 years £0 0.000%

Specified £59,500,000 100% 3 - 4 years £0 0.000%

Long Term Short Term 4 - 5 years £0 0.000%

AAA - 1.00 Total Portfolio £7,353 0.006%

AA F1 56.05

A F1 55.14

BBB F2 0.00

CCC C 0.00

< 1 Week £67,500,000 52%

< 1 Month £29,000,000 22%

2 - 3 Months £22,000,000 17%

3 - 6 Months £0 0%

6 - 9 Months £7,000,000 5%

9 - 12 Months £5,000,000 4%

12 Months+ £0 0%

Total £130,500,000 100%

Carmarthenshire County Council
30/09/2021

Totals Risk FactorsWeighted Average

Maturity Structure

SLY Model 

T
udalen 61



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



Top 10 Counterparty Holdings

Counterparty Principal
% of Total 

Holding

WAM 

(Days)
WAYield WADefault

1. Dmadf £36,500,000 32.30% 25 0.00% 0.001%

2. HSBC £7,000,000 6.19% 1 0.03% 0.000%

3. National Westminster Bank £7,000,000 6.19% 183 0.11% 0.047%

4. Bank of Scotland £7,000,000 6.19% 1 0.01% 0.000%

5. Standard Chartered Bank £7,000,000 6.19% 1 0.10% 0.000%

6. Lloyds Bank £7,000,000 6.19% 1 0.10% 0.000%

7. Santander UK plc £6,500,000 5.75% 1 0.58% 0.000%

8. Flintshire County Borough Council £5,000,000 4.42% 54 0.03% 0.002%

9. Newport City Council £5,000,000 4.42% 19 0.05% 0.001%

10. Black Rock £5,000,000 4.42% 1 0.01% 0.000%

Carmarthenshire County Council

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

£40,000,000

1. Dmadf 2. HSBC 3. National
Westminster Bank

4. Bank of Scotland 5. Standard
Chartered Bank

6. Lloyds Bank 7. Santander UK
plc

8. Flintshire County
Borough Council

9. Newport City
Council

10. Black Rock

T
udalen 63



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn fw
riadol



 

 
 

BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR –  

ASESIAD DRAFFT O LESIANT LLEOL SIR GÂR 
 

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen: 

1. I ystyried a chraffu ar gynnwys Asesiad Drafft o Lesiant Lleol Sir Gâr fel rhan o’r broses 
ymgynghori ar yr asesiad.  

 

Y Rhesymau:  

Mae Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 yn nodi gofyniad i bwyllgor craffu 
llywodraeth leol gael ei benodi i graffu gwaith y BGC. Yn Sir Gâr, mae’r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi 
ac Adnoddau wedi ei benodi fel y pwyllgor craffu priodol.  

Mae’r paratoi a chyhoeddi Asesiad Llesiant yn ofyniad statudol ar y PSB.  
 

 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:   NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad:    NAC OES  

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Cyng. Emlyn Dole, Arweinydd 
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  

Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Noelwyn Daniel 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Gwyneth Ayers  

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth TGCh a 
Pholisi Corfforaethol 

 

Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol, 
Perfformiad a Phartneriaeth 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

07929737950 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

GAyers@sirgar.gov.uk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau 

10 Rhagfyr 2021 
 

Tudalen 65

Eitem Rhif  6

mailto:GAyers@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10 December 2021 

Carmarthenshire Public Services Board (PSB) – 

Draft Carmarthenshire Assessment of Local Well-being 

Background  
Work has been on-going in preparation for the Assessment of Local Well-being since March 
2021. Regular reports have been presented to this PSB on progress with the Assessment.  
Carmarthenshire PSB endorsed an approach to working in partnership with regional colleagues 
in undertaking the Well-being Assessment. A joint Methodology Framework and Joint 
Engagement Plan were developed between the PSBs for Ceredigion, Carmarthenshire and 
Pembrokeshire. These documents outline the collective approach to undertaking the 
assessments and the engagement for Local Well-being across the three PSB areas. 
 
As part of the development of the assessment a Regional Well-being Survey and range of local 
engagement events took place between July-October and the results have been analysed. 
There were 609 responses from Carmarthenshire residents to the survey, in addition to the 
written comments received from a range of events held with several different groups. 
Involvement included conversations with local primary schools, Armed Forces stakeholders 
and networks facilitated by CAVS e.g. the Carmarthenshire Volunteer Organisers Network.    
 
Alongside the engagement work, a Regional Data / Writers’ Group have worked collaboratively 
analyse data, share expertise, and agree common standards during the writing phase. The 
group also provided a useful way of identifying key regional well-being themes that needed to 
be reflected across all three areas. 
 
The Carmarthenshire draft Assessment of Local Well-being was approved for consultation with 
the public and stakeholders by Carmarthenshire PSB on 24th November 2021. This 
consultation will take place between 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022.   

 
Some key areas have been identified that need to be researched further, needing additional 
statistics, local information or in terms of involvement. These are fuel poverty, adult obesity, 
domestic abuse and housing and homelessness. 
During the consultation period, the PSB Support Team will ensure that the networks and 
forums who participated in the first involvement exercise receive the draft Assessment. It is 
recognised that there are voices which have not yet been heard as part of the Assessment 
including those who are expecting or have given birth in the last six months, our Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic communities, our young people and our gypsy and traveller community. 
Increased efforts will be made to engage with these groups on the draft Assessment.   
In preparation for the publication of the final assessment in March 2022, a technical document 
will be prepared which will include data sources, an analysis of the survey and involvement 
work. In addition, Community profiles for each of the 6 Upper Super Output Areas in 
Carmarthenshire will also be produced. 
The PSB support team will work closely with partners, and in light of the new information and 
feedback received, will prepare a final version of the Assessment. This final version is 
scheduled for discussion at the PSB meeting on 8 March 2022.  The final Well-being 
Assessment will be published on the PSB website on 28 March. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

Tudalen 66



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
CONSULTATIONS 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed: Noelwyn Daniel, Head of ICT & Corporate Policy                                                 

1. Scrutiny Committee Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2021 

2.Local Member(s)  N/A 

3.Community / Town Council  

Representatives from one of the seven Carmarthenshire Town & Community Councils 
subject to the Well-being of Future Generations Act in their own right, attend PSB meetings 
on a rota basis.   

4.Relevant Partners  Through the Public Services Board meeting 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  N/A 

CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 
AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES  

Include any observations here 
Cllr Emlyn Dole attends PSB meetings on 
behalf of the Council 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

SPSF 3 – Guidance on the 
collective role through 
public services boards  

 Cymraeg 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-
3-collective-role-cy.pdf  
English 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-
3-collective-role-en.pdf 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 

Signed: Noelwyn Daniel, Head of ICT & Corporate Policy                 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 

 
Finance 

 
ICT 

 
Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets a requirement on PSBs to prepare a 
Local Well-being Plan every five years, using a Well-being Assessment to feed into the planning 
phase. This is the second Assessment of Local Well-being that Carmarthenshire PSB has 
undertaken. This will inform the second iteration of the Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan which will 
need to be published by May 2023.  

Tudalen 67

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-en.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carmarthenshire 
Assessment of Local 

Well-being 

Tudalen 69



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact Us:  

PSB Support Team 

Tîm Cynorthwyo BGC 

 

 

 By Telephone: 

01267 234567 

 

 By Email: 

info@thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales 

gwybodaeth@sirgaragarem.cymru 

Tudalen 70



3 
 

CONTENTS 

 

 

Table of Contents 
INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

What is Well-being? ................................................................................................................................ 9 

What is the Well-being of Future Generations Act? ............................................................................. 9 

How did we undertake the Assessment? ............................................................................................ 11 

A Regional Approach ........................................................................................................................ 11 

Regional Data .................................................................................................................................... 11 

The Impact of COVID-19 .................................................................................................................... 12 

Engagement and Consultation ......................................................................................................... 12 

Sustainable Development Principle ................................................................................................. 13 

Key Themes .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

New Beginnings ............................................................................................................................... 14 

Childhood ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

Youth ................................................................................................................................................ 14 

Adulthood.......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Ageing Well ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

West Wales ............................................................................................................................................ 17 

Region .................................................................................................................................................... 17 

CARMARTHENSHIRE CONTEXT ............................................................................................................ 21 

Carmarthenshire Context .................................................................................................................... 22 

National Well-being Indicators ............................................................................................................ 26 

NEW BEGINNINGS ................................................................................................................................ 27 

Welcome to the world ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Birth weight ...................................................................................................................................... 28 

Immunisation Rates ......................................................................................................................... 28 

Breastfeeding ................................................................................................................................... 29 

Tudalen 71

file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246696
file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246711
file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246712
file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246713
file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246716


4 
 

Family foundations .............................................................................................................................. 29 

Equal and ambitious start in life ...................................................................................................... 30 

Childcare provision .......................................................................................................................... 30 

National Well-being Indicators ............................................................................................................ 32 

CHILDHOOD ......................................................................................................................................... 33 

Strong Foundations ............................................................................................................................. 34 

Welsh-medium Education ................................................................................................................ 35 

Childhood challenges ........................................................................................................................... 35 

Adverse Childhood Experiences ..................................................................................................... 35 

Children known to social services ................................................................................................... 36 

Child Poverty .................................................................................................................................... 37 

Childcare ........................................................................................................................................... 38 

Growing up healthy ............................................................................................................................. 39 

Play.................................................................................................................................................... 39 

Obesity .............................................................................................................................................. 39 

Childhood concerns ......................................................................................................................... 40 

National Well-being Indicators ............................................................................................................ 41 

Growing independent adults ............................................................................................................... 43 

Broadening horizons........................................................................................................................ 43 

Welsh-medium education ................................................................................................................ 43 

Examinations .................................................................................................................................... 43 

Elective Home Education ................................................................................................................. 44 

Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) ........................................................................ 44 

First Independence .............................................................................................................................. 45 

Smoking ............................................................................................................................................ 45 

Substance misuse ............................................................................................................................ 45 

Sex and relationships ....................................................................................................................... 45 

Making Connections ........................................................................................................................ 46 

Young carers .................................................................................................................................... 47 

Migration of young people .............................................................................................................. 47 

Involving our Young People ............................................................................................................ 48 

Mental Health ................................................................................................................................... 48 

Tudalen 72

file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246725


5 
 

ADULTHOOD ........................................................................................................................................ 50 

Well-being .............................................................................................................................................. 51 

Making ends meet ................................................................................................................................ 51 

Income ............................................................................................................................................... 51 

Poverty ............................................................................................................................................. 52 

Employability .................................................................................................................................... 53 

Working age population .................................................................................................................. 54 

Job creation and retention .............................................................................................................. 54 

Claimant count ................................................................................................................................. 54 

Well-being in work ........................................................................................................................... 55 

Qualifications and training .............................................................................................................. 55 

Lifestyle choices ................................................................................................................................... 56 

Exercise and physical activity .......................................................................................................... 56 

Smoking ............................................................................................................................................ 56 

Obesity .............................................................................................................................................. 56 

Alcohol and substance misuse ........................................................................................................ 57 

Part of a community ............................................................................................................................ 57 

Community Cohesion ....................................................................................................................... 58 

Hate Crime ........................................................................................................................................ 59 

Community Safety............................................................................................................................ 59 

Domestic abuse ................................................................................................................................ 60 

Feeling safe ...................................................................................................................................... 61 

Housing ................................................................................................................................................. 62 

Affordable housing .......................................................................................................................... 62 

Homelessness .................................................................................................................................. 63 

Cultural activities .................................................................................................................................. 64 

Arts, museums and heritage ........................................................................................................... 64 

Welsh language ................................................................................................................................ 65 

Mental Health ....................................................................................................................................... 65 

Mental Health ................................................................................................................................... 65 

Suicides ............................................................................................................................................. 67 

Carers .................................................................................................................................................... 68 

Tudalen 73

file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246753


6 
 

Environment ......................................................................................................................................... 70 

Natural Resources ............................................................................................................................ 70 

Sustainable Land Management ...................................................................................................... 70 

Air Quality .......................................................................................................................................... 71 

Wildfires ............................................................................................................................................. 71 

Flooding ............................................................................................................................................. 71 

Waterways........................................................................................................................................ 72 

Waste ................................................................................................................................................ 72 

Ecosystem Resilience ....................................................................................................................... 72 

Climate Change ................................................................................................................................ 73 

National Well-being Indicators ............................................................................................................ 74 

AGEING WELL ....................................................................................................................................... 77 

Population projections .................................................................................................................... 78 

Outdoor Spaces and Buildings ............................................................................................................ 78 

Transport .............................................................................................................................................. 79 

Transport Links ................................................................................................................................ 79 

Housing ................................................................................................................................................. 80 

Housing stock suitability .................................................................................................................. 80 

Social Participation .............................................................................................................................. 80 

Communities .................................................................................................................................... 80 

Loneliness ......................................................................................................................................... 80 

Respect and Social Inclusion ............................................................................................................... 81 

Volunteering ................................................................................................................................. 81 

Civic Participation and Employment ................................................................................................... 81 

Working ............................................................................................................................................ 81 

Communication and Information ........................................................................................................ 83 

Community Support and Health Services ........................................................................................... 83 

Health ............................................................................................................................................... 83 

Adult Social Care .............................................................................................................................. 84 

Dementia ...................................................................................................................................... 85 

Mental Health ................................................................................................................................... 85 

Mobility ............................................................................................................................................. 85 

Tudalen 74

file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246796


7 
 

Falls ............................................................................................................................................... 85 

Life Expectancy ................................................................................................................................ 85 

Deaths and Causes ........................................................................................................................... 86 

National Well-being Indicators ............................................................................................................ 87 

NEXT STEPS .......................................................................................................................................... 88 

The Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan ................................................................................................ 90 

Regional working ............................................................................................................................. 90 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 75

file://///ceredigion.gov.uk/CERESTORE/Profile.v2/Carysh/Documents/Just%20Copied.docx%23_Toc89246821


8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

Tudalen 76



9 
 

What is Well-being? 
Well-being means different things to different people. Well-being is closely linked to quality of 

life; being comfortable, healthy, happy and safe. Public bodies have a duty, under the Well-being 

of Future Generations Act, to improve well-being in their local area. This latest Well-being 

Assessment is the first step in helping us plan our collaborative approach to do that.  

What is the Well-being of Future Generations Act? 
The Well-being of Future Generations Act was introduced in April 2016 

with the intention to create the Wales we want for now and in 

the future. Within this Act, Public Services Boards (PSBs) were 

created to encourage co-production and joined up working 

from public bodies, to improve the social, economic, 

environmental and cultural well-being in their area. Each 

PSB must have representation from:  

 Local Authority 

 Local Health Board  

 Fire and Rescue Authority  

 Natural Resources Wales. 

Other partner organisations may be invited, in Carmarthenshire 

these are:  

 Coleg Sir Gâr 

 University of Wales Trinity Saint David 

 Dyfed Powys Police 

 Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner 

 Department for Work & Pensions 

 Carmarthenshire Association of Voluntary Services 

 Welsh Government 

 National Probation Service 

 Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1: Future Generations National Well-being Goals 

Tudalen 77



10 
 

The Act defines seven national Well-being Goals: 

 

One of the requirements of a PSB is to prepare a Local Well-being Plan every five years, using a 

Well-being Assessment to feed into the planning phase. This is the second Assessment that the 

Carmarthenshire PSB has undertaken.  

Through all of this work the PSB must follow the ‘sustainable development principle’ - ensuring 

that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to 

meet their own needs. To apply the sustainable development principle, public bodies must follow 

the five ways of working:  

 

 

 

 

 

Goal Description 

A prosperous Wales 

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of 

the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and 

proportionately (including acting on climate change); and which develops a 

skilled and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and 

provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the 

wealth generated through securing decent work.  

A resilient Wales 

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with 

healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological 

resilience and the capacity to adapt to change. 

A more equal Wales 
A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 

background or circumstances (including their socio-economic circumstance). 

A healthier Wales 
A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in 

which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood. 

A Wales of cohesive 

communities 

Attractive, safe, viable and well-connected. 

A Wales of vibrant 

culture and thriving 

Welsh language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, 

and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and 

recreation.  

A globally responsible 

Wales 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing 

such a thing may make a positive contribution to global well-being.  

Long Term Integration Involvement Collaboration Prevention 

Tudalen 78



11 
 

This will ensure that we work better together, learn from previous mistakes and use future 

thinking to tackle some of the challenges we are facing. Further information on applying the five 

ways of working is seen on page 13. 

How did we undertake the Assessment?  
A Regional Approach  

Carmarthenshire PSB has worked collaboratively locally and regionally to produce this 

assessment. Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire PSB’s have worked in partnership 

to share resources, expertise and capacity in order to reduce the duplication of work. Officers 

from the three PSBs and Regional Partnership Board (RPB)/West Wales Care Partnership have 

worked together to develop a consistent methodology and approach which would culminate in 

three Well-being Assessments (one for each PSB) and a Population Needs Assessment for the 

RPB. Under this network, the following regional groups were set up at different stages of the 

assessments’ delivery to lead on specific elements of work: 

 Joint Methodology Sub-Group 

 Engagement Group & Survey Sub-Group 

 Data / Writing Group 

Working in this way ensured that the assessments’ production was collaborative (between public 

sector partners and the third sector) in terms of data provision, analysis and interpretation.  

A Regional Framework Methodology was developed, highlighting how we undertook the 

assessments regionally and the ways in which the well-being themes for each PSB area were 

identified. A Regional Engagement and Consultation Framework was produced which outlines 

how we conducted the engagement and consultation on the assessments at a regional level. 

Please see the Carmarthenshire PSB website for more information on these.  

Carmarthenshire County Council has led on the production of the Assessment on behalf of the 

Carmarthenshire PSB. The role of the Council was to coordinate all steps in the process – the 

engagement, the situation and response analysis and the writing - and this approach was also 

adopted regionally in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. 

Regional Data 

Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire’s PSBs worked together on a desktop data 

gathering exercise to understand well-being in the three local areas. A wide range of local, 

regional and national sources were considered. The data review exercise helped to build an 

understanding of the area’s context, challenges and priorities to be considered as part of the 

situation and response analysis. It also began to highlight the areas needed to be prioritised in 

the Assessment and which were included as part of our futures thinking.  

By working collaboratively across the West Wales region, we were also able to identify cross-

boundary well-being issues across the three PSB areas, such as climate change, child poverty and 

Tudalen 79



12 
 

housing affordability. The identification of these regional issues will support well-being planning 

across West Wales following publication of the assessments in 2022.  

The Impact of COVID-19 

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on the production of this Well-being Assessment, and 

in particular the ability to assess well-being. The pandemic has raised some new issues relating to 

well-being and brought some existing issues to the fore.  

In assessing well-being, there is a trade-off between the short-term COVID-19 impact and the 

longer-term future trends that existed prior to the pandemic. To help to counter the skewing of 

trends towards the immediate COVID-19 response, the assessment draws reference to the 

specific impacts of the pandemic separately where they are known. At the time of writing, we are 

still learning about the impacts, which presents one of the largest data gaps in the assessment.  

Engagement and Consultation 

The Assessment was ‘engagement led’ to ensure that the views of our residents were the main 

drivers for producing the document, placing them at the heart of the next Well-being Plan. In 

preparing for the engagement, workshops were held with regional PSB partners in May and June 

2021 to explore their ideas on how to conduct the engagement and the actual content of the 

regional Well-being Survey and stakeholder events. The engagement activities were developed 

based on these views, some examples of which were the desire to include more open-ended 

questions in the Well-being Survey, run the survey in September after the summer holidays and 

conduct a specific schools survey to record responses from younger people.  

Engagement and consultation will be carried out over two steps: 

Initial engagement – this was carried out in order to inform the writing of the first draft of the 

Well-being Assessment. This stage took place from June - October 2021.  

Consultation on the draft assessment – a consultation exercise will take place on the draft 

assessment during the winter of 2021/22. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 80



13 
 

Sustainable Development Principle 

To assist in adhering to the sustainable development principle we have applied the five-ways of 
working through the development of this assessment. The table below provides details of how 
we have threaded the ways of working into our approach:  

 

 

 Continuation of the Public Service Board / Regional Partnership Board Network to build 
on collaboration and involvement for the future.  

 Futures thinking questions included in the survey. 

 Consideration and analysis of future trends information where available 

 Development of “Gorwel” – helps bridge the data gaps over the medium and longer-
term. The assessment will be updated as new information and statistics is made 
available. 

 

 

 The assessment will be used by a range of partners and stakeholders to plan for future 
service delivery. It will be essential for those partners to integrate and align their 
developments and provision in order to address some of the wider population well-
being matters raised in the assessment 

 On-going engagement between partners will be essential in order to align and ensure 
collective action can be taken forward to respond to the assessment findings 

 Sharing of organisational intelligence in order to inform local service planning and 
response will be key going forward. 

 

 

 Demographic mapping was undertaken, hard to reach groups and those with protected 
characteristics were prioritised for virtual stakeholder events.  

 The Life Stages Model utilised by the PSB’s in the region allows us to recognise the 
interrelationships between the different needs based on the various life stages but also 
the interdependency. The golden thread of the national well-being goals will also drive 
this response and on-going involvement will be essential as the revised well-being plan is 
developed and implemented.  

 The involvement of residents and stakeholders has been extensive and integral to our 
engagement exercises. This represents the beginning of an ongoing conversation about 
well-being in Carmarthenshire. 

 More than 1000 residents and stakeholders have been involved in the process with 
several opportunities for the general public to express their views. 

 The PSB is keen to ensure that this dialogue continues during the next well-being plan 
and that individual PSB members also share the findings of their involvement work with 
service users, residents and other stakeholders in order to respond fully to issues raised. 

 

 

 Assessment undertaken in collaboration with a wide range of PSB partners, local and 
regional. 

 Worked as a West Wales Cluster to deliver the Assessment under the PSB/RPB Network.  

 Developed Regional Well-being Survey and Regional Stakeholder Toolkit.  

 Close collaboration with Hywel Dda University Health Board and the West Wales Care 
Partnership.  

 Regional Well-being Co-ordinator employed to oversee the delivery of the assessments 
and ensure consistency in our approach.  

 

 

 Many of the interventions to respond to the population needs identified in the 
assessment will need to be driven with a focus on preventative action. The key with 
many of the challenges identified is early recognition and intervention in order to stop 
matters escalating and creating greater demand. 

 We can use the assessment to target areas where preventative work can be undertaken 
through collective action across PSB partners. 

Tudalen 81



14 
 

  

Key Themes 
The responses gathered from the various forms of engagement for the assessment have been 

looked at alongside analysis of various sources of data and research. Clear themes have been 

identified in our county which will allow us to target areas of need when we move from the 

Assessment to Planning phase over the course of the next year. 

New Beginnings 

Rates of low birth weight babies have fallen and are lower than the Welsh average.  

Birth rates have reduced by 10% over the last 5 years.  

Immunisation rates have been increasing yet remain lower than the national average.  

An increased number of children have been attending Flying Start placements, a majority of 

these children are exceeding expected milestones by 2 years of age.  

Childcare settings are finding recruitment of staff difficult, particularly for Welsh medium staff. 

Breastfeeding rates have risen across Hywel Dda University Health Board region.  

Childhood 

Children were impacted by not seeing their friends or extended families during lockdowns.  

A quarter of our parents who have English as their first language stated that they would 

support their children through a Welsh medium education in our regional survey. 

There has been an increase in children classified as “children in need” by social services. This is 

likely exacerbated by pressures exerted on families by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Almost a third of children are living in poverty.  

Parents and carers have identified that the cost of childcare can be prohibitive.  

Levels of childhood obesity are amongst the worst in Wales.  

From engagement with schools young people expressed that they were highly concerned 

about COVID-19, climate change, jobs, poverty and the environment.  

 

Youth 

Bullying and cyberbullying were key issues raised in engagement with young people.  

School closures during the pandemic had a significant impact on the well-being of young 

people.  

Substance misuse by young people roughly follows the national average.  

Accessibility to areas to socialise with friends has a positive impact on the well-being of young 

people. 

Tudalen 82



15 
 

Carers Trust Crossroads West Wales service support 214 young carers in the county. Young 

carers disproportionately suffer from anxiety and feelings of isolation.  

There has been an increase in the highest grades achieved by pupils undertaking GCSEs and A-

Levels.  

The gap between attainment of pupils who receive Free School Meals and those who do not 

has widened.  

Access to training and jobs has been identified as a key local issue by young people.  

Young people are also concerned about levels of homelessness and domestic violence.  

 

Adulthood 

Over a third of our households continue to live in poverty. 

In-work poverty is an increasingly common problem. 

The cost of living is rising across the UK, with more working families experiencing poverty. 

Levels of reported exercise and physical activity are amongst the highest in Wales. 

In most areas of Carmarthenshire levels of smoking have significantly reduced. 

We have the fifth worst figure for adults who report fewer than two healthy lifestyle behaviours. 

Carmarthenshire has a high number of adults who are overweight or obese.  

The percentage of adults who drink more than recommended guidelines has increased and is one 

of the highest in Wales.  

The referrals received for support with alcohol and drug issues has reduced, as a result of the 

pandemic.  

Over 70% of our residents agree that there is good community cohesion in their local area. 

Carmarthenshire remains one of the safest areas of the UK. 

Engagement with our communities highlighted ‘feeling safe’ as a key issue in their area. 

Outdoor refuse fires have been continuously increasing over the last 5 years. 

Road traffic collisions remain high - this is affected by our large network and high traffic flow within 

the county. 

There has been a 27% increase in the average house price between 2016 and 2021.  

Levels of homelessness and those at risk of homelessness are high in the county. 

Carmarthenshire has the most Welsh speakers in Wales.  

Carmarthenshire has one of the highest suicide rates in Wales.   

Mental ill health remains a significant concern for many adults.  

Referrals for domestic abuse have significantly increased since the pandemic and show no sign of 

decline.  

Tudalen 83



16 
 

Climate change and the nature emergency are the significant challenges in our time. 

Risk of flooding affects many residential properties in the county.  

Water pollution, from nitrates and phosphorus, is affecting water quality. 

Carmarthenshire has one of the highest rates of fly tipping in Wales, incidences have increased 

fourfold over the last four years. 

 

Ageing Well 

51.3% of older adults report that they are in good health, less than the Welsh average.  

Older people in Carmarthenshire feel the pressures of the loss of public transport systems that 

many reply upon to maintain independence.  

A high percentage of older people volunteer in their local communities.  

Contrary to the trend seen across Wales, less over 50s in Carmarthenshire are in paid work.  

The move to an increasingly digital world has the potential to leave some feeling left behind 

and compound issues of loneliness.  

The ageing population in Carmarthenshire and Wales is forecasted to create additional 

pressures for the NHS. 

Dementia diagnosis rates are projected to significantly increase in the next 15 years.  

The cost of residential and nursing care is high, approximately £33,500 a year. This creates 

stress and uncertainty for those who require care.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 84



17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Economic Well-being 

Cultural Well-being 

Environmental Well-being 

Social Well-being 

Population 

Change 

Affordable 

Housing 

Climate 

change 

Loss of 

biodiversity 

Renewable 

energy 

capacity 

Decrease in 
participation in 
arts, culture or 

heritage 
activities 

Opportunities to 

use and promote 

the Welsh 

Language 

Rising living 

costs 

Poverty and 

In-Work 

Poverty 

Lower than 

average 

earnings 

Increase in 

Child Poverty 

Increase in 

Dementia 

Affordable & 

Accessible 

Childcare 

KEY REGIONAL WELL-BEING THEMES 
The collaborative working we have undertaken during the production of this assessment with 

regional partners has given rise to a number of cross-boundary or regional issues affecting 

the whole of the West Wales Region. Carmarthenshire has regional partners in West 

Wales - Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire.  

 

The Regional Data Group, responsible for the analysis and writing of this round 

of assessments, has identified the following key regional themes based on 

the data available, the results of the regional well-being survey and the 

findings of the stakeholder events conducted during the summer of 

2021. The aim is to help clarify the collective challenges we face 

now and in the future.  

                       

West 

Wales 

Region 

Ceredigion 

Carmarthenshire 

Pembrokeshire 

Figure 2: Adapted from HDUHB document 

Tudalen 85



18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Description 

Park or 

Maintain 

 

 

Track/ 

Further 

monitoring 

 

Scenario 

plan/ 

Further 

research 

Prioritise/ 

Critical 

issue for 

area 

New Beginnings 
Rates of low birth weight babies have fallen and are lower than the Welsh 

average.   

Park/Maintain    

Birth rates have reduced by 10% over the last 5 years.   
 Track / Further 

monitoring 

  

Immunisation rates have been increasing yet remain lower than the national 

average.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

An increased number of children have been attending Flying Start 

placements. 

Park/Maintain     

Childcare settings are finding recruitment of staff difficult, particularly for 

Welsh medium staff. 

  Scenario plan / 

further research 

 

Breastfeeding rates have risen across Hywel Dda University Health Board 

region.   

Park/Maintain     

Childhood 
Children were impacted by not seeing their friends or extended families 

during lockdowns.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

A quarter of our parents who have English as their first language stated that 

they would support their children through a Welsh medium education. 

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

There has been an increase in children classified as “children in need” by 

social services. 

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Almost a third of children are living in poverty.   
   

Prioritise and act / 

critical issue 

Parents and carers have identified that the cost of childcare can be 

prohibitive.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Levels of childhood obesity are amongst the worst in Wales.   
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

From engagement with schools young people expressed that they were 

highly concerned about COVID-19, climate change, jobs, poverty and the 

environment.   

 

 

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Prioritise and act/ 
critical issue 

Scenario plan / 
further research 

Park / maintain 
Track / further 

monitoring 

High impact on policy area 

Lower impact on policy area 

The outcome 
is certain 

The outcome 
is uncertain 

We have used the PSB Futures Impact/Certainty Matrix to 

provide an indicative assessment of the main themes 

identified in the Assessment. The aim is to provide context 

to the findings by providing an initial assessment based on 

the core data set and the engagement conducted during 

the summer of 2021. The matrix assesses the themes 

according to the level of priority and their certainty of 

happening, as defined in the sample to the right.  

 

Tudalen 86



19 
 

Youth 
Bullying and cyberbullying were key issues raised in engagement with young 

people.   

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

School closures during the pandemic had a significant impact on the well-

being of young people.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Substance misuse by young people roughly follows the national average.   
 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Accessibility to areas to socialise with friends has a positive impact on the 

well-being of young people. 

Park/Maintain     

Carers Trust Crossroads West Wales service support 214 young carers in the 

county. 

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

There has been an increase in the highest grades achieved by pupils 

undertaking GCSEs and A-Levels.   

Park/Maintain     

The gap between attainment of pupils who receive Free School Meals and 

those who do not has widened.   

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Access to training and jobs has been identified as a key local issue by young 

people.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Young people are concerned about levels of homelessness and domestic 

violence.   

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Adulthood 

Over a third of our households continue to live in poverty. 
   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

In-work poverty is an increasingly common problem. 
   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

The cost of living is rising across the UK, with more working families 

experiencing poverty. 

   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

Levels of reported exercise and physical activity are amongst the highest in 

Wales. 

Park/Maintain     

In most areas of Carmarthenshire levels of smoking have significantly 

reduced. 

Park/Maintain     

We have the fifth worst figure for adults who report fewer than two healthy 

lifestyle behaviours. 

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Carmarthenshire has a high number of adults who are overweight or obese.   
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

The percentage of adults who drink more than recommended guidelines has 

increased and is one of the highest in Wales.   

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

The referrals received for support with alcohol and drug issues has reduced, 

as a result of the pandemic.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Over 70% of our residents agree that there is good community cohesion in 

their local area. 

Park/Maintain     

Carmarthenshire remains one of the safest areas of the UK. 
Park/Maintain     

Engagement with our communities highlighted ‘feeling safe’ as a key issue in 

their area.  

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Tudalen 87



20 
 

Outdoor refuse fires have been continuously increasing over the last 5 years. 
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Road traffic collisions remain high. 
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

There has been a 27% increase in the average house price between 2016 and 

2021.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Levels of homelessness and those at risk of homelessness are high in the 

county. 

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Carmarthenshire has the most Welsh speakers in Wales.   
 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Carmarthenshire has one of the highest suicide rates in Wales.    
   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

Mental ill health remains a significant concern for many adults.   
 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Referrals for domestic abuse have significantly increased since the pandemic. 
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Climate change and the nature emergency are the significant challenges in 

our time. 

   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

Risk of flooding affects many residential properties in the county.   
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Water pollution, from nitrates and phosphorus, is affecting water quality. 
   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

Carmarthenshire has one of the highest rates of fly tipping in Wales. 
  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

Ageing Well 
51.3% of older adults report that they are in good health, less than the Welsh 

average.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Older people in Carmarthenshire feel the pressures of the loss of public 

transport systems. 

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

A high percentage of older people volunteer in their local communities.   
Park/Maintain     

Contrary to the trend seen across Wales, less over 50s in Carmarthenshire are 

in paid work.   

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

The move to an increasingly digital world has the potential to leave some 

feeling left behind. 

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

The ageing population in Carmarthenshire is forecasted to create additional 

pressures for the NHS. 

 Track / Further 

monitoring  

  

Dementia diagnosis rates are projected to significantly increase in the next 15 

years.   

   Prioritise and act / 

critical issue  

The cost of residential and nursing care is high, approximately £33,500 a year. 

This creates stress and uncertainty for those who require care.   

  Scenario plan / 

further research  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 88



21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C
A

R
M

A
R

T
H

E
N

S
H

IR
E

 C
O

N
T

E
X

T
 

Tudalen 89



22 
 

Carmarthenshire Context 
The 2020 mid-year population estimates (ONS) give Carmarthenshire a total population of 

190,073 residents, making it the 4th largest local authority in Wales and increasing by almost 9% 

since 2001.   

Carmarthenshire borders Pembrokeshire to the West, Ceredigion to the North, Powys to the 

East, and both Neath Port Talbot and Swansea to the South-East. The Brecon Beacons National 

Park covers approximately 9% of Carmarthenshire, with approximately 1% of Carmarthenshire’s 

population estimated to reside within the National Park. 

The population of Wales is expected to rise by 2.7% by 2028, with the population of 

Carmarthenshire projected to raise approximately in line with that of Wales at 2.4% by 2028. Our 

projected population by 2028 is 192,100.  

Although our population growth rate of 8.0% since 2001 now exceeds the national rate, it 

continues to be lower than neighbouring Pembrokeshire (10.6%) and Swansea (10.3%). However, 

it retains a higher growth rate than Neath Port Talbot (6.3%), Powys (4.8%), and Ceredigion (-

3.2%). Net internal migration continues to be the dominant driver of population change in the 

county.   

Our most recent data on the age profiles of domestic migrants presents a continuing trend of 

predominantly student populations migrating out of Carmarthenshire, with little evidence of 

return in the 20-29 young adult age groups. The net inflow is highest in the 30-65 age range and 

corresponds with an average higher net inflow of 0–14 year-olds. This is likely due to family age 

migration. 

In terms of migration linkages between Carmarthenshire and surrounding areas, the largest 

positive net exchanges have been with Swansea, Ceredigion and Neath Port Talbot. For the 

outflow, the dominant net outflow has been to Cardiff, with smaller net outflows to Bristol; both 

influenced by the annual migration of students to higher education. 

In the 2011 Census results, there was a significant decline in the number of Welsh speakers in our 

county, from 50.3% in 2001 to 43.9% in 2011. This is the first time in the county's history that the 

percentage has fallen below half of our population.  

It should be noted that there is no longer a single ward in Carmarthenshire where over 70% of the 

population speak Welsh. During the ten years between the Censuses, the wards of Pontyberem, 

Llannon, Gorslas and Quarter Bach have fallen below this percentage. The pattern of decrease is 

seen across the county, but the main fall appears to have been in the Amman Valley between 

2001 and 2011. 

The highest percentage of Welsh speakers is now seen among the school-age population with 

the percentage of our older population falling significantly with each decade. The lowest 

percentage of Welsh speakers in Carmarthenshire is seen in the 25-44 age group. This is 

Tudalen 90



23 
 

significant as it is the age group most likely to raise families and make use of the Welsh language 

within our workplaces. 

2011 Census results show that 76% of the population of Carmarthenshire were born in Wales and 

just 1.9% are from non-white ethnic backgrounds. However, according to the Local Labour Force 

Survey / Annual Population Survey (2021), 4% of Carmarthenshire’s population is from a Black, 

Asian, and Minority Ethnic background.  We do note caution when using this information, as the 

survey is based on a smaller sample of population and on demographic trends that pre-date the 

COVID-19 pandemic. To supplement our evidence however, a total of 4,730 EU residents living in 

our county applied to the EU Settlement Scheme by the 30 June 2021 deadline; this is 2.5% of the 

current estimated population of Carmarthenshire. 

The Carmarthenshire population is one of the sparsest in Wales at just 78 people per km2 who 

live across a diverse county of both urban and rural communities. There are three major towns of 

Llanelli, Carmarthen and Ammanford which are home to 25% of the population. 

Carmarthenshire has a diverse range of scenic and historic attractive landscapes, from open 

uplands to rolling lowland farmland. These local landscapes contribute to a sense of pride, 

culture, and local identity. People’s experience and interaction with the environment can also 

positively affect health and well-being. 

During 2020, 27,691 households in Carmarthenshire were classed as living in poverty which is a 

slight increase on the previous year of 27,576. Poverty is defined as when a “household income is 

less than 60% of the GB median income” (in 2020 less than £19,967).   

The 2019/20 National Survey for Wales showed that 11.3% of participating households in 

Carmarthenshire were classed as living in material deprivation. This is below the Welsh average of 

12.9% and a reduction on the previous year’s figure of 13.5%. Due to COVID-19, there is no updated 

data available for the measure.  

According to the 2019 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) which is the official measure 

of relative deprivation for small areas in Wales, Carmarthenshire has 3 areas within the 100 most 

deprived areas in Wales. These are Tyisha ranked as 17th most deprived area in Wales, followed 

by Glanymor in 68th and Bigyn in 84th position. 

For the purposes of this assessment, six community areas have been identified across 

Carmarthenshire based on Upper Super Output Areas (USOA’s), a map of which can be found 

here. Where relevant this assessment will highlight key issues affecting community areas and any 

significant differences between them. 

Tudalen 91



24 
 

 

Community Area 1   

(Population 32,054) 

Community Area 2   

(Population 33,840) 

Community Area 3   

(Population 30,108) 

Carmarthen Town North Abergwili Ammanford 

Carmarthen Town South Carmarthen Town West Betws 

Cenarth Cilycwm Garnant 

Laugharne Cynwyl Elfed Glanaman 

Llanboidy Cynwyl Gaeo Hendy 

Llangeler Llandeilo Llandybie 

Llangunnor Llandovery Pontaman 

Llansteffan Llanegwad Quarter Bach 

St. Clears Llanfihangel Ar Arth Saron 

Trelech Llanfihangel Aberbythych Tycroes 

Whitland Llangadog  

 Llanybydder  

 Manordeilo & Salem  

   

Community Area 4  

(Population 32,742) 

Community Area 5  

(Population 30,923) 

Community Area 6   

(Population 30,406) 

Burry Port Bynea Bigyn 

Glyn Dafen Elli 

Gorslas Felinfoel Glanymor 

Kidwelly Llangennech Hengoed 

Llanddarog Llannon Lliedi 

Llangyndeyrn Llwynhendy Tyisha 

Pembrey Penygroes  

Pontyberem Swiss Valley  

St. Ishmael   

Trimsaran   

 

Figure 3: Carmarthenshire Upper Super Output Areas 

Tudalen 92



25 
 

 

Figure 4: Life Stages 

 

The figures from the 2020 mid-year population estimates shows that, whilst the 6 community 

areas are rather similar in population for ‘New Beginnings’, ‘Childhood’, ‘Youth’ and ‘Adult’, it 

shows clearly that there are less older people living in Community Area 6 than any other area - 

over 32% less than Community Area 2 which has the highest number of older people living in its 

community. 

 

 

New 

Beginnings Childhood Youth Adult Older People 

Community  

Area 1 1,183 2,759 1,952 17,624 8,536 

Community 

Area 2 1,139 2,873 2,289 18,738 8,801 

Community 

Area 3 1,168 2,799 2,051 16,945 7,145 

Community 

Area 4 1,126 2,720 2,221 18,025 8,650 

Community 

Area 5 1,308 3,014 2,290 17,716 6,595 

Community 

Area 6 1,309 2,954 2,108 18,069 5,966 

 

 

3807
8771 6577

51942

21180

3704
8444 6091

54592

23663

New Beginnings Childhood Youth Adult Older People

CARMARTHENSHIRE POPULATION 
IN LIFE STAGES - 2020

Male Female

Tudalen 93



26 
 

National Well-being Indicators  
Welsh Government introduced a suite of 46 National Well-being Indicators to measure progress 

against the 7 national well-being goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015. Although these are national measures intended to progress overall levels of well-being 

across Wales (see Welsh Government’s latest report published 30th September 2021), 

Carmarthenshire PSB has undertaken an exercise to assess current performance against these 

well-being measures where data is available at Local Authority level, to provide clearer insight 

into levels of well-being in our county.  

The National Well-being Indicators will be featured under the relevant life stages as part our 

assessment.  

As at October 2021, Carmarthenshire have ten measures in the red zone (amongst the worst 

results in Wales) including ‘homeless prevention’ and ‘% of properties with a high or medium risk 

of flooding’. There are nineteen measures in the green zone (amongst the best results in Wales) 

including ‘% adult smokers’ and ‘Capacity of renewable energy equipment installed’.  A number of 

measures have seen a significant change in year-on-year results, for example the proportion of 

children aged 4 to 5 years who are overweight or obese has increased from 26.6% in 2017/18 to 

30.4% in 2018/19 therefore moving from 12th to 18th position amongst the worst figures in Wales. 

Tudalen 94

https://gov.wales/wellbeing-wales-2021


27 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N
E

W
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

S
 

Tudalen 95



28 
 

Welcome to the world 
Children learn and develop more from birth to five years old than at any other time in their lives. 

A baby’s earliest experiences shape their brain development and have a lifelong impact on 

mental health and well-being, so it is critical that all children get the best start in life. 

Birth weight  

 

Figure 5: Low birth weight 

Low birth weight can result in health and social disadvantages throughout childhood and adult 

life, and it is pleasing to note that the number of low-birth-weight babies in Carmarthenshire 

remains low Since 2018, Carmarthenshire’s rate of low birth weight babies has been lower than 

the Wales rate and for 2020 was the 3rd lowest in Wales when it fell to 4.9% compared to the 

Welsh average of 6.1%.    

Figures from the Office of National Statistics (ONS) indicate that the birth rate for Carmarthenshire 

has reduced by over 10% from 2015 to 2019 when it fell to 1,656. This pattern is reflected across the 

whole of Wales.  

Immunisation Rates 

Immunisation rates for children aged 4 and under continue to increase, seeing a rise of 5% 

between April 2016 and 2019 to 86.5%. However, our rates continue to be below the latest Welsh 

average of 88%.  Areas of lower uptake continue to be targeted and it is hoped that ongoing 

increases will be seen as people are more aware of the importance of being vaccinated, as a 

result of the pandemic. 

 

 

4
.9

4
.5 4

.9

5
.5

3
.8

5
.5

4
.3

5
.0

4
.9

6
.9

3
.9

4
.7

5
.3

4
.4

5
.8

5
.2 5

.6

4
.9

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

PERCENTAGE OF LOW BIRTH WEIGHT - LIVE SINGLE 
BIRTHS

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Wales

Tudalen 96



29 
 

 

Figure 6: Immunisation rates 

Breastfeeding  

Breastfeeding is recommended exclusively for the first 6 months of a child's life and continued 

until at least 2 years of age. Breastfeeding rates at birth continue to rise throughout the Hywel 

Dda University Health Board (HDUHB) area. However, a decline in the rate of mothers 

breastfeeding for longer than six months has been observed. Breastfeeding has been shown to 

have positive health outcomes for both baby and mother, reducing rates of asthma, infection, 

types of cancer, obesity and more. Breastfeeding rates are higher amongst older mothers.  

Family foundations   
Families are the founding environment that we all experience as individuals and as such the well-

being of the family as a unit has a huge influence on the well-being of the individuals within it. 

Research has shown that antenatal classes which focus on preparing parents for the changes and 

challenges of parenthood as well as the birth itself have resulted in more positive outcomes for 

mother and baby, through improving maternal knowledge and confidence therefore having a 

positive impact on the families’ psychological well-being (Spinelli, 2003). This demonstrates the 

importance of support networks, early intervention, and education in fostering positive family 

relationships at this early stage. 

 

 

 

 

8
8

.8

8
8

.5

8
6

.4 8
8

.8 9
1

.0

8
3

.4

8
2

.6

8
2

.5 8
5

.2

8
4

.8

8
5

.4

8
1

.4 8
4

.0 8
6

.2

8
6

.5

75.0

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19

PERCENTAGE OF ALL CHILDREN UP TO DATE 
IN THE IMMUNISATION SCHEDULE BY AGE 

FOUR

Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Carmarthenshire Wales

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

Conversations held by West Wales Action for Mental Health (WWAMH) have noted that there is an increased need 

for mental health support for new parent/parents. The impact the last 18 months has had on new parents and 

babies without access to face-to-face health visiting, new parent groups, family support and social activity, has been 

significant.   

Responses from the Well-being survey from those who were pregnant or had a baby in the last six months indicated 

that their main concern was not having access to healthcare or other support that they needed as close to home as 

possible or available through technology. 

Tudalen 97



30 
 

Equal and ambitious start in life 

The early years in a child’s life are known as the ‘foundation years’ as they create the foundations 
on which the rest of life is built, and they remain the time when we have most opportunity to 
make a difference. To ensure that all people in Wales can reach their full potential, they need to 
have equality of opportunity. This means addressing not only social and economic inequality but 
also environmental inequality. Environmental inequalities may be defined as the unequal impact 
of environmental influences on health and well-being or the unequal access to ecosystem 
services. 

These environmental influences include early-years education or care settings, housing, public 
spaces, environmental planning, travel and transport, access to nature and environmental 
problems, such as poor air quality or climate change causing increased energy costs. As well as 
ensuring children have an equal start in life it is also important that families, communities and 
services work to ensure each child has the best possible start in life, equipping them with the 
right tools to develop themselves into thriving children, young people and eventually adults. 

Not all children have the same start in life and extra support is provided for those disadvantaged 
by being born in the most deprived areas. Flying Start is the Welsh Government targeted Early 
Years programme for families with children under 4 years of age in some of the most 
disadvantaged areas of Wales. It aims to mitigate the impact of deprivation and poverty on 
families through the delivery of services in the first 1,000 days of a child’s life. In Carmarthenshire, 
there has been a steady increase in attendance levels at our Flying Start establishments which 
provide free childcare placements for eligible 2–3-year-olds to help them prepare for school. Pre-
pandemic figures showed an attendance rate of just under 80% of those eligible to receive flying 
start support. 

Childcare provision  

Attendance at a quality pre-school (aged 0-3) is shown to improve outcomes for children 
throughout their life course. A longitudinal study funded by the Department of Education found 
benefits of pre-school attendance included more positive attitudes towards education, improved 
social behaviour, higher attainment and a reduced risk of worried behaviour. The study found this 
was particularly significant for children from disadvantaged backgrounds, children with 
Additional Learning Needs and boys aged 11 (Taggart, 2015).  In Carmarthenshire there are 
currently 252 registered childcare providers providing 4,751 registered places. Of these, 134 (53%) 
of the providers and 2,737 (58%) of the places are Welsh-medium. The table below gives a further 
breakdown with the figures in brackets showing those registered as Welsh-medium. 

 

Setting type Registered providers Registered places 

Childminders 105 (36) 791 (295) 

Full day care  
(Day Nurseries) 

39 (10) 1,461 (395) 

Full day care  
(Cylchoedd/Playgroups)  

29 (27) 560 (525) 

Sessional care 35 (29) 602 (513) 

Out of school care 44 (32) 1,337 (1,009) 

Total 252 (134) 4,751 (2,737) 

Tudalen 98



31 
 

In 2020-21, the number of registered childcare providers has increased by 3 and childcare places 
by 155 compared to the previous year which is encouraging when considering the challenges 
faced by providers during the pandemic.  

The number of Welsh-medium childcare settings has decreased by 5 childcare settings with a loss 
of 91 Welsh-medium places in 2020-21.  

While some of the sector provided care for the children of key workers, Mudiad Meithrin and 
Cylchoedd remained closed between March 2020 and September 2020 which impacted on the 
availability of Welsh-medium registered childcare places. A number of providers have had to 
close permanently during 2020-21 following the impact of the pandemic, including one main 
Welsh-medium provider who offered Welsh-medium childcare and part time education for 3-year-
olds. As restrictions have risen, several nurseries and carers stopped providing, and it has been a 
huge challenge to re-establish provision to reach the levels that stood before the pandemic.  

Many providers are currently unable to attract and recruit qualified childcare staff which has a 
direct impact on the availability of Welsh-medium childcare. Issues in relation to recruitment 
were seen prior to the pandemic with providers reporting that finding qualified Welsh-medium 
staff was a difficulty. There is evidence of staff leaving the sector and starting a new career 
outside childcare, noting staff fatigue due to Covid regulations and service requirements as 
potential reasons. Mudiad Meithrin also advertises a high number of vacancies for Cylch leaders 
and assistant posts across the county, and lack of recruitment will also have a negative impact on 
Welsh-medium registered childcare places for the future. During the last fiveyears, we have seen 
more Welsh childcare staff leaving the childcare sector to become Learning Assistants within 
schools, teachers or nurses. Childcare for many is seen as the beginning of a career progression 
for individuals.  

We saw a reduction in the number of Meithrin playgroups in Carmarthenshire before the 
pandemic in 2019/20 – 57 compared to the previous year’s 60. The number of children attending 
Meithrin playgroups has continued to reduce steadily and reduced from 1,606 to 1,307 in the 
same period. These reductions could be due to parents accessing full day care rather than 
sessional childcare, especially following the introduction of the Childcare Offer for Wales to 
support working parents by providing fully funded childcare for 3- to 4-year-olds. Increasingly, 
Cylchoedd have changed their registrations from sessional to Full Day Care providers, responding 
to the needs of working parents and some are expanding to provide services during the school 
holidays.  

There has been an increasing trend in the number of pupils in Carmarthenshire who transfer from 
the Meithrin Playgroups to a Welsh language school. Despite a fall in 2019/20 to just over 93% 
from 94.5%, there has been an increase from 87% in 2015/16. A number of initiatives may have 
contributed to this – Cymraeg 2020, the Welsh Government target to have 1 million Welsh 
speakers by 2050, the Carmarthenshire Welsh in Education Strategic Plan and Camau – the Welsh 
skills programme to support the childcare sector staff to develop and adopt new Welsh language 
skills to give early years children every opportunity to play through the medium of Welsh. 

The last Childcare Sufficiency Assessment (2017-22) identified that insufficient childcare places 
were available, particularly Welsh medium places. The next CSA in 2022 will consider the results 
of the recent Welsh Government National Parent Survey which received over 800 responses from 
Carmarthenshire parents. It will look to assess the adequacy of the current provision, ensuring 
that all needs are catered for in terms of language delivery and location. This has come to the 
forefront as some parents’ needs have changed due to the impact of the pandemic. With more 
people now working from home, this could change the demand for and desired location of their 
childcare. 

Tudalen 99



32 
 

 

National Well-being Indicators  
Noted below are the National Well-being Indicators and associated local indicators relevant for 

the New Beginnings life stage   

 

Ref No Indicator Definition Year Rank 
out of 22 

Authorities 

Score, Welsh average and 

Change since last result 

Carms Welsh Avg 

1 % of low-birth -weight babies  2020 3rd 4.9% 6.1% 
Improved 

2a Male life expectancy at birth 2017-19 12th  78.3 
years 

78.5 years 

Improved 

2b Male inequality gap in life expectancy 

Sloped Index of Inequality (SII) in years 

2015-17 16th  7.3 years 7.4 years 

Declined 

2c Female life expectancy at birth  2017-19 12th 82.4 
years 

82.3 years 

Improved 

2d Female inequality gap in life expectancy 

Sloped Index of Inequality (SII) in years 

2015-17 5th  3.4 years 6.1 years 

Improved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

Evidence from our survey in terms of a Prosperous Carmarthenshire, highlights lack of sufficient and affordable 

childcare as a key concern. Of those who responded that were expecting or had a baby in the last six months, 

accessing childcare was a key element in them being able to access a variety of employment opportunities and 

the possibility of starting a new business, so that they could provide a stable income for their families. 

Tudalen 100



33 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C
H

IL
D

H
O

O
D

 

Tudalen 101



34 
 

Strong Foundations 
Our childhood years are key to our development and can impact on our well-being in future 

years, having lifelong effects on many aspects such as obesity, heart disease and mental health, 

to educational achievement and economic status. Giving every child the best start in life is crucial 

to reducing inequalities across our lives so early intervention is key to long term health and well-

being.  

It is therefore paramount that we create school environments that nurture children’s behavioural 

and educational attributes from early on as this can impact well-being across the spectrum for 

children as they grow. 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

As part of our involvement work, we met virtually with seven local schools. Many of the pupils were members of 

School Councils, Eco Councils and were Global Goalkeepers. Our conversations were structured around happiness, 

things that were important to them and their hopes for the future.  

Schools play a key role in supporting pupils through their life journeys. As part of our involvement work, our pupils 

explained the support that is in place, including the use of Speakr, as an online tool to support them to note their 

feelings and concerns. Pupils were very clear on where they could access support and the importance of their local 

school and education through the Covid-19 came through clearly. Our children explained that their schools and the 

staff had given them a sense of safety and security during the lockdowns.  

Our local conversations support the detailed research undertaken by the Children’s Commissioner for Wales, 

Coronavirus and Me: A nationwide survey of the views and experiences of children and young people in Wales 

(January 2020). Almost 20,000 children and young people took part in the research.  

The research outlines how difficult life has been for our children and young people and specific feedback from 

children aged 3-7 notes how they missed their friends, families, and experiences.  

Our young people noted the importance of their local communities, and the majority could see themselves staying 

in their respective areas in the future.  

“Dwi’n caru fy Ysgol, a dwi eisiau gwneud yn siŵr bod fy mhlant i yn ddisgyblion yma.”  

Climate change was a concern and pupils in our rural areas explained that they had enjoyed seeing nature 

reappear during the first and second lockdown and that seeing aeroplanes in the sky again had reminded them of 

the action needed.  

 

Tudalen 102



35 
 

Welsh-medium Education  

The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) for Carmarthenshire 2022-2032 aims to ensure 

significant growth in Welsh-medium education and training, to increase the number of people of 

all ages who become fluent in Welsh, English and other Languages.  

The vision is for Carmarthenshire to be a county where the Welsh language is a living, prosperous 

and vibrant language in bilingual, strong, and sustainable communities. Welsh-medium education 

is of course fundamental to the Welsh Government's National Strategy, Cymraeg 2050: A million 

speakers.  

According to annual School Census figures at pupil level, the percentage of 7-year-olds assessed 

in Welsh (first language) has remained relatively constant between 2016 (54%) and 2021 (58%), 

with the 2021 cohort at 57%. For 11-year-olds, the percentage has remained constant between 41% 

and 45%, with the 2021 percentage being 45%. For 13-year-olds (year 9), the percentage has 

remained constant between 41% and 43%, with the 2021 percentage being 42%. 

Childhood challenges   
Adverse Childhood Experiences  

We need to seek to build healthy relationships, families, and communities. During school years, 

children experiencing Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) may display a heightened emotional 

state of anxiety and consequently be distracted from educational pursuits, resulting in poor 

educational attainment.  

Early in 2016, Public Health Wales published the first Welsh ACEs study. Examples of ACEs include 

physical or sexual abuse or where there is mental health, parental separation or alcohol or drug 

abuse in the household.  

The study revealed that 47% of adults in Wales have suffered at least one ACE in their childhood 

and 14% suffered four or more. It highlighted the correlation between harmful experiences in 

childhood and poor well-being outcomes in adulthood.   

The study results show that compared to those who experienced no harmful experiences, people 

who experienced four or more harmful experiences in childhood were four times more likely to 

experience high-risk drinking in adulthood, be six times more likely to be a smoker and five times 

more likely to have low mental well-being. ACEs are associated with poor educational 

achievement and the development of a wide range of other harmful behaviours too, such as risky 

sexual behaviour, violence and crime. They are also linked to the development of diseases such as 

diabetes, mental illness, cancer, and cardiovascular disease, and ultimately to premature 

mortality.  

Factors that can reduce the risk of outcomes related to poor well-being in those who suffered 

four or more ACEs include positive relationships, community support and cultural connections. 

Tudalen 103



36 
 

There is also a strong correlation between sports participation in childhood and lower lifetime 

mental illness. 

Home Office funding from the ‘Early Action Together Programme’ benefited our county by 

creating a foundation of understanding across partner agencies including a common use of terms 

and understanding of resilience factors to counteract the effects of ACEs. This was achieved 

through multi-agency training events. We have adopted a strengths-based approach when 

undertaking assessments to ensure that resilience factors feature within any intervention plan.  

Children known to social services 

The number of children who are looked after by the local authority in Carmarthenshire is the 

lowest in Wales. In March 2021, there were 148 Looked After Children, which equates to 40 per 

10,000 population compared to the Welsh average of 115. This number has significantly reduced, 

steadily decreasing year on year since 2014 as more families have been supported to stay 

together. This has been despite the increased challenges faced due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

This is positive news as looked after children are more likely to have been exposed to multiple 

risks associated with poor long-term outcomes before entering care and are more likely to report 

emotional well-being issues and perform less well at a school.   

The poorer mental health and well-being outcomes for these young people can be a result of 

past experience of abuse, neglect and difficult relationships as well as the potential trauma of the 

process of being taken into care and experiences such as frequent or short notice moves 

between placements. 

The fall in numbers is a result of our continued focus on preventative work, with robust systems 

in place to keep children safe in the home, preventing them from being looked after where 

possible and appropriate.  

The number of children on the child protection register was 78 at March 2021, a similar number to 

the previous two years. It does tend to fluctuate and had increased to 95 at end September 2021, 

with recent times proving to be very challenging due to the pandemic. Families have faced 

difficulties in relation to safeguarding issues when under lockdown and adhering to restrictions. 

Domestic abuse has also increased substantially during 2020/21 and features highly in cases of 

children on the register. The register is important in monitoring children at risk of harm and 

maintains a safety plan that keeps them safely at home wherever possible. 

A reduction has also been seen in the number of Children in Need – now known as being in 

receipt of care and support. These children are getting support from the statutory service but 

remain living at home. In our county, there were 764 on 31 March 2021 compared to 809 in 31 

March 2016 when the last Well-being Assessment was completed. The latest figure was an 

increase from 589 in March 2020 after a period of year-on-year reductions. This is attributable to 

the pandemic as families have faced increased struggles, including an increase in domestic 

incidents resulting in more children needing support.  

 

Tudalen 104



37 
 

During the pandemic there was also less availability of preventative services providing face-to-

face support for families and so there has been a decrease in the number of cases being able to 

be stepped down from statutory services in 2020/21 to these preventative services. Numbers 

have also increased as the nature of referrals for support has been increasingly complex so 

statutory support has been needed and some families opted out of receiving support during the 

pandemic waiting for restrictions to lift and therefore resulting in an increased number of cases 

at the end of March 2021. 

Child Poverty 

Carmarthenshire is now seeing its highest levels of child poverty in recent years which is a similar 

pattern across Wales. In 2020, 31.3% of our children aged up to 15 were living in households with 

less than 60% of the average income before housing costs. This was just above the Welsh average 

of 30.6%. An increasing trend has been seen over the last six years and our levels have remained 

higher than the Welsh average each year. 

Two of our wards – Tyisha and Glanymor – were in the top 20 worst wards for childhood poverty 

in Wales, both at 41.3%. 

The number of children living in workless households is 8.8%; a rate which has seen significant 

annual reductions in recent years from over 15% in 2015. The county is still ranked 2nd lowest and is 

well below the Welsh average of 13.5.  This is a positive trend with more households seeing 

parents in employment but should not be treated in isolation of the fact that more children are 

living in poverty within our county, regionally and nationally in Wales.  

Figure 7: Graph of children living in poverty 

0.26

0.27

0.28

0.29

0.3

0.31

0.32

0.33

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire

Tudalen 105



38 
 

 

Figure 8: Graph of children living in workless households. 

However, it is concerning to see Future Trends Report data to 2020 which shows that the rate of 

poverty in households, where all working age adults are in work, has increased. This shows a 

concerning trend that being in work does not necessarily pull households out of poverty. 

Research shows that children growing up in workless households experience consistently poorer 

outcomes in relation to educational attainment and cognitive ability than their counterparts 

whose parents are always working. Those whose parents had been out of work for two or three 

years while they were growing up spent more time not in education, employment, or training 

between ages 15 to 18 than children from households of different employment compositions 

(Schoon, 2012). However longitudinal evidence indicates that there are often several risk factors 

at play which create negative outcomes and well-being for children from workless households. It 

is therefore important that we view these issues in context to gain a holistic understanding and 

therefore develop accurate responses and preventative measures to challenges posed to the 

well-being of children now and in future. 

Childcare  

Our latest Childcare Sufficiency Assessment in 2019 identified that cost was the most important 

factor (27.8%) identified by the 33% of parent/carers who were not using registered childcare. This 

number is an increase on the 27% who did not access paid childcare in the 2017 assessment. Costs 

15.4
12.4

10.2
8.7 8.8

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
PERCENTAGE OF CHILDREN LIVING IN WORKLESS 

HOUSEHOLDS

Carmarthenshire Wales

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

Poverty was a key issue affecting the well-being of year 7 pupils from Ysgol Bro Dinefwr  and was the 

second highest concern about their local area as they grow up, as seen later in this section.   

Tudalen 106



39 
 

have continued to increase, both pre- and post-pandemic with rises in wages and pensions and 
also additional cleaning and equipment needed since 2020. 

Family and friends provided informal childcare for those 33% of parent/carers who were not using 
registered childcare.  

Consultation carried out with 102 grandparents highlighted the growing role grandparents are 
playing in providing informal childcare with 90% providing childcare on a regular basis - 41% 
looking after their grandchildren once or twice a week and 33% providing childcare for 3 or 5 days 
a week. 43% stated they were providing more childcare this year compared with the previous 
year. 

Growing up healthy 
Play  

The latest Play Sufficiency Assessment in 2019 identified that playing outside was the most 
popular setting for children. Although the top place to play was at home/friend’s house (79%), 
other preferred places were the garden or friends’ garden (68%), play area (58%) and local grassy 
area (42%).  

However, it was also found that 56% of the parents/carers worry about their children’s safety but 
still let them out to play and 31% often worry and find it difficult to let them out to play. This was 
an increase from 44% worrying about their child’s safety in the 2016 assessment. 

The main barrier to playing and hanging out reported by parents of year 5 and year 8 pupils was 
road traffic (70%), then litter/dog mess/broken glass (33%) and other adults (27%). 

Encouraging children to play and providing high quality play opportunities for all children also 

contributes to developing resilience which in turn will help mitigate the negative effects of ACEs. 

Play is also a means of reducing the inequalities between children living in families that can afford 

costly play activities and those that cannot.  

Obesity 

Carmarthenshire is the 5th worst county in Wales for levels of childhood obesity. The latest figures 

show a concerning spike in obesity in children, following a downward trend which had been seen 

since 2014/15. In 2018/19, almost a third of children aged 4 to 5 were overweight or obese. Our 

figure of 30.4% for this period showed a 4% rise on the previous year and was 3.5% higher than the 

Welsh average.     

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

In our conversations with primary school children, being able to play safely in open green spaces was very 

important. This was consistent in pupils in both rural and urban schools and many noted that this was very 

important for them and their families for the future. 

Tudalen 107



40 
 

Obesity causes ill health including diseases of the heart and circulation as well as some cancers 

and causes early death. There is an increased rate of Type 2 diabetes among obese children. 

Evidence shows that 80% of children who are obese at age 4-5 years remain obese into 

adulthood. This is a particular concern as estimates suggest that being overweight reduces life 

expectancy by about three years and being obese reduces life expectancy by 10 years. 

Obesity is more prevalent in deprived areas. A 6.2% difference is seen between the prevalence of 

obesity in children of this age living in the least deprived quintile compared to those living in the 

most deprived quintile in Wales and there is evidence that this gap is growing. 

One of the key ways to tackle levels of obesity in children is encouraging them to engage in 

physical activity. The Sports Wales School sports survey in 2018 showed an increase in the 

percent of children in Carmarthenshire taking part in at least three occasions of activity per week 

from 46.9% in 2015 survey. We improved our ranking from the 16th to the 10th highest in Wales. 

When taking part in team sports, our pupils noted that they felt free and without worry.  

Childhood concerns 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

Our youth service engaged with 160 year 7 pupils from Ysgol Bro Dinefwr in October 2021 to talk to them about their 

views on well-being.   

When asked about what had affected their well-being, COVID was the issue that had had the most impact with 142 

mentions. The young people had felt isolated and very lonely and were affected by not being able to see their friends 

or leave the house due to lockdown restrictions. They had enjoyed having quality family time but were concerned 

about future lockdowns.  

Climate change was the next highest area of concern (130) with strong views expressed. The engagement was 

carried out as part of a wider discussion surrounding climate change on that day. We are confident that the views of 

our young people are well represented but context should be considered in this instance.  This was followed by 

depression and anxiety (102) from being in lockdown and not communicating with others. There were also concerns 

raised about fitting in with their peers. Other issues raised were bullying and cyber bullying over social media (93), 

poverty (76) with some saying that their families needed more money for food and clothes and body dysmorphia 

(67) with boys and girls talking about how they feel about their body or appearance. 

Bullying also affects young people’s mental health, emotional well-being, sense of self and their ability to connect to 

society which, if extreme and sustained enough can have lifelong consequences. In addition, the complicated bi-

directional nature of mental health and bullying, i.e., some young people are bullied as a result of their mental health 

issues and some young people develop mental health issues as a consequence of being bullied, means that some of 

the most vulnerable children are at increased risk of long-term impacts. 

Tudalen 108



41 
 

National Well-being Indicators 
Noted below are the National Well-being Indicators and associated local indicators relevant for 

the Childhood life stage: 

Ref 

No 

Indicator Definition Year Rank 
out of 22 

Authoriti

es 

Score, Wales average and 

Change since last result 

Carms Welsh Avg 

5a Proportion of children aged 4 to 5 years who are 

overweight or obese 

2018-

19 

18th  30.4% 26.9% 
Declined 

5b At least three occasions per week of extra-

curricular and community sport. (Schoolyears 3-

11) 

2018 10th  47.7% 47.6% 
Improved 

7a Average “Capped 9” score for all Year 11 Pupils 2019-

20 

6th 367.2 score 354.4 score 

Improved 

7b Average “Capped 9” score for non-FSM (Free 

School Meals) Year 11 pupils 

2019-

20 

6th  384.2 score 376.2 score 

Improved 

7c Average “Capped 9” score for FSM Year11 pupils 2019-

20 

6th  315.6 score 298.9 score 

Improved 

7d % gap between FSM and non FSM pupils on the 

“Capped 9” score 

2019-

20 

7th  19.6% 22.9% 
Improved 

18b % of children living in workless households 2019 2nd   8.8% 13.5% 
Improved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

When asked what help they needed, getting support was the key suggestion (135) and although they mentioned 

different people, they could get support from, they were very unsure who to reach out to. It was clear that the 

young people needed one trusted adult that they could confide in (73).  

 A concerning issue raised was wanting more money for food (71) as several young people were worried about the 

effect it was having on their family. Help with bullying (62) was also an issue and stemmed back to having a trusted 

person to talk to. Outdoor learning (52) was suggested as they felt they could express themselves better and learn 

more. 

When asked what their biggest concerns were about their local area as they grow up, the top issue raised by the 

young people was jobs (118) followed by poverty (112) and the environment (105). Other concerns discussed were 

housing (21) and community spaces (12). 

The biggest problem facing the world right now was climate change according to the young people (122), followed 

by nature emergency (20), famine (15) and war (3). 

Tudalen 109



42 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Y
O

U
T

H
 

Tudalen 110



43 
 

Growing independent adults 
The transition from childhood to adolescence is a challenging one which brings a number of 

changes and fluctuations in our experiences and understandings of well-being and its 

influences. A key part of adolescence is forging our identity and individuality which is 

influenced by a multitude of relationships, external factors, hormones, hobbies and interests.  

Having plenty of opportunities to gain new experiences and learn new things throughout 

adolescence. 

Broadening horizons 

Support for our school children to gain the skills and learning they need to lead happy, healthy, 

fulfilling lives has continued in difficult circumstances. 

Welsh-medium education  

Carmarthenshire continues to develop robustly as a bi-lingual authority with inspiring Welsh-

medium education offered to all learners. Schools, families and learners are effectively supported 

as they progress along the language continuum, with Welsh Language centres providing a high 

standard of Welsh language immersion support. 

Examinations 

Formal examinations for A Level, AS and GCSEs for summer 2021 were cancelled by the Welsh 

Government. Schools and colleges used their professional judgement to determine learners’ 

grades for qualifications, using a range of evidence from the specification content their students 

had been taught. As 2021 was a unique year due to the pandemic, this will need to be taken into 

consideration when comparing results.  

In 2021, there was an increase in A Level entries and an upward trend across all grades. An 

increase in the number of grades being awarded A* or A was seen with a rise of 8.5% at A* and 

5.3% for A*-A grades. 

Whilst there was a decrease in the number of AS entries in 2021, the level of attainment sees an 

upward trend in comparison to 2019. Similarly, an upward trend was evident in 2021 across all 

grades at GCSE. 

The last published average score based on the best 9 exam results including English, Welsh and 

maths, for Year 11 pupils during 2019/20 (2018/19 Academic Year) is 367.2 where girls had an 

average score of 378.5 and boys 356.4. This is an improvement on the previous year and well 

above the Welsh average of 354.4 

While the educational attainment of children in Wales has improved overall, children living in 

deprivation show poorer attainment on all performance measures and is particularly prevalent in 

the attainment of grades A*-A. The gap is seen to increase as pupils progress through school. The 

gap between the average score for best exam results of young people living in deprivation 

(measured by eligibility for free school meals) and young people who do not receive free school 

meals is measured. The percentage gap in our county was 19.6, the 7th lowest, compared to the 

Tudalen 111



44 
 

Welsh average of 22.9. The work is ongoing to look at how to measure progress and well-being 

across all our learners and this continues to be a development area.  

Compulsory education is changing in Wales. The changes will fully come into force from 

September 2022 with a new curriculum and it will be interesting to see the impact of this on 

attainment levels. The new curriculum is being introduced as attainment levels in Wales and 

levels of achievement do not meet expectations or societal needs. The new curriculum aims to 

provide young people with the skills they will need in the future. The delivery of this ambitious 

change will be an opportunity to prepare young people for the world of work through the 

development of softer skills. The involvement of businesses with schools will be essential going 

forward and will build on the successful Business Class and Education Business Exchange 

programmes.  

Elective Home Education  

During the pandemic, an increase has been seen in the number of children being home schooled 

in Carmarthenshire. Numbers are currently at 455 (November 2020, up from 284 in November 

2018. Welsh Government funding has been utilised to provide additional support for electively 

home educated learners. Welsh lessons are also continuing to be offered to home educated 

young people and are split into three groups: Beginners, Intermediate and Advanced. Feedback 

from parents notes that the pandemic has given them confidence to fully transition to elective 

home education.  

Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)  

Work continues towards ensuring all young people are in education, employment or training. 

Reducing the number of NEET young people reduces the effects of poverty and the wider cost to 

society of support services, reliance on benefits and offending. It is essential to maximise the life 

opportunities of children, ensuring that as many young people as possible can progress to school 

Sixth forms, Further Education Colleges, apprenticeships, training provision or work. 

During 2019/20 Academic Year, 32 school leavers (1.8%) were recorded as NEET. While this still 

remains just above the Welsh average, it is half the number reported in the last well-being 

assessment of 69 pupils (3.4%). This significant reduction could be attributed to the Youth 

Engagement and Progression Framework which focuses on the early identification of ‘at risk’ 

individuals and promotes targeted support for those that need it.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

Carmarthenshire school pupils were also comparative to the national average in terms of their general well-being, 

with an average of 85% of pupils being satisfied with their lives. About three quarters of pupils felt generally 

supported in terms of their emotional needs, with 35% of pupils reporting having been bullied, which is also directly 

comparable with the national average. Bullying and cyber bullying over social media was also a key issue raised by 7 

pupils from Ysgol Bro Dinefwr when asked about what affected their well-being as part our engagement work in 

2021. More information on the engagement event is available in the childhood section.   

Tudalen 112



45 
 

First Independence  
Throughout adolescence, as curiosity meets opportunity, there are various experiences on offer 

to young people, not all of which can have positive outcomes or effects on well-being.# 

Smoking  

Responses from the 2017/2018 School Health Research Network (SHRN) suggest that the 

Carmarthenshire figures on all school pupils who currently smoke less than once a week were 

very low, at 2%. The highest percentage was 5% for year 11 pupils.  

E-cigarette use was significantly higher with 43% of year 11 pupils noting that they had tried them. 

Alcohol use was the only behaviour where Carmarthenshire pupils admitted to a slightly higher 

use than the national average, with 49% of all pupils admitting to drinking alcohol, 3% higher than 

the national average. This figure is as high as 78% in year 11 pupils, again 3% higher than the 

national average. Cannabis use was very low with only 3% of all pupils reporting having used 

cannabis in the last 30 days. However, 18% of all pupils noted that they had been offered cannabis 

in the last 12 months.  

Substance misuse  

The pandemic and resulting lockdowns and schools’ closures had a significant impact on numbers 

getting support for substance misuse due to the reduced access to young people and schools 

and colleges being one of their main sources of referrals.  

During 2020/21, the young person substance misuse service in Carmarthenshire received 45 

referrals for young people aged under 18. This was a 37% drop on the 71 referrals received for the 

same period in 2019-20.  

During the same reporting period, there were 37 young person assessments, which was a 40% 

reduction on the 62 assessments completed in 2019/20.   

The two main substances recorded for referrals received by young person services during the 

same reporting period were cannabis which came top at 52%, followed by alcohol at 28%. 

On average our brains keep growing and developing into our mid-20s. Taking drugs and drinking 

alcohol can affect the development of the brain, particularly the prefrontal cortex, the area of 

the brain used for decision making. Taking drugs at an early age increases the chances of 

becoming addicted. There is also an increased chance of developing health problems later in life, 

such as heart disease, high blood pressure and sleep disorders.  

Sex and relationships  

According to the SHRN data from 2017/18, a quarter of the county’s school pupils in year 11 

reported having had sexual intercourse which was the same as the national average, and the 

most common age for having had sexual intercourse for the first time being 15 years of age, the 

same as the national average. 15% of those who had had sexual intercourse reported having had 

sex for the first time when younger than 14, which is 5% lower than the national average. 

Tudalen 113



46 
 

While pregnancy and parenthood are positive choices for some young people, for others, 

unintended pregnancy can have negative social and psychological consequences. Having children 

at a young age can affect the health and well-being of young women and can limit educational 

and career prospects. Socio-economic disadvantage can be both a cause and an effect of young 

parenthood.  

The teenage pregnancy rate is decreasing in Carmarthenshire and is currently at 14.8 per 1,000 

females aged under 18. This figure is below the Welsh average of 18.9.  

 

Making Connections  

‘Hanging out’ with friends is a significant factor in young people experiencing positive well-being 

with 84% of year 8 pupils stating that ‘hanging out’ made them feel happy in the Carmarthenshire 

Play Sufficiency Assessment 2019. Hanging out also made young people feel active (52%), excited 

(44%) and free (40%). 48% hang out with friends most days and 28% hang out a few days a week. 

The most popular activity (69%) was chatting and being with friends followed by playing ball 

games (37%) and exploring (30%). Young people liked to hang out outside – their favourite place 

was on the streets near home (24%), football field or sports pitch (12%) and local grassy area or 

field (11%).  

Physical activity has positive impacts on lifetime well-being but during COVID, a general decrease 

has been seen in children’s levels of physical activity. The decrease has been comparatively greater 

for children living in low-income areas. 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

A total of 6436 or 67% of students across 12 schools in our county took part in a School Health Research Network 

(SHRN) survey in 2017/18. The survey was also underway in our schools during September 2021, with results 

expected during 2022. Data covered pupils’ behaviours in the following areas - food, fitness and physical activity, 

well-being and emotional health, substance use and misuse and sex and relationships. The data from 2017/18 

generally revealed that Carmarthenshire pupils were comparable to the national average in almost all areas 

surveyed. 

The survey found that younger pupils were generally more likely to engage in healthy behaviours regarding food, 

fitness and physical activity. For example, 65% of year 7 pupils were likely to eat breakfast every day compared to 

46% of year 11 pupils. Younger pupils were also more likely to be physically active and less likely to be sedentary.  

This reflected the national average across the age groups. 

 

Tudalen 114



47 
 

Young carers  

According to the 2011 Census, 1,803 young people (aged up to 24 years) were providing unpaid care 

in Carmarthenshire. Research has shown that young carers are more likely to achieve poorer 

educational outcomes – which is a key determinant of later well-being. Carers aged 16–18 are 

twice as likely to be NEET compared to their peers. In Wales in 2020, 45% of young carers 

reported that they were not able to spend enough time on their schoolwork and 58% felt that 

their education was suffering. 36% of young adult carers said that their education was suffering, 

impacting on their hopes and opportunities for the future. 

In 2019/20, 87 young carers were supported by social services. Figures dropped to 71 in 2020/21, 

during lockdown, but referrals have significantly increased since April 2021. During 2020/21, the 

Carers Trust Crossroads West Wales service, who work with young carers referred on to them by 

social services, supported 151 young people aged under 18 and 63 young adult carers aged up to 

25. The service also noted a decline in referrals during the initial stages of the pandemic, but the 

support required by those already on the service rose significantly and has continued to stay high 

despite the ease in restrictions. Many have found their caring role to have increased during this 

time due to the increased isolation and the loss of respite care. This is only being added to as 

more families are being asked to take on higher caring roles to ease the pressures on hospitals 

and cover for the lack of social care packages available. These pressures are largely showing 

themselves in a decline in the mental health of young carers, with them feeling more isolated and 

a significant number struggling to balance their caring role with their education. Research has 

shown that almost half (45%) of young adult carers suffer from mental health problems. 

Common issues that have been raised by young carers upon referral are anxiety as well as a sense 

of isolation and a lack of understanding amongst their peers and teachers. In response, 

Crossroads West Wales recently established a team to visit schools and colleges to educate the 

staff and pupils about Young Carers and the support that can be offered to them, with the aim of 

improving knowledge and understanding.     

Migration of young people 

The average migration of the population of Carmarthenshire over the last 5 years: 
 

Table 1: Net Migration 

The only age range that has had an average net migration over the last five years is in the 16-24 

range. Young people often look further afield for education and training as they approach their 

Age Range In Out Net 

0-15 581 487 +94 

16-24 910 990 -80 

25-44 1273 1180 +93 

45-64 756 565 +191 

65+ 405 307 +98 

Tudalen 115



48 
 

20s. Flying the nest is a normal part of becoming an independent adult; however, it is important 

to attract young people to learn and work in the area. According to the Future Trends Report, it is 

forecasted that there will be a reduction in the population of under 25s across the country as well 

as in Carmarthenshire. The ageing population forecast for Carmarthenshire could result in less 

people available to work in the care sector. 

Involving our Young People  

The importance of access to training and jobs was highlighted by the Carmarthenshire Youth 

Council in Autumn 2020, in the annual ‘Make Your Mark’ event, the biggest UK youth consultation.  

Young people voted online to cast one vote for the topic they cared about most in their county 

and a topic which was the most important for them in the UK. In Carmarthenshire, the local issue 

with the most votes (21.3%) were access to training and jobs. ‘Jobs’ was also the top concern raised 

by Year 7 pupils from Ysgol Bro Dinefwr when asked about their concerns about their local area as 

they grow up. More information on the engagement event is available in the childhood section.   

The second local issue was homelessness with 20.9%, see the adulthood section for further 

information. Domestic violence was the 3rd highest with 17%. The Carmarthenshire Youth Council 

has also voted for domestic abuse as their priority issue for this year, wanting to research the 

topic to give a young people’s perspective on the issue.  

Domestic violence has a devastating impact on the well-being of children and young people that 

can continue to affect their adult lives. This has been recognised by the recent Domestic Abuse 

Act, which recognises children as victims themselves. 

Mental Health  

Concerns over mental health has also been a key issue raised by young people. In the ‘Make Your 

Mark’ consultation, supporting their mental health was voted the topic of most importance to 

the UK, by a third of our Youth Council representatives.  During the well-being session held with 

the Police & Crime Commissioner’s Youth Forum with five young people from Carmarthenshire, 

mental health featured highly in the comments made. When asked what well-being means to 

you, two of the four comments made by the young people were around mental health – one 

about looking after their mental health daily and the other related to the importance of mental 

health during the pandemic when they had not been able to socialise and interact and learn from 

others. When asked about concerns for the future, one of the five people spoke about mental 

health and needing the tools to recognise when things may be going wrong. 

Research by the Children’s Commissioner for Wales shows that the COVID-19 pandemic has 

impacted significantly on the emotional and mental health of young people. When agreeing with 

the negative statements as part of the survey, 63% of 12–18-year-olds agreed that they were 

worried about falling behind with learning and 61% agreed that they were worried about how the 

pandemic could affect their qualifications.   

It is also important to highlight that many 12–18-year-olds did not know where to go for help and 

support for their mental health, beyond their friends and family. 

Tudalen 116



49 
 

Other than mental health, when asked about future concerns, the other four members of the 

Police & Crime Commissioner’s Youth Forum, spoke about the environment – beaches, climate 

change, wildlife and pollution. Taking action on the Climate Emergency was also voted for by the 

Carmarthenshire Youth Council as their 3rd highest topic of most importance in the UK, with 9% of 

the votes, as noted in the Adulthood section. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

The following concerns are reflected in the prosperous section of the 2021 Well-being Survey. Lack of affordable 

housing (57%) (346 responses) and suitable job opportunities (52%) (312 responses) were the two biggest concerns 

amongst respondents on the economy in the future. Respondents aged 16-24 stated their concerns were: 

 Lack of suitable job opportunities (71%) 

 Lack of training and skills that fit the needs of the local economy job/market (71%) 

 Lack of affordable housing (71%) 

Although the loss of young people from the county was not a specific concern, if the relevant training and skills 

required in the current economic market is not met along with suitable job opportunities and affordable housing 

then we will suffer from losing our youth to other areas/countries. 

The two biggest concerns in relation to the thriving language and culture of Carmarthenshire is house prices being 

unaffordable for local people 72% (413 recipients) and young people moving out of the local area/Wales to 

study/work 56% (322 recipients)  

The other key issue for the UK, raised by our Youth Council was ‘free university’ which was second with 23%. 

 

Tudalen 117



50 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
D

U
LT

H
O

O
D

 

Tudalen 118



51 
 

Our adult years are when we are physically mature and at our physical peak. During adulthood, 

we start to settle down and become more stable emotionally. As we progress through 

adulthood, we become more autonomous, further establishing ourselves as an independent 

person with our own life. 

Well-being  
Well-being findings results from the Office of National Statistics (ONS) 2019/20, so pre-pandemic, 

show that there is an increase in people feeling anxious and a decrease in the number feeling 

happy and satisfied, levels which are worse than those for across Wales and the UK. The number 

feeling life is worthwhile has a general upward trend and is currently equal to the scores for 

Wales.  

Making ends meet 
On 31 March 2021, the Socio-economic Duty came into force in Wales. The overall aim of the duty 

is to deliver better outcomes for those who are living in less favourable social and economic 

circumstances than others in the same society – this means that they are facing socio-economic 

disadvantage.   

The Duty places a legal responsibility on bodies when they are taking strategic decisions to have 

due regard to the need to reduce the inequalities of outcome resulting from socio-economic 

disadvantage. 

Income  

The median annual household income of £28,186 for Carmarthenshire is below that of the Wales 

figure of £28,999. Figures in Carmarthenshire are now the 9th lowest in the whole of Wales, 

compared to being the 7th lowest when the last Well-being Assessment was completed five years 

ago. Our gross disposable income per head in 2018 was £16,813, 12th lowest compared to rest of 

Wales but below the Welsh average of £17,100. 

Income levels vary across the county, and it is important to note the gap of over 22% between the 

highest and lowest Community Area figures; from Community Area 2 with £31,455 which is well 

above Carmarthenshire and Wales figures, to Community area 6 with £25,770. The disparity 

between levels of poverty across the community areas ranges from 30% of households living in 

poverty in Community Area 2 compared to 39.5% in Community Area 6. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 119



52 
 

Of the 10% (190) most deprived Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) in Wales, 5 are within our 

county. The top 4 are within Community Area 6 and the 5th in Community Area 5: 

LSOA Carmarthenshire 

Ranking 

Wales 

Ranking 

Community Area 

Tyisha 2 1 17 6 

Glanymor 4 2 68 6 

Bigyn 4 3 84 6 

Tyisha 3 4 144 6 

Llwynhendy 3 5 172 5 

 

Poverty  

Over a third of our households continue to live in poverty which is a concern.  However, it is 

positive to note that the percentage of households in Carmarthenshire living in poverty has 

reduced by 2% in the last five years since the last Well-being Assessment. In 2020, 33.8% (27,691) 

of Carmarthenshire households were living in poverty, and this continues to be above the Welsh 

average of 32.9%. This ranges from 30% in Community Area 2 to just under 40% in Community area 

6.  

 Poverty and deprivation have serious detrimental effects, impacting across all aspects of well-

being. It limits the opportunities and prospects for children and young people and damages the 

quality of life for all. Poverty is too often an intergenerational experience which poses a 

significant threat to experiencing positive well-being both now, and in the future.  

Department for Work and Pensions data on the percentage of each age group in Wales living in 

relative income poverty shows that 22% of working-age adults in Wales (2017-2020) were living in 

relative income poverty. This percentage remains steady in Wales but is still above that seen for 

other UK countries. 

As food prices, energy bills and general costs continue to rise across the UK it is becoming harder 

for households to stay above the poverty line. This is compounded by the fact that wages are not 

rising to meet the extra costs. This means that more working households are experiencing 

poverty. 

An estimated 144,504 households are at risk of being in fuel poverty in Wales, spending between 

8% and 10% of their household income on fuel costs. This is equivalent to 11% of households in 

Wales. Data is not held regarding the estimated levels of fuel poverty by local authority area.   

Our conversations with representatives from the Gypsy and Traveller Community have noted 

concern in terms of fuel poverty amongst the population. Fuel poverty is an area we would like to 

explore further, especially in context of our protected groups. 

Tudalen 120



53 
 

Employability   

Increasing employability is fundamental to tackling poverty and reducing inequalities. It has a 

significant impact on our health and ability to function in our everyday lives. 

Information from the Annual Population and Labour Force Survey March 2021 shows the 

percentage of employment in different sectors within the county. 

1: Managers, directors and senior officers 10% 

2: Professional occupations 19% 

3: Associate professional & technical occupations 11% 

4: Administrative & secretarial occupations 8% 

5: Skilled trades occupations 12% 

6: Caring, leisure & other service occupations 14% 

7: Sales & customer service occupations 9% 

8: Process, plant & machine operatives 7% 

9: Elementary occupations 10% 

Data from Business Register and Employment Survey (BRES) 2019 indicated that the majority of 

posts in Carmarthenshire are full-time (63%) and the leading employment industries are human 

health and social work activities and wholesale and retail trade, repair of motor vehicles and 

motorcycles and manufacturing.  

Commuting patterns from the Annual Population Survey 2020 indicate that 62,600 people live and 

work within Carmarthenshire, 16,200 commute out of Carmarthenshire for work and 14,900 

commute into the area for work. These figures could, of course, have changed dramatically since 

the pandemic. 

According to Stats Wales in March 2021 Carmarthenshire has the third lowest rate in respect of 

employment compared to the rest of Wales.  Employment rates have reduced from 71.7% in 

March 2020 to 68.6% (year ending March 2021). This is amongst the lowest in Wales and below 

the national average of 72.2%. However, these figures are not unexpected and demonstrate how 

challenging this year has been for the labour market, the highest employment rate is located in 

Monmouthshire 78.3% 

The difference between the employment rate of disabled and non-disabled residents in 

Carmarthenshire continues to be a concern. The employment rate for those without a disability 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

In our conversations with the Carmarthenshire Disability Partnership, members discussed economic and social well-

being and highlighted the fact that many disabled people were continuing to shield and did not have the confidence 

that public spaces were safe. This was seen as a potential barrier to employment and in accessing services for support to 

return to employment and training. 

Tudalen 121



54 
 

(77.1%) continues to be considerably higher than those with a disability (49.7%). This is a disability 

employment gap of 27.4 percentage points which is below the national average disability 

employment gap of 30.8.  This is an improvement on the situation five years ago when the gap in 

the employment rate was 34.4 percentage points locally. 

Working age population  

Carmarthenshire has seen a downward trend of working aged people who are economically 

active since 2017 from 79% to 74% in 2020. This is opposite to the increase seen across Wales. This 

decline in our county significantly increased in 2020, which is likely attributable to the pandemic 

whereby labour force participation has been under significant stress. Perceptions of key sectors 

and work in general have been detrimentally affected with wider national level research 

suggesting that Wales will continue to see rising economic inactivity levels through to 2023. The 

Future Trends Report forecasts a continued decline in the working age population (16-64) in 

Wales of 2% by 2043.  

Job creation and retention  

On a positive note, we saw an increase of 23% in the number of jobs created in Carmarthenshire 

between 2001 and 2018 - the third highest increase across Wales and the highest seen in the more 

rural counties. The main sectors recruiting before 2018 were health and social care, retail, 

education and tourism and hospitality, what could be classified as the foundational economy 

sectors. This aligns with the fact that there are less workless households in Carmarthenshire than 

previously. It should be noted that this has not come with a decrease in levels of poverty as 

poverty in households has increased even where all working age adults are in work - as noted in 

the childhood section. 

However, challenges have been seen during the pandemic in this area with a cumulative total of 

26,900 jobs supported by the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme at various times since it started. 

The furlough rate decreased at a consistent rate from January 2021. There were still 2,960 

individuals on furlough in the county in August 2021.  

Recruitment levels, however, in recent months have exceeded pre-pandemic levels as the period 

of economic recovery has progressed. Vacancies are concentrated in Health and Social Care, 

Tourism and Hospitality, Transport and Logistics and Construction. A number of key sectors are 

reporting that they are currently experiencing acute recruitment challenges with anecdotal 

evidence suggesting that attributable reasons include the pandemic, Brexit, perceptions of 

sectors and unattractive working conditions. 

 

Claimant count 

The number of people claiming Job Seekers Allowance in the county has declined in the last 12 

months from 0.8% of the working age population in September 2020 to 0.4% in August 2021. The 

highest rate in that month of 0.8% was located in Felinfoel situated in Community Area 5 and 

Garnant within Community Area 3.   

Tudalen 122



55 
 

The Jobseekers’ Allowance claimants for the community areas for August 2021 indicates that 

Community Area 1 had the lowest rate in the county with 0.2% whereas Community Areas 3 and 6 

had a higher rate, 0.6% and 0.5% respectively, compared to the figure for Wales of 0.3%. 

Well-being in work 

Being happy in work is important for well-being and the latest figures in April 2019 showed that 

the percentage of people moderately or very satisfied with their jobs was 79% - but this was over 

3% lower than both the figure two years previously and the Welsh average. This ranked 

Carmarthenshire the 6th lowest in Wales. A number of factors can affect job satisfaction 

therefore it is difficult to determine the exact cause of falling rates in the county.  

Qualifications and training  

In Carmarthenshire, we have seen an increase in the level of qualification at National Qualification 

Framework (NQF) Level 3 since 2015 to a figure of over 62% in 2020, which is just above the Welsh 

average. For those reaching NQF level 4 or above in Carmarthenshire, figures have increased 

slightly from 33.7% in 2015 to 40.7% in 2020, just below the average in Wales (41.4%). The number 

with no qualifications is continuously reducing, with Carmarthenshire ranked 10th in 2020 with 

6.6% compared to the Welsh average of 7.3%. 

Increasing qualifications levels will continue to be a key policy area for Welsh Government as 
skills levels are a key determinant of economic growth. A number of interventions delivered via 
EU Structural Funds within the county such as ReAct, Cam Nesa and Skills for Industry are 
focussed on upskilling and reskilling individuals. Additional factors could be possible improved 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

As part of our involvement work, we met with service users and providers from our Armed Forces community. 

Organisations from across the region noted an increase in contact from Veterans in terms of job retention, 

furlough and the economic impact on their households. Many service users had faced challenges in terms of their 

mental health and some situations had triggered Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD). It also became apparent 

that even though Veterans want to retrain, the pandemic has had an impact on educational and training 

opportunities. Service providers highlighted that the full impact of the pandemic had not yet been seen and that 

the Armed Forces community needs clear and consistent advice through the transition period, as life returns to a 

level of normality.  

There have also been delays in applications for financial support and benefits, which has led to an increase in 

requests for emergency support for food and basic staples for families. Delays have also been seen across the 

region in terms of housing benefit which could potentially lead to an increase in homeless Veterans owing to 

emergency provision in housing coming to an end. 

Tudalen 123



56 
 

progression routes within education, increased investment in lifelong learning and targeted 
interventions for young people aged 16-24 at risk of becoming NEET.  
 

Lifestyle choices 
Lifestyle choices impact on our future health and well-being. Carmarthenshire residents compare 

well to the rest of Wales in some areas such as smoking and physical activity, however, there are 

a number of lifestyle choices where we compare poorly.  

Exercise and physical activity  

We have the 4th lowest figure for reporting exercise or physical activity for less than 30 minutes 

per week – 27.6% compared to the Welsh average of 33%. We rank 6th highest at 35.1% for the 

percentage participating in sporting activity 3 times or more a week but this remains below the 

Welsh average of 32.2%. 

Smoking  

We have seen a year of year drop in smoking rates since 2013/14 and now rank 6th with only 16% of 

our population smoking in 2019/20. However, there are areas in the Health Board area where 

rates of smoking have not changed, for example, in parts of Llanelli, 27-31% of the adult 

population still smoke. Smoking rates are nearly 3 times higher in the most deprived fifth of 

Wales compared to the least deprived fifth of Wales. The gap has narrowed in the last 8 years. 

The reduction in smoking is due to legislation in Wales to reduce access to and visibility of 

tobacco products and reduce exposure to tobacco smoke in enclosed spaces and cars carrying 

children and increased investment in smoking cessation services in both health care and 

community settings. 

A slight reduction has been seen in the use of e-cigarettes by adults to 6.7%. We remain the 7th 

highest in Wales, just above the Welsh average. 

We have the 5th worst figure in Wales for the percentage of adults who have fewer than two 

healthy lifestyle behaviours at 12.4% and worse than the previous result of 8.8% and the Welsh 

average of 10%.  

Obesity  

Being overweight and obese has an impact on life expectancy, morbidity, mortality and health 

and social care costs. According to the National Survey for Wales Carmarthenshire has the 7th 

highest number of adults who are overweight or obese (18/19&19/20) of 63.6%, this is an increase 

of almost 6 percentage points from a result of 57.8% in 16/17&17/18. The current figure is well 

above the Welsh average of 59.9%. When looking at the obesity rates in isolation, we have the 6th 

highest obese adult population – 28.2% (18/19&19/20), an increase of almost 6 percentage points 

since 16/17&17/18.  

Tudalen 124



57 
 

Mild obesity is associated with the loss of 1 in 10 potential disease-free years during middle and 

later adulthood (40-75), and severe obesity the loss of 1 in 4. This increasing loss of disease-free 

years as obesity becomes more severe occurs in both sexes, among smokers and non-smokers, 

the physically active and inactive, and across socio-economic groups. 

Studies have also demonstrated a relationship between adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) 

and adult obesity. Persons who had experienced four or more categories of childhood exposure, 

compared to those who had experienced none, had 1.4-to-1.6-fold increase in physical inactivity 

and obesity. As with children, higher incidences of overweight and obesity are also found in 

adults who live in more deprived areas. 

Before the pandemic, national initiatives encouraged more activity and participation in healthy 

diet and raising awareness of health risks, such as ‘Healthy Weight, Healthy Wales’.  

Obesity is an area we would like to research further.  

Alcohol and substance misuse  

In 2018/19 & 2019/20, we had the 3rd highest percentage of adults in Wales who drink more than 

the recommended guidelines. This was an increase of 1.5 percentage points to 21.5 since 2017/18 

& 2018/19 compared to the Welsh average of 18.6%.  

As a result of the pandemic and subsequent lockdowns, a reduction was seen in both the number 

of referrals received for support with alcohol and drug issues and the number of assessments 

completed in 2020/21 compared with the figures for 2019-20. 

In 2020/21, the number of alcohol referrals was 540, a reduction of 3.75%, with 525 assessments 

undertaken, 10.5% fewer than in 2019/20. For drug referrals, the figure was 553, 1% lower and 552 

assessments were done, a reduction of 2%.  

Impacts were also seen on the number of cases where treatment was completed. During the 

same period, the figure was 431 for alcohol, which shows an 18% reduction, and 389 for drugs, a 

fall of 12%. 

The three main substances clients were referred into adult drug and alcohol services for support 

with, in 2020/21 were alcohol, which came top at 35%, followed by heroin at 13.4% and cannabis at 

10.2%.  

Part of a community  
Well-being is affected by the area in which you live and according to the 2020/21 National Survey 

for Wales almost 90% of our residents are satisfied with their local area as a place to live. Over  

90% are satisfied with their ability to get to/access the facilities and services they need which is a 

significant increase on the previous figure of 75% in 2018/19 now ranking 4th out of the 22 local 

authorities in Wales. 

Tudalen 125



58 
 

Community Cohesion  

According to the 2020/21 National Survey for Wales, our residents feel they live in cohesive 
communities with almost 70% agreeing that there is good community cohesion in their local area, 
an improvement on the previous figure of just over 50% in 2018/19and very close to the Wales 
average. Almost 80% feel that people in their local area treat each other with respect, higher than 
the Wales average of 75%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

Recent consultation in 2020 with representatives from a number of sectors of the community showed overall positive 

opinions towards current community cohesion in Mid and South-West Wales. Focus groups were held with Black, Asian 

and Minority Ethnic communities; EU (non-Welsh) citizens, rural and isolated communities, first language Welsh 

speakers, Gypsy / Traveller Communities, Syrian Refugees, LGBTQ+ people, disabled people and/or people with health 

conditions and young people. 77% of the interviewees referred to community cohesion as good. It was recognised that 

there was potential for improvement and perceived “tensions”, or “problems”.  

63.7% perceived Brexit as having a negative impact on community cohesion in Mid and South-West Wales. However, 

positive attitudes were shown towards the impact of COVID-19 on community cohesion although there were concerns 

about the longevity of the positive impacts, with concerns around different rising negative impacts. 67.3% of survey 

respondents believed that community cohesion had either improved (40%) or not changed (27.3%) since the beginning 

of the pandemic.  

As part of our Well-being Assessment consultation work, our Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic residents were equally 

concerned with threats of extremism, prejudice and hate crime. In terms of community cohesion, our Lesbian, Gay, 

Bisexual and Transgender community noted concern regarding community resources being closed, prejudice and lack 

of investment in their local community. 

Raising concern about unfair treatment and to Report a hate crime were the top two things that Carmarthenshire 

residence would consider doing to help make things fairer for everyone in their community when asked as part of the 

2021 Well-being Survey. 

38%

44%

45%

53%

64%

64%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Campaign for equality, diversity and inclusion (208)

Help an organisation, which supports people from
different backgrounds, beliefs and / or are disabled…

Find out information about people from different
backgrounds, beliefs and / or are disabled (247)

Talk to someone from a different background, belief
and / or who is a disabled person (292)

Report a hate crime (352)

Raise a concern about unfair treatment (356)

WHAT WOULD YOU CONSIDER DOING TO HELP MAKE 
THINGS FAIRER FOR EVERYONE IN YOUR COMMUNITY?

Figure 9: Survey Responses 

Tudalen 126



59 
 

Hate Crime  

Victim support has seen an 11% increase in the number of people seeking support after 

experiencing a hate crime during 2020-21 compared to 2019-20. The majority of these incidences 

were race and nationality related (71%), an increase on the previous year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Safety  

The county remains one of the safest areas in the UK and Dyfed-Powys the safest Police Force 

area in England and Wales with the lowest crime rates. Of 22 local authority areas, 

Carmarthenshire ranks 9th safest with a rate of 65.18 crimes per 1,000 population. 

There were 12,305 crimes reported in the county in 2020/21, a slight increase of 1% on the previous 

year. Increases were seen in relation to violence against the person – up from 5,147 to 5,770; drug 

offences – up from 680 to 896; and public order offences – from 852 to 1,211. It is noted that the 

increase in violence against the person is primarily due to a change in recording of harassment 

and stalking offences. The increase in drug offences will have been affected by the increased 

proactivity by the police during the lockdown period.  

Of the 10% (190) most deprived Lower Super Output Areas (LSOA) in Wales, six are within 

Carmarthenshire in terms of Community Safety. This domain considers deprivation relating to 

living in a safe community and covers actual experience of crime and fire, as well as perceptions 

of safety whilst out and about in the local area. Not surprisingly these cover the three community 

areas of our biggest three towns of Llanelli, Carmarthen and Ammanford.  

 

 

 

Figure 10: Hate Crime Figures; source Victim Support 

0

10

20

30

40

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep 

2020 2021

HATE CRIME INCIDENTS ACROSS 
THE DYFED-POWYS REGION (2020-

21)

Carmarthenshire Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire Powys

1 1

21

4

Disability Gender Identity
(Trans)

Race Sexual
Orientation

HATE CRIMES BY TYPE IN 
CARMARTHENSHIRE - SEPTEMBER 

2021

Tudalen 127



60 
 

LSOA Carmarthenshire 

Ranking 

Wales 

Ranking 

Community 

Area 

Tyisha 2 1 17 6 

Carmarthen Town South 1 2 19 1 

Elli 2 3 30 6 

Ammanford 2 4 43 3 

Tyisha 3 5 86 6 

Glanymor 4 6 97 6 

Crime Volumes 2020-2021 by Community Area  

Crime Volumes by Community Area 
2020/2021 Community 

Area 1  
Community 

Area 2 
Community 

Area 3 
Community 

Area 4 
Community 

Area 5 
Community 

Area 6  
Arson & Criminal Damage 207 143 217 174 207 412  

Burglary by Dwelling 39 39 48 63 57 143  

Burglary by non-dwelling 21 12 15 20 14 40  

Drug Offences 188 87 155 77 116 271  

Miscellaneous Crimes against 
Society 

58 41 54 34 47 77  

Possession of a weapon 21 5 17 3 13 29  

Public order offences 236 109 188 157 160 322  

Robbery 1 1 1 3 3 14  

Sexual offences 56 52 75 59 50 110  

Theft 345 139 147 126 187 464  

Vehicle offences 26 33 53 29 61 112  

Violence against another person 805 601 829 836 1915 1616  

Annual Total 2003 1262 1799 1581 2830 3610  

 

According to the 2020/2021 crime figures received from Dyfed Powys Police, Community Area 6 

has the highest level of recorded crime with violence against a person being the highest of all. 

The area includes the wards of Bigyn, Elli, Glanymor, Hengoed, Lliedi and Tyisha which are located 

in some of our most deprived areas within the county. 

Domestic abuse 

Police recorded crime figures note that there were 2,779 victims of domestic abuse between 1st 

November 2020 and 31st October 2021 in Carmarthenshire. While the reported crime figures 

remain similar to the previous year, there has been a significant increase in the numbers of 

referrals to specialist domestic abuse services since the pandemic. This includes a high focus on 

community-based support and support for children and young people. Numbers have steadily 

increased throughout the pandemic and show no sign of decline. 

This is an area we would like to research further.  

The pandemic has had a significant impact on the nature and severity of domestic abuse. 

Lockdown and restrictions resulted in isolation and cut individuals off from support networks, 

Tudalen 128



61 
 

opportunities for disclosure and access to face-to-face support. We cannot begin to estimate the 

true impact this has had on the lives of individuals, or the increased levels of abuse suffered. It is 

evident that throughout the pandemic and during periods following the easing of restrictions, 

referrals have spiked and continue to rise. It is not known if this a temporary increase in demand 

or will be a sustained increase in need. 

There has been an increased complexity in support needs seen with mental health issues 

contributing to individuals needing longer and more intense periods of support. Housing has also 

been identified as a key issue in increasing complexity around support due to a lack of move on 

and second stage accommodation and a general lack of domestic abuse specific supported 

accommodation that meets diverse and individual needs of individuals. 

The specialist support providers are managing to meet current demand through increased 

capacity funded by very short-term funding via a variety of sources and the good will of their 

committed teams. However, this is not sustainable. The impact on the workforce of the increased 

caseloads and in complexity also needs to be considered. There is a national issue around 

recruitment into the field with a lack of qualified candidates. 

Feeling safe  

However, importantly, in terms of public perception of safety, the National Survey for Wales 

2018/19 figures show that the number feeling safe was 76.1%, ranking 7th of the 22 Local 

Authorities. That figure was lower than the previous survey in 2016/17 of 76.9% when we ranked 

6th.Responses from the Well-being survey indicated that people Feeling safe in their home and in 

their community were the highest things people valued about living in their communities.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSES 

In response to their concerns in respect of community cohesion, respondents stated that they were mainly 

concerned with: 

 • Lack of investment in their communities (72%) 

• Community resources being closed down (66%) 

• The voice of local communities not being heard (54%) 

Respondents from Community Area 5, those aged 45-54 and those who were expecting or had a baby in the last 6 

months were mainly concerned with ‘feeling unsafe and afraid of crime’. 

65.7

63.7

61.4

45.7

27.5

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Feeling safe in my home

Feeling safe in my community

People in my local area treating each other…

Feeling part of my community

Having opportunities to influence local…

PERCENTAGE OF THE THREE THINGS PEOPLE 
VALUE MOST ABOUT LIVING IN THEIR 

COMMUNITY

Figure 11: Survey Responses Tudalen 129



62 
 

A slight increase has been seen in the number of incidents of fire with 543 incidents during 2020/21 

compared to 530 the previous year. The main incident category was ‘outdoor refuse’ related with 137 

incidents, of which 90 were categorised as deliberate. These outdoor refuse related fires have 

continuously increased over the last 5 years and are now higher than the number of dwelling fires. The 

higher number of incidents take place between March and May.  

The number of deliberate fires is on the increase in Carmarthenshire with 220 incidents in 2020/21 

compared to 143 in 2016/17. The highest number of deliberate fires in Carmarthenshire in the 

latest figures was in Community Area 6 which consists of Glanymor and Tyisha wards. The areas 

of Carmarthen Town North, Cynnwyl Gaeo, Cilycwm and Llandovery, in Community Areas 1 and 2, 

have no records of deliberate fires for this period, although the numbers in Community Area 2 are 

on the increase as shown in the table below: 

 

Deliberate Fires by 

Community Areas 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Total per 

Community Area 

over 5 years 

Community Area 1 10 18 14 15 10 67 

Community Area 2 8 7 15 9 22 61 

Community Area 3 24 23 28 29 46 150 

Community Area 4 22 20 42 20 27 131 

Community Area 5 34 51 47 65 41 238 

Community Area 6 45 59 48 58 74 284 

Total 143 178 194 196 220  

Table 2: Deliberate Fires 

The number of road traffic collisions in Carmarthenshire have been consistently high at around 

200 per year between 2016/17 and 2019/20 but a significant reduction was seen during 2020/21 

when the figure was 117. This coincides with the number of people Killed or Seriously injured on 

Carmarthenshire roads which halved to 55 during 2020/21. COVID-19 lockdown during 2020 has 

had a dramatic effect on this data with far less traffic on the roads. However, despite the 

reduction, we still have the 3rd highest number of people killed or seriously injured on our roads 

which, at 3468km or 2155 miles, is the second largest network and the third most trafficked in 

Wales. As the number of vehicles return to pre-pandemic volumes, it is likely that an increase in 

the number of people killed or seriously injured will be seen.  

Housing  
Affordable housing  

Good quality affordable homes promote health and well-being, helping to build sustainable 

communities and create places where people want to live.  

 

 

Tudalen 130



63 
 

There is a need for more affordable homes in the county. There has been a 27.1% increase in the 

average house price for a first-time buyer in Carmarthenshire between 2016 (£112,497) and 2021 

(£142,919).  

This is an area we would like to research further.  

Data published by the ONS (August 2021 in terms of chargeable second homes in 

Carmarthenshire, indicates that there 1,087 properties in the county. The highest proportion (19% 

of properties) being in St. Ishmael, Llangyndeyrn and Llanddarog, followed closely with 18% in the 

areas of Laugharne, Llansteffan, Llanboidy and Whitland. 

Homelessness  

Homelessness, and the risk of homelessness, poses significant risk to a person's well-being, 

negatively impacting on emotional, mental and physical health as well as indicating poor social 

and economic circumstances. In the youth consultation, ‘Make Your Mark’ in 2020, 

representatives from the Carmarthenshire Youth Council, stated that homelessness was their 

second highest topic they were concerned about locally. For more information on this 

consultation, see the youth section. 

In Carmarthenshire, 423 households were threatened with homelessness during 2019-20. The 

number of households successfully prevented from becoming homeless was 23.9 per 10,000 

which was the 4th lowest in Wales, a similar ranking to the previous two years.  This compares 

poorly with other areas in Wales and the Welsh average of almost 50%. 

The main reason for being homeless was Loss of rented or tied accommodation. Of these, only 

46% were successfully prevented from becoming homeless. Preventing homelessness is made 

more difficult due to the increasing number of people with complex housing issues such as 

substance misuse and also people are leaving it late to contact the authority for help when they 

are facing housing difficulties. 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

In our conversations with the Armed Forces community, Housing and Homelessness were key issues in terms of 

Social Well-being. Quality, affordable housing is a significant issue, especially in the context of Veterans who are 

ready to move on from supported housing. 

Tudalen 131



64 
 

Cultural activities  
Enjoying our spare time by doing the things that make us happy is key to ensuring we have 

positive well-being. Research has shown that, in general, people in Wales who regularly attend or 

participate in cultural activities are more likely to report higher subjective well-being and 

potential mental health benefits are seen.  

It is interesting to note that participation does vary according to a number of factors and those 

less likely to participate include those aged over 75, those on low incomes and people from Black 

or Asian backgrounds. However, Welsh speakers are more likely to participate in arts and sports 

events. 

Arts, museums and heritage  

There are many opportunities to engage in cultural activities in our county. In 2019/20, overall, our 

residents were active in pursuing such activities across Wales. Some increased levels of activity 

were seen compared to the last Well-being Assessment figures shown in brackets. 68% (60%) of 

residents attended art events, 69% (64%) visited historical sites and 42% (42%) visited museums. 

We rank 10th compared to the rest of Wales for participating in arts events and 8th for museum 

attendance. Residents are particularly active in visiting historic places, ranking 4th in Wales. The 

average number of visitors to Council-owned museums and theatres alone are over 250,000 per 

annum up to 2019/20 prior to the pandemic.  

It is noted, however, that when looking at more frequent participation in cultural activities, 

Carmarthenshire is ranked lower at 19th out of the 22 local authority areas. For the overall 

percentage of people attending or participating in arts, culture or heritage activities at least 3 

times in the past year, our figure is 64% compared to the Welsh average of almost 71%.  

In Wales, research on the experience of community groups during the pandemic suggests that 

place and interest-based groups can help alleviate loneliness and provide a sense of purpose.  

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

Members of the Carmarthenshire Disability Partnership highlighted the importance of arts and culture during the 

pandemic. Being able to access digital opportunities supported mental health and well-being and members valued 

the ReConnecting project through the 50+ Leadership Group. It’s also important to note that members were 

concerned about reintroducing face to face sessions, on grounds of safety but also in terms of venues being 

inaccessible and lack of transport. 

Tudalen 132



65 
 

Welsh language  

We have the most Welsh speakers in our county compared to the rest of Wales. It is interesting 

to note that the ability to speak Welsh is associated with higher subjective well-being. According 

to the last Census in 2011, which is the only source that gives a whole population figure, 43.9% 

(78,000) of our residents can speak Welsh.  

In 2019/20, over 30% said they spoke Welsh daily and speak more than just a few words. This was a 

slight increase on the previous figure and ranked us 4th in the data available from 11 local authority 

areas, three times higher than the average.   

The number of Welsh speakers, in Wales, aged 3 and over is projected to increase from around 

562,000 when the last Census took place to approximately 675,000 in 2049. 

Welsh speakers report higher life satisfaction than non-Welsh speakers. The reason why is not 

clear, however, it may be that geography plays a role, as areas with higher proportions of Welsh 

speakers tend to have higher average well-being scores and somewhat lower well-being 

inequality than less Welsh-speaking areas. Rural areas tend to have higher numbers of Welsh 

speakers and higher average well-being. 

When analysing our surveys responses, it is interesting to note that respondents who noted that 

their first language was English, also had various Welsh language skills. Of those, 21% could speak 

Welsh, 41% could understand Welsh, 18% could read Welsh and 13% could write Welsh. 

Of these respondents, 53% would consider learning or improving their Welsh language skills and 

24% would support their children through a Welsh medium education.  

Mental Health  
Mental Health  

Mental ill health is something that one in four adults will experience in the course of their 

lifetime. Our mental health affects how we think, feel and act. Looking after our mental health is 

as important as our physical health, the link between the two factors of health is becoming 

increasingly better understood. Poor psychological and emotional well-being can act as a barrier 

to full participation in society. Issues such as confidence, anxiety, fatigue and stigma can limit an 

individual’s capacity to interact with others or to find work for example. 

The number of admissions to mental health facilities in Hywel Dda University Health Board is 

between 750-900 admissions annually. During 2019-20, the number of admissions to HDUHB 

health facilities dropped by 20.5% to 717, from the previous year. This drop in admissions is likely 

due to service changes as opposed to a decrease in demand.  

Data from Public Health Wales is gathered from the National Survey for Wales and analysed 

according to the Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Well-being Scale. "The Warwick-Edinburgh Mental 

Well-being Scales were developed to enable the measuring of mental well-being in the general 

population and the evaluation of projects, programmes and policies which aim to improve mental 

well-being.”  Prof Sarah Stewart-Brown.  

Tudalen 133



66 
 

Well-being in Carmarthenshire has improved in line with the rest of the country. The 

Carmarthenshire score is representative of the average for Wales and the highest in the HDUHB 

region. 

 

Area 2016-17 2018-19 

Carmarthenshire 50.2 51.1 

Wales 50.9 51.4 

 

 

Figure 12: Mental Well-being 

Source: National Survey for Wales (Data Unit Cymru) 

While the proportion of adults worrying ‘a lot’ about their mental health and well-being increased 

across the board during the COVID-19 pandemic (from 13% in May 2020 to 31% in January 2021), 

those living in more deprived areas, women and younger people showed higher levels of worry. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 134



67 
 

Suicides 

We have one of the highest suicide 

rates in Wales – the fourth highest 

number of suicides per county with 

22 deaths in 2019. There is a general 

upward trend in male suicide rates, 

in the over 65’s and in children in 

young people. It is believed that 

rates are increasing, however we 

are awaiting more current data. We 

know from recent data published 

by the Mental Health Foundation 

that there has been an increase in 

suicidal ideation during the 

pandemic. 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

As part of the preparation of the Well-being Assessment and the Population Needs Assessment, WWAMH have 

facilitated many discussions with voluntary organisations, people with lived experience of mental health and carers.  

Carers/families are often excluded from the support planning and discussions but are often the main source of crisis 

and acute support. Some families/carers have felt the impact of many face-to- face mental health services being 

closed and having to cope on their own without any direct support. It has been difficult for carers and families to be 

separated from family members due to lack of visiting on mental health hospital wards over the last 18 months and 

some of the wards and individuals have struggled with access to video calls. 

People with lived experience of mental health have struggled with limited face to face support options and accessing 

services via phone and video call. Some of the reasons given for struggling with video calls, telephone calls etc is for 

some people who are hearing voices, seeing things, having delusions. It can be very difficult to work out what is real 

and what is not. Some people struggle with paranoia and feel people are talking about them, some struggle with the 

technology and lack confidence to use it.  

Another barrier is access to IT equipment and/or poor internet connection. Some people do not have the financial 

means for a telephone and internet connection and many places with free Wi-fi have been closed over the last 18 

months. There are also concerns that these locations may not be a safe, confidential place. However, others have 

reported that the use of video meetings and calls has helped increase access to mental health and social activity 

support and they have learnt new skills. Some people have reported that for them due to their anxiety about leaving 

the home that video calls have helped with accessing things that would previously have been inaccessible. 

Conversations also highlighted difficulty in accessing face to face GP appointments over the last 18 months for mental 

health support and difficulty of being able to discuss mental health needs over video or phone. 

There has been an increase in the complexity and intensity of the support needs of people coming forward for mental 

health support, so often a range of issues such as mental health and drug and alcohol issues, homelessness and 

mental health, and mental health and autism will be presented. 

Some people feel that social mobility and equality are worse over the last 18 months and the inequalities that have 

previously been identified have widened significantly. 

17

27

24

20
22 22

25

12

20

17

27

32

9

22

25
24

23
22

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

NUMBER OF SUICIDES IN 
CARMARTHENSHIRE

Figure 13: Suicide Rates 

Tudalen 135



68 
 

 
Suicide prevention is a priority for social care and safeguarding in Carmarthenshire.  

Carers 
The Census 2011 identified 23,989 unpaid adult carers living in Carmarthenshire – 13,390 were 

providing up to 20 hours of care per week, 3,485 were providing between 20-49 hours per week 

and 7,114 carers were providing care for more than 50 hours per week. Research suggests an 

increase in the number of unpaid carers in Wales from 1 in 6 people to 1 in 4 people.  

The demands of caring can place significant pressures on carers impacting both their physical and 

mental health and well-being. 72% percent of carers in the UK report mental ill health as a result 

of caring, and 61% report suffering from physical ill health. Carers in the UK also report being 

twice as anxious as the general population, are seven times more likely to be always or often 

lonely compared to the general population; and report a level of happiness at one-third of that of 

the general UK population. The relationship between caring and well-being differs, depending 

on, among other things, the type, frequency and duration of care being provided. 

Carers have been disproportionally affected by the pandemic with disruption to vital services and 

respite care. Lockdown restrictions have also meant that carers have been unable to rely on 

wider family members, friends and community support to help with caring responsibilities and to 

alleviate some of the pressures of providing significant amounts of care for their loved ones.   

Since the pandemic, the local support service has witnessed more carers reaching out for support 

and presenting with high levels of anxiety and stress. This increase has placed significant 

demands on services, with figures from October to March 2020-21 compared to the same period 

the previous year, showing the Carers Information Service seeing a 114% increase in referrals to 

537 and the Carers Outreach Service a 141% increase to 227.  

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

Further feedback from WWAMH, in terms of Crisis support and support out of hours (9am-5pm) is reported by 

some to be very difficult to access at times and others report poor response as a result of going to A and E due to 

suicidal thoughts and feelings and no aftercare support. Difficulties with Crisis and Home Treatment Teams at times 

and some people reporting not meeting criteria for any ongoing mental health support, assessed by CRHT but no 

follow up. Although some people report excellent support and care during the last 18 months with face-to-face 

support and follow up support and calls. 

Tudalen 136



69 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

Our involvement conversations were structured on the four domains of Well-being - economic, social, cultural and 

environmental. In discussion with our Welsh Language Strategic Forum, members highlighted the importance of the 

relationship between the economy and the Welsh language.   

To attract and retain our future generations, there needs to be a variety of employment opportunities and we must 

prepare our young people in terms of digital skills. Carmarthenshire has a good platform on which to build those 

opportunities and with developments such as Yr Egin, the future is promising in terms of building digital skills through 

apprenticeship and graduate opportunities.  

Members noted that we are over-dependant on public sector employment and that further investment is needed in 

the private sector and in social enterprises to ensure a variety of career paths. The importance of digital connectivity 

across the county was also highlighted. 

Survey Responses: 

Respondents that stipulated they provided caring duties stated that their main concerns were: 

• 'Talent drain' to other areas/countries 46% (61) 

• Loss of green spaces 57% (75) 

• Continued cuts to public services 77% (100) 

• Not having access to healthcare or other support that I need, as close to home as possible or available through 

technology 62% (81) 

• Lack of investment in our communities 73% (92) 

• House prices being unaffordable for local people 76% (95) 

• Families facing food poverty and concerned about affording food 69% (85) 

 

Respondents of a working age 16-64 stated that their main concerns for the county were: 

• Poor digital infrastructure 

• Ability to adapt and be resilient to climate change 

• People feeling threatened by those who may be different from them 

• Not being able to stay living in my own home 

• Lack of respect 

• Lack of Welsh education schools/colleges 

• Referrals of potential victims of modern slavery in Wales increasing 

 

Tudalen 137



70 
 

Environment 
Carmarthenshire is celebrated for its natural environment, including magnificent coastal sand 

dunes, quiet estuaries, steep wooded valleys and rugged uplands. Natural heritage – including 

the countryside, a particular geographical situation, and the interaction between people and 

nature throughout history – is an important component of cultural well-being. Evidence suggests 

that participating in outdoor recreational activities is associated with better subjective well-

being. The County has a rich network of ‘designated’ (protected) sites; protected at a national or 

international level, these include our Special Protection Areas and Ramsar sites, our National 

Nature Reserves, and Sites of Special Scientific Interest.  

Natural Resources 

Areas of focus for our county from the South West Area Statement are ensuring sustainable land 

management, reversing the decline of and enhancing biodiversity, reducing health inequalities 

and adapting to changing climate. Areas of focus from the Marine Area Statement are building 

resilience of marine ecosystems, nature-based solutions and adaptations at the coast and making 

the most of marine planning. 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW) published the second State of Natural Resources Report 

(SoNaRR2020) last year, in this they assess to what extent Wales is achieving the Sustainable 

Management of Natural Resources (SMNR). SoNaRR2020 concludes that the four long-term aims 

of the SMNR – stocks of natural resources are safeguarded and enhanced, resilient eco-systems, 

healthy places for people and a regenerative economy – are not yet being met. 

The natural environment is a huge part of what makes our county such a special place to live and 

work, it is our most precious inheritance but addressing the climate and nature emergencies 

presents us with one of the greatest challenges of our time.  

Both the climate crisis and nature emergency are interwoven challenges which cannot be solved 

in isolation. Climate change places our habitats and wildlife at risk, but if helped to recover, 

healthy natural habitats can store carbon, reduce flood risk, help prevent coastal erosion, 

improve people’s health and well-being, as well as maintain healthy soils, clean water and the 

pollinators needed for our crops – and therefore sustain us. 

The way we interact with our natural resources is vital to the social, economic and cultural well-

being of people living in Carmarthenshire today and the generations to come. We need to 

manage our natural resources sustainably because natural resources that are healthy and thriving 

are also healthier for people, their communities and for the economy.  

Sustainable Land Management 

Agriculture is a main land use in Carmarthenshire. Sustainable land management is hugely 

important for farmers, the environment, the local economy, our culture and communities. 

Intensive agricultural practices can damage soil structure which may then contribute to water 

pollution. This also has a negative impact on the status of our rivers and coastal waters. It is 

important to reduce any negative impacts of agricultural emission on the well-being of our 

residents. A key concern identified in SoNaRR2020 is new ammonia sources associated with the 

rapid expansion of the intensive poultry developments.  

It is important to consider the different impacts that farms can have on the landscape according 

to how they farm the land. A significant proportion of Carmarthenshire and Welsh farms are 

Tudalen 138



71 
 

family owned and non-intensive in nature. While work can still be done to support all farmers on 

decreasing their impact on the land and climate a focus should be on reducing intensive farming 

techniques.  

Air Quality 

Clean air is a critical natural resource and is essential in protecting not only our health, well-being 

and enabling greater physical activity, but also protecting Wales’ environment. Air pollution 

affects both urban and rural areas. No levels of air pollution are ‘safe’. Although air pollution has 

declined in recent decades, nitrogen-containing air pollutants continue to cause significant 

environmental harm. 

Air quality monitoring in Wales is primarily undertaken by local authorities and, through several 

national networks, managed by the Welsh Government.  

The effects of air pollution disproportionately affect those in deprived areas. 

Local authorities are responsible to declare Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) if national 

air quality objectives are not likely to be met. In Carmarthenshire, we have three such areas – 

Llandeilo (declared in 2011) and Llanelli and Carmarthen (both declared in 2016.) 

Encouraging the use of the cleanest modes of transport for freight and passengers, active travel 

and the creation of urban green space, are likely to be key in reducing emissions in the future. 

Wildfires 

Wildfires continue to be a problem, as noted in the section on Community Safety, and the areas 

most affected in our county by deliberate wildfires are: Brynaman, Y Garnant and Glanaman, 

Llanelli South and Bynea & Llwynhendy. Incidents of wildfires in our county have been more or 

less steady over the past five years. The environmental harm caused by arson is significant, 

including affecting water and air quality and damaging or destroying habitats, vulnerable plants, 

wildlife and grazing. 

Flooding 

Just over 15,000 properties in Carmarthenshire are currently at some level of flood risk from river 

or surface water flooding or coastal overflow. 3,151 properties are at high risk, 2,292 at medium 

risk and 9,713 properties are at low risk. Of these the vast majority are residential properties. 

Climate change will increase the number of properties, infrastructure and key services at risk of 

flooding. Places which do not currently flood will become at risk of flooding and those already 

known to be at risk will see the level of that risk become greater. Welsh Government have 

worked on an update to Technical Advice Note 15 (TAN15) which provides guidance for local 

planning authorities to reduce flood risk and develop away from high risk areas -  this will have far 

reaching consequences on planning and comes into force in 2023. 

Extreme weather events will become more common. Three key climate change impacts relative 

to flood risk are extreme rainfall events, river flood flows and sea level rise. 

NRW Communities at Risk Register (CaRR) identifies the 5 Carmarthenshire communities most at 

risk. Llanelli is considered a ‘Significant Flood Risk Area’ as it falls within the top 33 communities 

at risk in the country. Other communities most at risk are Ammanford, Ferryside, Llwynhendy and 

Dafen. 

Tudalen 139



72 
 

Waterways 

Our waterways provide us with important natural benefits, many of which contribute to the well-

being of local communities and the wider population. These benefits include providing clean 

fresh water for people to drink, for industry and for agriculture and clean rivers and seas for 

recreation and enjoyment. 

The waterways in Carmarthenshire are being impacted by several significant risks. The water 

quality is being affected by pollution from nitrates, phosphorus and sediments from agriculture 

and sewage. Between 2016-2020 there were 507 proven incidents of environmental pollution in 

Carmarthenshire. 86% were low impact events and 14% were high impact. Agriculture is the 

primary cause of environmental pollution, contributing to 135 of the totals; followed by oils and 

fuels, contributing to a further 67 events. 

The demand for water must be balanced with the importance of protecting water resources for a 

healthy environment. Water is taken from rivers in Carmarthenshire for public water supply, 

agriculture, industry, power generation and amenity use. 90% of the water taken in 

Carmarthenshire is for public water supply. 

Demand for water is increasing as the local population increases and tourism numbers increase. 

The impacts of COVID led to an even greater increase in tourist numbers but whether this 

increase will continue in future is unknown.  

Waste 

Living in a ‘disposable’ society where waste is continually generated increases pressure on the 

use of our natural resources. Once waste is generated it requires treatment at facilities that 

require land, consume energy and water and produce emissions to the environment. If waste is 

not handled and treated properly it can be harmful to ecosystems, biodiversity and the well-being 

of the population.  

Wales is transitioning to a high recycling nation which is a necessary component of a circular and 

regenerative economy. However, more needs to be done to prevent waste from being generated 

if we are to achieve zero waste and one planet living.  

Residents in our county have contributed to an excellent level of recycling, at 65% of waste. This 

figure can still be improved, and we now need to meet Welsh Government’s 70% recycling target 

by 2025.  

Fly tipping occurs at a significant level, with the total number of recorded instances in our county 

being the second highest in Wales, only after Cardiff. Fly tipping has seen a large rise in recent 

years, after previously reducing up until 2016, the figure has now quadrupled. This is the opposite 

of the trend seen in our neighbouring counties of Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire where they 

have seen a significant decrease in fly tipping instances. 

Ecosystem Resilience 

Ecosystem resilience is the capacity of ecosystems to deal with disturbances, either by resisting 

them, recovering from them, or adapting to them, whilst retaining their ability to deliver services 

and benefits now and in the future. Disturbances include (but are not limited to): habitat and 

species loss and deterioration; climate change; pollution and invasive non-native species. 

Tudalen 140



73 
 

Ecosystem Resilience is essential to the people and communities in Carmarthenshire, allowing us 

to benefit from clean air and water, provision of food, allowing us to be more adaptable to 

climate change and extreme events such as drought or flooding or simply through the value of 

landscapes.  

 Overall ecosystem resilience in Carmarthenshire is higher in the north east and south east of the 

county which reflects a greater diversity of semi-natural habitats in these areas. Resilience is 

lower in areas where the diversity, and connectivity of habitats is poorer. 

There are 81 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) in the county (excluding the area within the 

Brecon Beacons National Park), one of these also make up the three Special Protection Areas and 

eight Special Areas of Conservation, sites of international importance. The Brecon Beacons 

National Park also encompasses a further 15 SSSIs. Carmarthenshire has six Local Nature 

Reserves (LNRs). 

Carmarthenshire is also home to 35 priority habitats and approximately 230 priority species 

representing 40% of priority species in Wales.  

The condition of Carmarthenshire’s terrestrial, freshwater and marine SACs and SSSIs was 

assessed in a recent ‘baseline assessment’ (2021). This showed that the condition of the features 

within designated sites was largely unfavourable or unknown. The majority of these protected 

sites are in unfavourable condition which means that they could be improved.  

Significant pressures impacting on the resilience of ecosystems in Carmarthenshire include:  

Climate change - there is clear evidence of climate change in Wales. It will impact life in Wales at 

every level.  

Agriculture ‐ intensification of farming and an increased use of chemicals has put pressures on 

the surrounding environment.  

Development – of houses, roads, and industry is a big driver of biodiversity loss.  

Pollution – sourced from air, land or water causes significant environmental harm.  

Invasive non‐native species – from plants or animals drives the loss of native species and changes 

the landscapes in our county.  

It is clear that we need to gather more data on the condition of our designated features. Data on 

the condition of a broad habitat network is lacking. More detailed mapping will help us better 

understand our environment and improve upon previous areas of work such as in the 

connectivity and extent of habitats. A centralised approach and database will help improve this 

area of research.   

Climate Change 

If climate change continues along the path that we are currently experiencing, then we can 

expect significant changes in the next 30 years. Data presented in the Future Trends Report 

detail that by 2050 we are forecasted to see average summer temperatures rise by 1.34˚C. This 

could cause an increase in rain by 5% throughout the year, concentrated more in winter as 

summers experience longer periods of drought. Sea levels are forecasted to rise by up to 24cm in 

some areas of the country. Carmarthenshire will see the impact of these changes in all areas of 

life. If the trend continues to worsen the Wales we know could be significantly different by 2080. 

Tudalen 141



74 
 

Addressing these issues now will ensure the future of our future generations in Carmarthenshire 

and Wales.  

National Well-being Indicators 
When considering the national well-being indicators in Carmarthenshire that relate to the 

environment there is a mixed picture. Levels of nitrogen oxide pollution in Carmarthenshire is 

considerably below the average level across Wales. The capacity of renewable energy equipment 

installed compares favourably to other LAs. The rivers in Carmarthenshire are some of the 

highest quality in Wales (as of 2015).  

Areas that need significant improvement include the high number of businesses and homes at a 

high risk of flooding, as well as the high levels of domestic CO2 emissions per capita. 

 

Please see below the National Well-being Indicators and associated local indicators relevant for 

the Adulthood life stage 

Ref 

No 

Indicator Definition Year Rank 
out of 22 

Authoriti

es 

Score, Wales average and 

Change since last result 

Carms Welsh Avg 

3 % of adults who have fewer than two healthy 

lifestyle behaviours 

2018-19 & 

2019/20  
18th  12.4% 10.0% 

Declined 

3a % of adult smokers 2018-19 & 

2019/20 
6th   16.2% 17.4% 

Improved 

3b % of adult e-cigarette users 2018-19 & 

2019/20 
16th 6.7% 6.4% 

Improved 

3c % of adults who are overweight or obese (BMI 

25+) 

2018-19 & 

2019/20 
16th 63.6% 59.9% 

Declined 

3d % of adults who are obese (BMI 30+) 2018-19 & 

2019/20 
17th 28.2% 24.1% 

Declined 

3e % of adults who eat the recommended 

guidelines of fruit and vegetables 

2018-19 & 

2019/20 
13th  21.7% 24.3% 

Improved 

3f % of adults who drink more than the 

recommended guidelines 

2018-19 & 

2019/20 
20th 21.4% 18.6% 

Declined 

3g % of adults who reported exercise or physical 

activity for more than 150 minutes 

2018-19 & 

2019/20 
10th 56.6% 53.2% 

Improved 

3h % of adults who reported exercise or physical 

activity for less than 30 minutes 

2018-19 & 

2019/20 
4th  27.6% 33.0% 

Improved 

4 Levels of nitrogen oxide (NO2) pollution in the 

air 

2019 6th 5.9 8.9 
Improved 

8a % of adults with no qualifications 2020 10th  6.6% 7.3% 
Improved 

8b % of adults who are qualified to below NQF level 

2 and no higher 

2020 8th  11.1% 11.8% 
Improved 

8c % of adults who are qualified to at least NQF 

level 2 and above 

2020 10th  82.3% 80.9% 
Improved 

8d % of adults who are qualified to at least NQF 

level 3 and above 

2020 10th  62.7% 62.3% 
Improved 

10th 40.7% 

Tudalen 142



75 
 

8e % of adults who are qualified to at least NQF 

level 4 and above 

2020 Declined 41.4% 

9 Gross Value Added (GVA per hour worked 

(relative to UK average) 

2019 9th  75.9% 84.1% 
Available 

for 12 

“areas” 

Improved 

10 Gross Disposable Household Income per head 

(£) 

2018 12th   £16,813 £17,100 
Improved 

12 
Capacity (in MW) of renewable energy 

equipment installed 
2019 3rd  

316 MW 
4059 MW 

Improved 

14 Ecological footprint - Global hectares per person 2011 13th  
3.36 

3.28% No previous 

data 

15 
Amount (kg) of waste generate that is not 

recycled, per person 
2019-20 8th 

155 Kg 
173 Kg 

Improved 

17a Median Gross Weekly Full-time Earnings (£) 2020 3rd  
£572.10 

£541.70 
Improved 

17b 
Pay gender difference 
Difference (£p) between Male and Female median Gross 

Hourly Pay 

2020 11th 
£1.56 

£0.62 Declined 

18a 
% households living in poverty 
Household income is less than 60% of the GM median 

income 

2020 13th 

33.8% 
32.9% Declined 

19 % living in households in material deprivation 2019-20 8th  
11.3% 

12.9% 
Improved 

20 
% people moderately or very satisfied with their 

jobs. 
2019-20 17th 

78.9% 
82.1% 

Declined 

21 % of people aged 16-64 in Employment 2020-21 20th  
68.6% 

72.2% 
Declined 

23 
% who feel able to influence decisions affecting 

their local area.` 
2018-19 10th  

18.8% 
18.7% 

Declined 

24 
% of people satisfied with their ability to get to/ 

access the facilities and services they need 
2020-21 4th  

91.0% 
86.6% 

Improved 

25 
% of people feeling safe (at home, walking in the 

local area, and travelling) 
2018-19 7th  

76.1% 
71.0% 

Declined 

26 

% of people satisfied with local area as a place to 

live 

 

2020-21 10th 

88.6% 

87.4% Improved 

27 
% of people who agree that there is good 

community cohesion in their local area 
2020-21 13th  

68.6% 
69.4% 

Improved 

27a % who feel they belong to their local area 2018-19 16th  
70.4% 

72.4% 
Constant 

27b 
% who feel people in the local area from 

different backgrounds get on well 
2016-17 16th  

67.7% 
72.0% 

Declined 

27c 
% who feel people in the local area treat each 

other with respect 
2018-19 8th  

79.0% 
75.6% 

Improved 

28 % of people who Volunteer 2019-20 11th   
27.2% 

26.1% 
Declined 

29 Mental Well-being of adults 
(Average Score out of a maximum 70) 

2018-19 12th  
51.1  
score out of 70 51.4 
Improved 

31 
% of dwellings (those that are assessed by LA) 

which are free from hazards 
2018-19 1st  

90.5% 
60.9% 

Improved 

Tudalen 143



76 
 

32a 

Number of properties (homes & businesses) 

with a high or medium risk of flooding from 

rivers 

2019 18th   

1,481 
properties 

20,518 
properties 

New measure 

32b 
Number of properties (homes & businesses) 

with a high or medium risk of tidal flooding 
2019 19th 

868 
properties 

9,792 
properties 

New measure 

32c 

Number of properties (homes & businesses) 

with a high or medium risk of Surface Water 

flooding 

2019 17th 

3,094 
properties 

53,938 
properties 

New measure 

34 

Number of households successfully prevented 

from becoming homeless per 10,000 

households. 

2019-20 19th  

23.9% 
49.3% Declined 

35 

% of people attending or participating in arts, 

culture or heritage activities at least 3 times in 

the last year 

2019-20 19th 

70.8% 
82.1% Declined 

35a 
% Who have attended any arts events in Wales 

(in last 12 months) 
2019-20 10th 

68.3% 
70.4% 

Improved 

35b 
% Who have visited a museum in Wales (in last 

12 months) 
2019-20 8h  

42.1% 
42.5% 

Improved 

35c 
% Who have visited any historic places in Wales 

(in last 12 months) 
2019-20 4th  

68.7% 
62.5% 

Improved 

36 
% adults who speak Welsh daily and can speak 

more than just a few words 
2019-20 4th  

30.4% 
10.4% 

Improved 

37a Number of people who can speak Welsh. 
(Based on the Census) 

2011 1st  
78,048 

562,016 
Declined 

37b % of people who can speak Welsh.   
(Based on the National Survey for Wales) 

2019-20 4th 
37.4% 

16.0% 
Declined 

38 
% of people participating in sporting activities 

three or more times a week 
2019-20 6th  

35.1% 
32.2% 

Constant 

41a CO2 emissions per capita 2019 13th  
5.7 

7.6 
Improved 

41b Industry CO2 emissions per capita 2019 15th 
1.6 

3.5 
Constant 

41c Domestic CO2 emissions per capita 2019 20th 
1.8 

1.5 
Improved 

41d CO2 emissions of transport per capita 2019 16th 2.2 2.0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 144



77 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
G

E
IN

G
 W

E
LL

 

Tudalen 145



78 
 

The Welsh Government strategy published in October 2021 gives a clear vision of an Age Friendly 

Wales that upholds older people’s rights and promotes intergenerational society. Our aim is to 

support and promote age friendly communities where people can age well and that we celebrate 

the positive contributions of older people to society, as, for instance, volunteers, employees and 

unpaid carers.   

Population projections  

Welsh Government indicate via their population projections on Stats Wales that the population 

will continue to grow. Figures show that from 2018 to 2043 there will be over 5% increase in the 

total population for Carmarthenshire, slightly lower than the Welsh average. Whilst predictions 

for the under 15 and under 64 age group indicate a decline in population, there is an indication of 

an increase of over 32% for the people aged over 65 for the same period. 

The effects of an ageing population are being felt across Wales, from 2018 to 2028 it is projected 

that there will be less children in Carmarthenshire and significantly more of the population will be 

over 65. The healthy life expectancy of the population in Wales has remained relatively stable 

over the Civic Participation and Employment last decade (Future Trends Report). Considering the 

healthy life expectancy aids us in projecting the level of healthcare services that will be required 

in the future. 

 Base 

Year 
Projection years 2018-2028 2018-2038 2018-2043 

 2018 2028 2038 2043 number % number % number % 

Children (0-15)  33,220 32,281 31,401 31,980 -939 -2.8% -1,819 -5.5% -1,240 -3.7% 

Working age (16-64)  110,337 109,067 106,159 106,991 -1,270 -1.2% 4,178 -3.8% 3,346 -3.0% 

65+ age group  44,011 50,769 57,846 58,248 +6,758 +15.4% +13,835 +31.4% 14,237 +32.3% 

Total  187,568 192,117 195,406 197,219 +4,549 +2.4% 7,838 +4.2% 9,651 +5.1% 

Table 3: Projected Population Changes 

Everyone in our community has the right to age well. The World Health Organisation has created 

a framework to assist in ensuring the creation of age friendly communities. Within this there are 

eight domains to focus the assessment and planning of the creation of an age friendly 

community. The following sections cover these domains and lay out the situation as it currently 

stands in Carmarthenshire.  

Outdoor Spaces and Buildings 
Access to an outside environment and accessible public buildings have 

an impact on the quality of life of many older people. As people age it is 

important that there are outdoor spaces where older people can access 

to walk, with consideration given to potential mobility issues, availability 

of seating and access to public toilets.  

 

52% concerned if they 

were not able to spend 

time outdoors or in nature 

and green spaces 

Tudalen 146



79 
 

Access to outdoor spaces and nature has been proven to boost the well-

being of all people, this is also true for the elderly. Studies have shown that 

regular time spent outdoors can particularly benefit people suffering from 

dementia, helping to lower stress levels and blood pressure.  

For residents aged 65 and over completing our 2021 Well-being survey 52% said that ‘Not being 

able to spend time outdoors or in nature and green spaces’ to stay physically and/or mentally well 

concerned them and 62% said that ‘Access to nature and green spaces’ was the thing they most 

valued in their local environment. 

Participation in activity can help older people to sustain their health and well-being, living as well 

and as independently as possible within supported networks, focused around their own homes 

and localities. 51.3% of older adults in Carmarthenshire report they are in good health, below the 

all-Wales average of 56.1%. Carmarthenshire is the 5th lowest in Wales. Only 34.1% of older adults 

in Carmarthenshire are a healthy weight. 

Health Care services working alone can have as little as 10% influence on population health. Leisure 

services in Carmarthenshire are prioritising older people in their strategic planning.  

Transport 
Transport Links 

Private transport fulfils an often-essential function, particularly in rural areas. It is notable that of 

23,274 Carmarthenshire residents who do not have access to a car or van, 50% are aged 50 or over 

(2011 Census). Furthermore only 55% of those aged 80 or over have access to a car or van 

therefore public transport and community-based services are important support mechanisms to 

enable people to continue to live within their communities. Such services can mean the 

difference between a person staying independent at home or entering residential care. 

Availability of public transport was already a challenge for older people before the pandemic and 

that has been exasperated by loss of more services and fear of catching COVID-19 on buses and 

trains. One Carmarthenshire resident told Age Cymru:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Trying to visit my 85 year old father who lives in Kent. I do not drive so would have to travel by coach 

to go and see him. I panic just at the thought of the idea. (Female, 55-59)” 

62% valued access to 

nature and green spaces  

Tudalen 147



80 
 

Housing 
Housing stock suitability 

As we age, we require our housing to be warm, accessible and free of trip hazards. In Wales, 28% 

say that they will need help adapting their home as they get older. In the UK, more than 80% of 

homeowners aged 65 and over state that the want to stay living in their own home. Housing is an 

area that we would like to research further.  

Social Participation 
Communities 

The following Community Based Project was suggested as part of our Well-being Survey 

 

 

 

 

 

Loneliness 

Loneliness and social isolation have the same effects on mortality as smoking 15 cigarettes a day. 

17% of Carmarthenshire residents report being lonely and just 50.6% report feeling a sense of 

community. Social networks and friendships not only have an impact on reducing the risk of early 

death and illness but can also help individuals to recover when they do fall ill. 

It is doubly important for us to consider the impact isolation and loneliness has had over the 

course of the COVID-19 pandemic. While many of us have seen a return to some sense of 

normalcy it is important to remember that some of the most vulnerable in our society will still 

feel the need to shield.  

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

The lack of transport was the highest concern (56%) for over 65’s when asked about prosperity in the County as part 

of the Well-being Survey. Followed by lack of affordable housing (55%) and lack of suitable job opportunities (47%). 

Well-being survey question 19 - Looking ahead, what concerns you the most about prosperity in the county? (190 

respondents aged 65+) 

• Lack of transport 56% (107) 

• Lack of affordable housing 55% (105) 

• Lack of suitable job opportunities 47% (89) 

Trigolion yr ardal yn rhannu sgiliau, a chyd-ddysgu sgiliau garddio, coginio ac ailgylchu. 
People in the Community sharing their skills and learning new skills together such as 

gardening, cooking and recycling 

Tudalen 148



81 
 

A quote taken from an Age Cymru report on the Experiences of people aged 50 or over in Wales 

during the winter Covid-19 lockdown, and the road to recovery says:  

 

 

 

 

 

Respect and Social Inclusion 
Volunteering 

Promoting full economic and societal participation for older people is essential to the Welsh 

economy, as over 65-year-olds contribute over £1billion annually. Currently, 33.7% of 

Carmarthenshire adults' volunteer. 

During the pandemic some of the opportunities for volunteering became more challenging, 

leaving some older people without a valuable and social part of their lives.  

Across Wales 30% of people aged 65-74 volunteer, more than those in the 24-44 age cohort, of 

which 24% volunteer. It is clear that older people are active and valued members of their 

communities. Those who responded to our regional survey contributed thousands of hours of 

voluntary work to their communities.  

Older people who volunteer are less likely to experience loneliness and communities where there 

is good volunteer activity show good community cohesion. 

 

Civic Participation and Employment 
Working 

Over the last 5 years we have seen a trend of over 50s working across Wales, this is not true of our 

over 50s community in Carmarthenshire.  We are unsure of the reasons behind this; however, we 

can look into this further as part of Ageing Well Network.  

Mixing with other people. […] I have been on my own for over a year and not gone into a 
shop or other home. Going inside I find very difficult. Being in a crowd - too many people 

around me - I avoid. (Shielding female, 55-59) 

Tudalen 149



82 
 

 

Figure 14: Over 50s in work 

Our older generations provide us with a wealth of knowledge, expertise and experience. 

Harnessing the skills gained through both working and life experiences are significant attributes 

that older people can share with society. Sharing this knowledge and experience provides 

opportunities for intergenerational connectivity therefore building community cohesion as well 

as improving the emotional and social well-being of older people who may otherwise feel outcast 

and undervalued by society. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3
7

.3 3
8

.4

3
6

.6

3
4

.2 3
4

.8

4
0

.8

3
7

.9

4
0

.5

4
2

.1

4
0

.4

3
7

.1

3
6

.5

3
5

.6

3
4

.5

3
3

.4

30

32

34

36

38

40

42

44

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

PERCENTAGE OF OVER 50s IN WORK

Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire Wales

ENGAGEMENT RESPONSE 

In our Well-being Survey, almost half (47%) of the 65+ respondents said that they would like to use their 

skills/knowledge/experience to help others in their community. 

Those who responded also noted their concerns about  

• How to reduce waste and improve recycling  

• A lack of affordable public transport on which everyone feels safe to travel  

• Not being able to stay living in their own home  

• The voice of local communities not being heard  

• Not being able to use the Language of their choice  

• Our key natural resources are being depleted faster that they can be replenished 

Tudalen 150



83 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Communication and Information 
We are living in an increasingly digital age with a growing number of services transferring to 

digital platforms. The growth in digital communications has been a positive fall back for many 

families who otherwise would have had little to no contact with each other during the pandemic. 

This change has the potential to leave older people more secluded. 

The WHO Age-friendly Cities Guide states that: "No matter how developed the city; word of 

mouth is the principal and preferred means of communication for older people". Many older 

people value personal communication which can be overlooked in the digital age. Oral 

communication is particularly important for those with visual impairments or low levels of 

literacy. 

Feedback from Age Cymru Dyfed notes that many older people were not confident in using IT 

and had to quickly learn how to use technology to speak to family, friends, pay for shopping, 

attend social groups etc. Age Cymru Dyfed delivered a Think Digital project until end of May 2021, 

which helped over 350+ people get online. The move to digital during the pandemic was a step 

too far for some people leaving them cut off from services and interaction.  

Community Support and Health Services 
Health 

As we age our health declines, the ageing population in Wales, and Carmarthenshire, is forecasted 

to put pressure on our health and social care services. The situation may become that people live 

longer, but in more ill health than previous generations. It is important that we support our 

communities to stay as healthy as possible for as long as possible.  

34.7

32.9

32.6

31.2

30.7

28.9

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Feeling part of my community

Having opportunities to influence local decisions

People from different backgrounds getting on well…

Feeling safe in my home

People in my local area treating each other with respect

Feeling safe in my community

PERCENTAGE OF WHAT RESPONDENTS 65+ VALUED MOST IN THE 
COMMUNITY THEY LIVED

Figure 15: Survey Responses 

Tudalen 151



84 
 

These are the two main areas of concern our Well-being Survey respondents aged 65+ when 

asked -“Thinking ahead over the next ten years, what concerns you the most about being able to 

stay physically and/or mentally well?” 

Adult Social Care  

A recent report to the Social Care and Health Scrutiny committee, notes that since Spring 2021, 

we have seen a significant increase in the volume and complexity of new referrals to adult social 

care both from within the community and from those admitted to hospitals. This appears to be 

delayed demand following the pandemic as a result of people not being monitored and receiving 

treatment for ongoing chronic health conditions, not having access to the usual forms of respite, 

and making active choices to not access services until critical due to understandable fears of 

contracting Covid. As a consequence of the above, we have seen a very high increase in the 

number of people requiring assessment and consequently a significant increase in demand, 

particularly for domiciliary care. 

A report by the Statutory Director of Social Services on the Impact of National Social Care 

Pressures in Carmarthenshire and an additional report on Domiciliary Care, Social Work 

Workforce and Market Pressures (October 2021) highlights the current pressures and challenges:   

• That significant pressures are now more profound and wide ranging than at any time during 
the management of this COVID-19 pandemic.  

• There are growing workforce challenges in the domiciliary care sector leading to increased 
waiting lists and decreased customer satisfaction. 

• This situation is starting to limit our ability to support some of our most vulnerable people in 
the community.  

• Social care and health are under significant pressure and the demand continues to grow 
exponentially in comparison to capacity. 

• Moreover, the added complexity of those presenting to social care services is unique and 
unprecedented.  

• The growing number of Social Worker vacancies, combined with increase in demand for 
services has seen our allocation waiting list for assessments grow to unacceptable levels. This 
position is worsening and poses a significant risk to the authority’s ability to meet its 

statutory responsibilities. 
 

 

 

Not having access to healthcare 
or other support that I need, as 

close to home as possible or 
available through technology

65%

Not being able to stay living in 
my home

64%

Tudalen 152



85 
 

Dementia 

It is projected that there will be a significant increase in people diagnosed with dementia over the 

next 15 years.  

 

Figure 16: Projected number of dementia diagnoses in Carmarthenshire 

 

Mental Health 

Research by Age Cymru Dyfed highlighted: “Mental health issues have increased. People have 

become anxious, frustrated, and depressed and some cases angry. There has been no face-to-

face grievance counselling which has left many depressed and some feeling suicidal. Many 

people have suffered anxiety about leaving the house. People who have had loved ones in care 

homes have been unable to visit causing an effect on their mental health.” 

Mobility 

Falls 

Falls are the second leading cause of accidental injury or death world-wide and the largest 

preventable cause of hospital admissions in Wales and across the UK. Falls cost the NHS £2.3 

billion per annum. Falls reduction services have been proven to reduce the risk of falling by 

between 15% and 30%. It is essential that we enhance the availability of services that promote and 

support ongoing well-being and independence for our frail older adult population. A network of 

activity programmes can delay dependencies for those with long term needs and provide 

ongoing specialist help. By developing and investing in high quality, accessible and sustainable 

facilities we can grow our physical activity provision for high-risk older adults. 

Life Expectancy 

Life expectancy in Carmarthenshire is in line with the average in Wales, (Males - Carmarthenshire 

78.3 years: Wales 78.5 years and Females 82.4 years: Wales 82.3 years 2017-19), the inequality gap 

in healthy life expectancy is one of the lowest in Wales for both males and females.  

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

PROJECTED NUMBER OF OVER 65s
DIAGNOSED WITH DEMENTIA

Tudalen 153



86 
 

According to Public Health Wales, there has been no substantial change in the gap between male 

and female life expectancy and healthy life expectancy during the period 2009-11 to 2015-17. The 

life expectancy deprivation gap widened for both males and females from a difference of just 

over 5 years for females in 2002-04 to just over 6 years in 2015-17. The pattern is similar for males 

with the difference in life expectancy between the most and least deprived fifth being just over 

6.5 years in 2002-04 to approximately 7.5 years in 2015-17. 

Deaths and Causes 

Some of the largest causes of deaths are heart disease, cancer and dementia. Carmarthenshire 

currently has a lower rate of deaths due to heart disease and cancer than the Welsh average.  The 

total number of deaths in Carmarthenshire has seen an incremental increase, with a distinct peak 

in 2020. A total of 185 deaths due to COVID-19 were recorded in the over 50s in Carmarthenshire 

in 2020, the age distribution of these deaths follows an expected trend of an increase up to the 

age of 90, and then slightly less. The total number of deaths due to COVID-19 in this age range 

was still less than the traditional causes of death of heart disease, cancer and dementia.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

•  
 

 

 

0.0

200.0

400.0

Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19

RATE OF DEATHS DUE TO 
CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES 

PER 100,000 PEOPLE

Carmarthenshire Wales

220.0

240.0

260.0

280.0

300.0

Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19

RATE OF DEATHS DUE TO 
CANCER PER 100,000 PEOPLE

Carmarthenshire Wales

1,900

2,000

2,100

2,200

2,300

2,400

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

TOTAL NUMBER OF DEATHS IN 
CARMARTHENSHIRE PER YEAR

0

10

20

30

40

50

50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-75 75-79 80-84 85-89 90+

DEATHS DUE TO COVID-19 IN 
CARMARTHENSHIRE

Figure 17: Series of charts detailing causes of deaths in Carmarthenshire 

Tudalen 154



87 
 

National Well-being Indicators 
Noted below are the National Well-being Indicators and associated local indicators relevant for the 

Ageing Well life stage 

Ref 

No 

Indicator Definition Year Rank 
out of 22 

Authoriti

es 

Score, Welsh average and 

Change since last result 

Carms Welsh Avg 

2e Male healthy life expectancy at birth  2010-14 15th  65 years 65.3 years 

Improved 

2f Male inequality gap in healthy life expectancy 

Sloped Index of Inequality (SII) in years 

2010-14 5th  10.6 years 18.7 years 

Improved 

2g Female healthy life expectancy at birth  2010-14 15th  66 years 66.7 years 

Improved 

2h Female inequality gap in healthy life expectancy 

SII in years 

2010-14 7th  12.5 years 18.2 years 

Improved 

30 % of people who are lonely 2019-20 19th  17.3% 15.4% 
Declined 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 155



88 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N
E

X
T

 S
T

E
P

S
 

Tudalen 156



89 
 

As part of our work, we have identified key areas that we need to research further. These 

areas may be in terms of statistics, local information or in terms of involvement. These 

are noted within the assessment and are noted here for ease of reference:  

 Fuel poverty  

 Adult obesity  

 Domestic abuse  

 Housing and homelessness  

We will also undertake further work to better understand well-being at a more localised 

level based on the 6 community areas identified within the assessment. In addition, there 

will be a technical background document, which will provide the detail from our 

consultation and involvement and the data sources used as part of the preparatory work.  

We recognise that there are voices which aren’t currently being heard as part of the 

assessment. These voices include:  

 

 Those who are expecting or have given birth in the last six months  

 Our Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Communities  

 Our young people  

 Our Gypsy and Traveller Community  

 

Increased efforts will be made to engage with these groups on the draft Assessment. 

Following discussion at the PSB, we will consult with our residents and stakeholders to 

ask for their opinions on the themes and priorities that we have identified. We will ensure 

that the networks and forums who were involved in the first exercise receive this 

information.  

 

 The consultation will run from 1 December 2021 until 19 January 2022.  

 Consultation will be held in accordance with Section 38 of the Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  

 The PSB support team will work closely with colleagues and in light of new 

information and feedback to prepare a final version of the Assessment.  

 The final version of the Assessment is scheduled for discussion at the 

Carmarthenshire PSB on 8 March 2022.  

 The final Carmarthenshire Well-being Assessment will be published on the PSB 

website on 28 March 2022.  

The PSB Support Team will also be working with partners to identify and develop 

case studies to be added to the Assessment. Our aim is to demonstrate how the 

Sustainable Development Principle and the Five Ways of Working guide our local 

work and interventions.  

Tudalen 157



90 
 

The Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan  
The Well-being Assessment will be the foundation and evidence on which to prepare our 

Well-being Plan for the county.  

The Carmarthenshire PSB has a statutory responsibility to improve the economic, social, 

environmental and cultural well-being of our county by contributing to the achievement 

of the seven national Well-being Goals. This includes our work on setting local objectives 

to maximise our contribution to meeting those goals and demonstrating how we use the 

Sustainable Development Principle and Five Ways of Working in everything we do.  

Our Plan will set out the short, medium and long-term actions to be achieved by the PSB 

over the next five years up to 2028.  

Regional working  

We will work with our colleagues in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire to continue with the 

assessment of well-being in our area. The “Gorwel” platform, developed by the region 

will support this work, in providing well-being data and involvement information.   

There is an on-going commitment by the PSB to embrace the principles of continuous 

engagement, and this is reflected regionally in Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 158



 

 
 

COFNODION BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR –  

MEDI 2021 
 

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen: 

1. I ystyried a chraffu ar gynnwys cofnodion y PSB o’i gyfarfod rhithiol a gynhaliwyd ar y 29 
Medi 2021.  

 

Y Rhesymau:  

Mae Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 yn nodi gofyniad i bwyllgor craffu 
llywodraeth leol gael ei benodi i graffu gwaith y BGC. Yn Sir Gâr, mae’r Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi 
ac Adnoddau wedi ei benodi fel y pwyllgor craffu priodol.  
 

 

Angen i’r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad:   NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad:    NAC OES  

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  Cyng. Emlyn Dole, Arweinydd 
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:  

Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Noelwyn Daniel 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Gwyneth Ayers  

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth TGCh a 
Pholisi Corfforaethol 

 

Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol, 
Perfformiad a Phartneriaeth 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

07929737950 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

GAyers@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 

10 RHAGFYR 2021 

Tudalen 159

Eitem Rhif  7

mailto:GAyers@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10 December 2021 

Carmarthenshire Public Services Board (PSB) Minutes –  

September 2021 
In order to ensure PSBs are democratically accountable, the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 places a requirement on councils to designate an overview and scrutiny 
committee to scrutinise the work of the PSB. In the ‘Guidance for Local Authority Scrutiny 
Committees on the scrutiny of Public Services Boards’ issued by Welsh Government in August 
2017 it notes: 

‘Under the provisions contained in the Act, overview and scrutiny committees have 
extensive powers to review the PSB’s governance arrangements as well as any 
decisions made or actions taken by the PSB. In addition, overview and scrutiny 
committees are provided with considerable reporting powers as they are required to 
share copies of any reports or recommendations made in connection with the board’s 
function or governance arrangement with the Welsh Ministers, the Future Generations 
Commissioner for Wales and the Auditor General for Wales.’ 

 
In Carmarthenshire, the Council’s Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee has been 
designated as the relevant scrutiny. 
 
The minutes of the September 2021 Carmarthenshire PSB meeting were approved by the PSB 
at its 24 November 2021 meeting.  
 
The minutes are presented to the Council’s Policy & Resources Scrutiny for further 
consideration and scrutiny. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 

Signed: Noelwyn Daniel, Head of ICT & Corporate Policy    
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 

 
Finance 

 
ICT 

 
Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
YES  NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

The presentation of PSB minutes to a designated overview and scrutiny committee is a requirement 
of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Paragraph 181 of Statutory Guidance 
SPSF 3: Collective role notes: 

‘The (scrutiny) committee must send a copy of any report or recommendation it makes to 
the Welsh Ministers, the (Future Generations) Commissioner and the Auditor General for 
Wales.’ 

Tudalen 160



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed: Noelwyn Daniel, Head of ICT & Corporate Policy                             

1. Scrutiny Committee Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee – 10 December 2021 

2.Local Member(s) N/A 

3.Community / Town Council  

Representatives from one of the seven Carmarthenshire Town & Community Councils 
subject to the Well-being of Future Generations Act in their own right, attend PSB meetings 
on a rota basis.   

4.Relevant Partners Through the Public Services Board meeting 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations N/A 

CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 
AWARE/CONSULTED  

YES  

Include any observations here 
Cllr Emlyn Dole attends PSB meetings on 
behalf of the Council 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

SPSF 3 – Guidance on the 
collective role through 
public services boards  

 Cymraeg 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-
3-collective-role-cy.pdf  
English 
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-
3-collective-role-en.pdf 

Guidance for Local 
Authority Scrutiny 
Committees on the 
scrutiny of Public 
Services Boards 

 Cymraeg 
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-
public-services-boards-guidance-cy.pdf  
English 
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-
public-services-boards-guidance-en.pdf  

 

Tudalen 161

http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/161111-spsf-3-collective-role-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-public-services-boards-guidance-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-public-services-boards-guidance-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-public-services-boards-guidance-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dpsp/publications/170817-public-services-boards-guidance-en.pdf


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 

 

 
2.00pm, Dydd Mercher 29 Medi 2021 

Cyfarfod Rhithwir 
 

COFNODION 

 

Yn bresennol  

Enw Sefydliad 

Barry Liles (Cadeirydd) Prifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant 

Y Cynghorydd Mair Stephens Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 

Huwel Manley Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru   

Uwcharolygydd Gary Phillips Heddlu Dyfed-Powys 

Carys Morgans Swyddfa'r Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu 

Ruth Mullen  Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 

Kevin Jones Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin Cymru 

Y Cynghorydd Elwyn Williams Awdurdod Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub Canolbarth a Gorllewin 
Cymru 

Anna Bird Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Marie Mitchell Cymdeithas Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Sir Gâr 

Wyn Morris Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau 

Andrew Charles Llywodraeth Cymru 

 

Hefyd yn bresennol 

Enw Sefydliad 

Gwyneth Ayers Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 

Kate Harrop Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 

Wendy Phillips Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin  

Helen Morgan Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin  

Rhian Phillips Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin  

Kim Neyland Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol Gorllewin Cymru 

Mark Galbraith Cyngor Gwledig Llanelli 

Amy Richmond-Jones Canolbarth a Gorllewin Cymru  

 

1. Croeso ac Ymddiheuriadau 

Croesawodd Barry Liles, y Cadeirydd, bawb i'r cyfarfod rhithwir a chyflwynwyd y gwesteion.  
 

Ymddiheuriadau  

Enw Sefydliad 

Y Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 

Maria Battle Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Tudalen 163



2 

 

Ros Jervis Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Huw Thomas Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Andrew Cornish Coleg Sir Gâr  

Christine Harley  Y Gwasanaeth Prawf  

Martyn Palfreman Bwrdd Partneriaeth Ranbarthol Gorllewin Cymru 

 

2. 10 Tref Wledig  

Rhoddodd Helen Morgan, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd, gyflwyniad ar y fenter 10 Tref 
Wledig a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad Symud Sir Gâr Wledig Ymlaen gan y Cyngor. Mae'r fenter 
wedi'i mabwysiadu yng nghynllun adfer economaidd y sir. Daw'r cyllid o Raglen LEADER yr UE 
drwy'r Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig a chyllid craidd gan y Cyngor.  
 
Ers mis Medi 2020, comisiynwyd dau ymgynghorydd i baratoi cynlluniau twf ar gyfer pob un 
o'r deg tref. Mae wyth ohonynt wedi'u cwblhau ac mae'r ddau arall i fod i gael eu cwblhau 
erbyn diwedd mis Hydref. Mae pob cynllun twf yn nodi'r angen lleol a bydd yn cael ei adolygu 
a'i ddiweddaru yn ôl y gofyn. Mae Grŵp Cynllun Twf yn cael ei sefydlu ar gyfer pob un o'r 10 
tref ac maent bellach yn dechrau cwrdd a byddant yn datblygu syniadau. 
 
Mae amryw o ffrydiau cyllido i gefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni'r cynlluniau, gan gynnwys £1m o 
raglen gyfalaf y Cyngor, grantiau cychwyn busnes a datblygu busnes, cronfeydd datblygu 
eiddo a chyllid LEADER gwerth £100k sydd wedi'i glustnodi i alluogi'r cymunedau i ddatblygu 
syniadau arloesol sy'n gysylltiedig â'r cynlluniau. Mae dau Swyddog Trefi Marchnad Gwledig 
wedi'u recriwtio i gefnogi'r ardaloedd i ddatblygu syniadau. Bydd trydydd swyddog yn cael ei 
recriwtio ond mae'r swydd yn cael ei hail-hysbysebu ar hyn o bryd. 
 
Y themâu allweddol a gwmpesir gan y cynlluniau twf yw: buddsoddi mewn safleoedd busnes 
i gefnogi busnesau newydd, twf ac ehangu busnesau, grant busnes 'Iaith Gwaith', lle ceir 
cysylltiadau rhwng twf economaidd a'r Gymraeg drwy dwf busnesau; trefi digidol/clyfar; 
hybiau gwaith a gweithleoedd a rennir, gan edrych ar greu pedwar prif hwb, un ar gyfer pob 
ardal ddaearyddol; sgiliau; mentrau twristiaeth gan gynnwys cerdded a beicio; ynni 
cymunedol; ac economi gylchol. Gofynnwyd i bob Fforwm Twf Tref flaenoriaethu ei geisiadau 
am brosiectau i'w cyllido o'r £1m. Yna, byddai'r ceisiadau yn cael eu hasesu. Gwnaed cais am 
gymorth a mewnbwn parhaus gan y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus i'r fenter gyfan a 
gofynnwyd a allai aelodau'r BGC roi gwybod i'r Cyngor am unrhyw ddatblygiadau neu fentrau 
yr oeddent yn eu cynllunio yn unrhyw un o'r 10 tref wledig.  
 
Holodd Anna Bird sut y gellid ymgorffori'r sefydliadau angori a'u cysylltiadau â gwerth 
cymdeithasol ac iechyd ehangach yn y 10 tref. Atebodd Helen Morgan y byddai'n cysylltu ag 
Anna y tu allan i'r cyfarfod i fynd ar drywydd hyn. 
 
Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Mair Stephens y gellid rhoi'r offer ar gyfer trefi clyfar ar adeiladau 
nad ydynt yn adeiladau'r cyngor os yw'n briodol. Ychwanegodd Huwel Manley fod gan CNC 
nifer o adeiladau mewn ardaloedd gwledig y gellir eu defnyddio. 
 
Teimlai Kevin Jones fod angen gwell cysylltiadau rhwng prosiect Ffyrdd Newydd o Weithio'r 
BGC a'r fenter 10 Tref.  
 
 

Tudalen 164



3 

 

GWEITHREDU 

Annog ceisiadau am swydd y Swyddog Trefi Gwledig Pawb 

Rhoi gwybod am heriau recriwtio i'r Bartneriaeth Dysgu a Sgiliau 
Ranbarthol 

Pawb 

Dosbarthu Cynlluniau Twf y 10 Tref pan fyddant ar gael. Tîm Cynorthwyo 
BGC 

Cyflwyno diweddariad ar 10 Tref Wledig mewn cyfarfod yn y dyfodol. Tîm Cynorthwy 
BGC 

Rhoi gwybod i Dîm Cymorth y BGC am unrhyw ddatblygiadau neu 
brosiectau parhaus gan aelodau'r BGC yn unrhyw un o'r 10 Tref Wledig 
– Dyffryn Aman, Cwm Gwendraeth, Cydweli, Talacharn, Llandeilo, 
Llanymddyfri, Llanybydder, Castellnewydd Emlyn, Sanclêr a Hendy-gwyn 
ar Daf. 

Pawb 

 

Rhoddodd Huwel Manley gyflwyniad ar y prosiect peilot a gynhaliwyd yng Nghastellnewydd 
Emlyn.  
 
Daeth y prosiect o'r gwaith cychwynnol a wnaed yn 2019 pan ofynnodd y Grŵp Cyflawni 
Amgylchedd Iach am ymgysylltu â nifer o gymunedau. Yn 2020 penderfynwyd gwneud 
ymchwil fanylach i ddeall canfyddiad y cyhoedd o risgiau newid yn yr hinsawdd a'r effaith ar 
y gymuned, edrych ar sut y gallai cymunedau baratoi'n well ar gyfer effeithiau newid yn yr 
hinsawdd a'r hyn y gallant ei wneud. Roedd y prosiect yn ymgysylltu â'r sector cyhoeddus, y 
gymuned wirfoddol a thrigolion. Oherwydd Covid-19, bu'n rhaid ymgysylltu ar-lein a 
effeithiodd ar nifer y cyfranogwyr. 
 
Roedd yr adroddiad yn cynnwys pedwar argymhelliad:  

 Sefydlu Rheithgor Dinasyddion 

 Datblygu Cynllun Ymateb i Argyfwng dan Arweiniad y Gymuned 

 Paratoi Senario Castellnewydd Emlyn 2050 ar gyfer y Dyfodol 

 Datblygu Map Risgiau Hinsawdd ac Asedau 
Mae'r rhain wedi cael eu hystyried gan y Grŵp Cyflawni Amgylchedd Iach a gytunodd i 
ddatblygu'r Cynllun Ymateb i Argyfwng dan Arweiniad y Gymuned, ar y cyd â'r prosiect 10 
tref, a'r Map Risgiau Hinsawdd ac Asedau a fydd yn cael ei ddatblygu ar y cyd â chymorth gan 
Brifysgol Cymru y Drindod Dewi Sant fel prosiect myfyrwyr. 
 
Gofynnwyd i'r BGC gefnogi'r gwaith, drwy'r Grŵp Cyflawni Amgylchedd Iach. 
 
Cafwyd trafodaeth rhwng Ruth Mullen a Huwel Manley ar y Cynllun Ymateb i Argyfwng a sut 
roedd hyn yn gysylltiedig â datblygiadau cymunedol presennol. Cytunwyd y byddai'r 
drafodaeth yn parhau y tu allan i'r cyfarfod. 
 
Dywedodd Marie Mitchell fod yr adroddiadau drafft ar gyfer y Gwaith Adfer Gwirfoddoli yn 
sgil y Coronafeirws wedi dod i law a bod cysylltiadau rhwng y gymuned a'r trydydd sector o 
ran cynlluniau ymateb. 
 
 

GWEITHREDU 

3. Cynllun Gwydnwch Hinsawdd Castellnewydd Emlyn - Rhagfyr 2020 

Tudalen 165



4 

 

Cysylltu â Grŵp Cydnerthu Cymunedol Fforwm Lleol Cymru Gydnerth 
ynghylch ymrwymiadau i ardaloedd eraill o ran Cynlluniau Ymateb i 
Argyfwng dan Arweiniad y Gymuned. 

Huwel Manley a 
Kate Harrop 

Rhannu'r adroddiad drafft ar y Gwaith Adfer Gwirfoddoli yn sgil y 
Coronafeirws gyda Huwel Manley a chyfarfod i drafod hynny. 

Marie Mitchell 

 

Rhoddwyd trosolwg ar y Cynnig ynghylch Ffyrdd Newydd o Weithio ar gyfer Llandeilo. Mae'r 
gwaith o fapio asedau partneriaid y BGC, gan ganolbwyntio ar dair prif dref, sef Caerfyrddin, 
Llanelli a Rhydaman, yn ogystal â'r 10 tref, wedi dangos bod y rhan fwyaf o asedau wedi'u 
lleoli yn y tair prif dref, ond mae rhai trefi gwledig sydd â nifer o asedau. Cytunwyd i 
ganolbwyntio ar Landeilo fel cynllun peilot, er bod trefi eraill o ddiddordeb, sydd â chysylltiad 
clir â'r 10 tref, gan nad oes ganddynt unrhyw bresenoldeb gan y sector cyhoeddus ar hyn o 
bryd. 
 
Mae'r ffocws wedi bod ar dair ffordd o weithio – mannau gweithio ystwyth; mannau sy'n delio 
â chwsmeriaid; a mannau cyswllt ar gyfer gweithwyr allgymorth. Mae Adeiladau'r Cyngor ar 
waelod y maes parcio cyhoeddus yn Llandeilo ac mae potensial i ddatblygu'r safle. Mae yno 
ystafell fawr sy'n addas i dreialu hwb amlasiantaeth. Mae Adeiladau'r Cyngor hefyd yn gartref 
i'r llyfrgell gyhoeddus sydd wedi nodi y byddai croeso i asiantaethau'r BGC ddefnyddio'r lle 
pan fydd ar agor ar gyfer unrhyw hyrwyddiadau neu ddigwyddiadau sy'n delio â chwsmeriaid. 
Mae trydedd elfen y cynnig ar gyfer gweithwyr allgymorth. Mae gan yr Orsaf Dân ystafell 
gymunedol sy'n addas ar gyfer mynediad, e.e. gofalwyr cartref, gweithwyr cymdeithasol ac 
ati. Cynigir cyfnod treialu o chwe mis ar gyfer Adeiladau'r Cyngor a'r Orsaf Dân yn Llandeilo, 
ac yna ystyrir yr opsiynau eraill sydd ar gael, e.e. ystafelloedd cyfarfod, ystafelloedd clinigol. 
 
Cytunwyd i fwrw ymlaen â'r cynnig, ond oherwydd y cyfyngiadau Covid-19 presennol, mae'n 
debygol na fydd yn weithredol tan ddechrau 2022. Bydd cyfathrebu rhwng partneriaid y BGC 
yn bwysig, a chynghorir staff i ddefnyddio'r hwb os ydynt yn yr ardal. Bydd monitro'r defnydd 
yn rhan bwysig o'r cynllun peilot. 
 

GWEITHREDU 

Datblygu Cynnig y BGC ynghylch Ffyrdd Newydd o Weithio ar gyfer 
Llandeilo. 

Gwyneth Ayers 

 

5.   Cofnodion a Materion yn Codi 

Ymddiheurodd Barry Liles am ganslo'r gweithdy a oedd i ddilyn y cyfarfod hwn. Bydd hyn yn 
cael ei ailystyried. 
 
15 Gorffennaf 2021 
Derbyniwyd bod y cofnodion yn gofnod gwir a chywir. 
 
Cofnod o'r Camau Gweithredu 
Darparwyd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y camau gweithredu blaenorol. 
 
 
 
 

4. Cynnig y BGC ynghylch Ffyrdd Newydd o Weithio ar gyfer Llandeilo 

Tudalen 166



5 

 

Cynnig ynghylch Mannau Bwyd Cynaliadwy 
Rhoddwyd amlinelliad o'r cynnig a ddeilliodd o drafodaethau yn dilyn y gwaith gyda CLES ar 
gaffael bwyd lleol. Roedd un o argymhellion ei adroddiad ar gyfer sefydliadau angori yn 
ymwneud â datblygu strategaeth fwyd. Ers i ni gytuno ar yr adroddiad, mae Rhwydwaith Bwyd 
Sir Gaerfyrddin wedi'i sefydlu, wedi'i hwyluso drwy Gymdeithas Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol 
Sir Gâr - CAVS, ac mae wedi dwyn ynghyd amrywiaeth eang o grwpiau cymunedol sy'n 
gweithio yn y sector bwyd, e.e. banciau bwyd, grwpiau prydau poeth, perllannau cymunedol, 
cynlluniau tyfu cymunedol, ac ati. Mae hyn yn rhoi cyfle i ni fwrw ymlaen â'r drafodaeth mewn 
ffordd lawer mwy cydgysylltiedig gyda'r amrywiaeth o bartneriaid.  
 
Bwriedir gweithio gydag amrywiaeth o randdeiliaid, gan gynnwys Rhwydwaith Bwyd Sir 
Gaerfyrddin, i ddatblygu cais erbyn cyfnod ymgeisio Mawrth 2022 i Sir Gaerfyrddin fod yn Lle 
Bwyd Cynaliadwy cydnabyddedig.  
 
Cymeradwywyd y cynnig yn unfrydol. 
 
Rhoddwyd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf hefyd ar brosiect yr Economi Sylfaenol. Daeth Cam 1 i 
ben ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2021 a oedd yn canolbwyntio ar elfen gaffael y sector cyhoeddus. 
Mae gwaith i weithredu'r argymhellion sy'n ymwneud â chaffael bellach yn cael ei wneud. 
Mae prosiectau hefyd yn cael eu datblygu a fydd, gobeithio, yn ennill cyllid ac mae Gwyneth 
Ayers yn gweithio gyda sefydliad o'r enw Ffermydd a Gerddi Cymdeithasol sy'n disgwyl 
cadarnhad ynghylch cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer prosiect i ddatblygu canolfan fwyd 
yn Sir Gaerfyrddin. Byddent yn gweithio ar gael y cynhyrchwyr a chynyddu cynhyrchiant drwy 
ganolfan fwyd ac mae cyfleoedd am gysylltiadau â gwasanaethau cyhoeddus yn cael eu 
hystyried. Roedd y Cyngor Sir hefyd wedi cyflwyno cais i'r Cynllun Datblygu Gwledig ar gyfer 
prosiect cadwyn gyflenwi, ac mae disgwyl cyhoeddiad erbyn mis Hydref ar ganlyniad y cais. 
Mae’r cais i Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cam 2 prosiect yr Economi Sylfaenol wedi sicrhau 
£100,000 arall a fydd yn canolbwyntio ar waith y mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd yn ei arwain. 
 
Rhoddodd Huwel Manley wybod am weithdy a gynhaliwyd yn y bore ar garbon niwtral net i 
bartneriaid yn y sector cyhoeddus. Roedd yn ymdrin â materion carbon sy'n gysylltiedig â 
chaffael. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cyhoeddi canllawiau ar sut i gyfrifo hyn a byddai o 
fudd edrych ar y treialon caffael. 
 
Cynllun Gwaith 
Rhoddwyd trosolwg o'r diweddariadau ac fe'u dangosir mewn print trwm ar bapurau'r 
cyfarfod. 
 

GWEITHREDU 

Cadarnhau a oes Bil Aelod Preifat arfaethedig ar gyfer Strategaeth Fwyd 
i Gymru. 

Andrew Charles 

Cysylltu â Kendal Davies ynghylch lleihau carbon a chaffael.  Kate Harrop 

 

Rhoddwyd trosolwg ar y cynnydd a wnaed mewn perthynas â'r Asesiad Llesiant. 
 

6. Cynllun Llesiant Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin -  Y Wybodaeth Ddiweddaraf 

7.   Y Diweddaraf am Asesu Llesiant 

Tudalen 167



6 

 

Mae'r arolwg yn fyw ar hyn o bryd ac yn cau ddydd Gwener 8 Hydref. Cynhelir nifer o sesiynau 
ymgysylltu ar draws y sir, gan gysylltu ag amrywiaeth eang o grwpiau. 
 
Mae Cydgysylltydd y Prosiect Llesiant Rhanbarthol yn ei swydd ac mae'n cynorthwyo gyda'r 
elfennau rhanbarthol, e.e. dadansoddi data, ymgysylltu, ac ati. 
 
Mae dadansoddiad data ar y gweill a bydd casglu ystod ehangach o ddata ar lefel leol, 
ranbarthol a chenedlaethol yn llywio'r gwaith o ysgrifennu'r Asesiad Llesiant.  
 
Mae'r System Gwybodaeth Ddigidol yn y cam profi ar hyn o bryd ac maent yn edrych ymlaen 
at ei lansio. 
 

GWEITHREDU 

Ystyried canfyddiad Adroddiad Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol 2020 fel rhan o'r 
Asesiad Llesiant a chynghori'r BGC ynghylch y camau nesaf. 

Tîm Cynorthwy 
BGC 

 

Nid oedd unrhyw fater arall 

8.    Unrhyw Fater Arall 

Tudalen 168



 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 
10 RHAGFYR 2021 

 

DIWEDDARAF AM WEITHREDIADAU AC 
ATGYFEIRIADAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI 

AC ADNODDAU  
 

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt: 
 

 Hoelio sylw ar y cynnydd sy’n cael ei wneud mewn perthynas â’r camau, y ceisiadau 
neu’r atgyfeiriadau a gofnodwyd yng nghyfarfodydd blaenorol y Pwyllgor.   

 

Rhesymau:  
 

 Er mwyn i’r aelodau gyflawni eu dyletswyddau craffu mewn perthynas â monitro 
perfformiad. 

 

 
Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: NAC 
OES 
 

 

 
Aelod y Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: DDIM YN BERTHNASOL  
 

 

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Prif Weithredwr  
 
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 
Linda Rees-Jones  
 
 
Awdur yr adroddiad: 
Martin S. Davies  
 

 
Swyddi: 
 
 
 
Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 
Gyfraith  
 
 

Swyddog Democrataidd  

 
  

 
Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
 
 
 
01267 224010 
lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk  
 
 
01267 224059  
MSDavies@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

 
 
  

Tudalen 169

Eitem Rhif  8

mailto:lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
10th DECEMBER 2021  

 

Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee  
Actions and Referrals Update   

 

During the course of a municipal year, several requests for additional information are 
made by the Committee in order to assist it in discharging its scrutiny role.  
The attached report provides members of the Committee with an update on the progress 
made in relation to these requests.  

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? 
 

YES 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.  
Signed:   Linda Rees-Jones           Head of Administration & Law  
 

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets  

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below: 
Signed:   Linda Rees-Jones           Head of Administration & Law 
 

1. Local Member(s) – N/A 
2. Community / Town Council – N/A 
3. Relevant Partners – N/A 
4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection 

P&R Scrutiny 
Committee Reports 
and Minutes  
 

Meetings held up to July 2015: 
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-
meetings/agendas-minutes-(archive)/  
Meetings from September 2015 onwards: 
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=170    
  

 

Tudalen 170

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/agendas-minutes-(archive)/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/agendas-minutes-(archive)/
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=170


Policy Resources Scrutiny Committee Actions 2021-2022

Ref No Meeting Date
Recommendation / 

Action / Referral
Description Progress Update Member / Officer Status

P&R 003 

21/22

22nd July 2021 ACTION CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2020/21 - the Executive 

Board Member for Resources agreed to ascertain 

the amount of money spent on external 

contractors when work was above the capacity of 

the Council’s own workforce.

Update required INFORMATION CAN BE              

E- MAILED TO COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Cllr. D.M. Jenkins /          

L. Jenkins - 

Executive Board 

Support Officer

Outstanding

P&R 004 

21/22

22nd July 2021 ACTION CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2020/21 - the 

Environmental and Public Protection Scrutiny 

Committee be asked to consider the issue of 

pavement provision requests

Considered by Environmental and Public Protection 

Scrutiny Committee on 4/10/21 which resolved that 

a report be included on that Committee’s Forward 

Work Programme to provide background 

information and the current position in relation to 

the provision of pavements in rural areas.

Martin S. Davies Completed

P&R 006 

21/22

22nd July 2021 ACTION WELSH LANGUAGE ANNUAL REPORT 2020-

21 - The Assistant Chief Executive (People 

Management & Performance) agreed to ascertain 

the language record figures for the 2460 school-

based staff included in the language skills data

Update required INFORMATION CAN BE              

E- MAILED TO COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Paul R. Thomas Outstanding

P&R 007 

21/22

22nd July 2021 ACTION DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY AND 

DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY ANNUAL 

REPORT 2021 - the Head of ICT & Corporate 

Policy agreed:                                                    1. 

to ascertain the reason why, in Wales between 

2018 and 2020, there had been a decrease in the 

percentage of households which could access 

the internet from 89% to 88%;                2. to 

follow up a concern regarding the backlog of 

funding applications awaiting approval by the 

Department for Culture, Media and Sport to 

enable the provision of superfast broadband to 

communities where it was needed;                     3. 

to circulate details of the voucher scheme to 

support rural communities where possible to 

increase digital connectivity;

Update required  INFORMATION CAN BE              

E- MAILED TO COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Noelwyn Daniel Outstanding

20th October 2021 ACTION VACCINATION POLICY - It was suggested that 

the wording ‘Staff who refused to have the Covid 

19 vaccination’ be changed to ‘Staff who do not 

wish to have the Covid 19 vaccination’.  Officers 

advised they would consider re-wording the 

sentence.  

Paul R. Thomas Outstanding

1 of 2

T
udalen 171



Policy Resources Scrutiny Committee Actions 2021-2022

20th October 2021 ACTION ETHICAL EMPLOYMENT IN SUPPLY CHAINS 

POLICY AND MODERN SLAVERY, ETHICAL 

EMPLOYMENT IN SUPPLY CHAINS 

STATEMENT - Reference was made to the 

wording of Employment practices on page 135 of 

the agenda pack.  It was suggested that the 

wording ‘’ zero hour contracts are not used 

unfairly’’ be changed to ‘’zero hour contracts are 

not used unless specifically requested by the 

employee’’ 

Completed Helen Pugh Completed

2 of 2

T
udalen 172



 

 

 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

10th DECEMBER 2021 

FORTHCOMING ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
TO BE HELD ON 14TH JANUARY 2022 

In order to ensure effective Scrutiny, Members need to be clear as to the purpose of 
requesting specific information and the outcome they are hoping to achieve as a 

consequence of examining a report.  Limiting the number of agenda items may help to 
keep meetings focused and easier to manage. 

Proposed 
Agenda Item  
 
 

Background 
 

Reason for report 
What is Scrutiny being asked to do? 
e.g. undertake a full review of the 
subject? Investigate different policy 
options? Be consulted on final 
proposals before decision making? 
Monitor outcomes /implementation?  
 
If the item is for information or for 
noting, can the information be provided 
in an alternative format i.e, via email? 

November 2021 
PSB minutes 
 

The Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
notes the requirement that a 
designated local government 
scrutiny committee is appointed 
to scrutinise the work of the PSB. 
In Carmarthenshire, the 
Council’s Policy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee has been 
designated as the relevant 
scrutiny committee. 

To consider and scrutinise on the 
content of the PSB minutes. 

Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Report - 
Half Year Q2 
2021/22 

This report provides the 
committee with absence data for 
the cumulative period 

Q2 2021/22 financial year plus a 
summary of actions. 

Policy & Resources Scrutiny 
Committee has requested that 
half/full EOY reports are 
provided to allow members to 
fulfil their scrutiny role. 
 

Quarter 2 
performance 
management report 

 

This is the standard Performance 
Management report on our 
progress in delivering the 
objectives/actions and targets 
set out in the New Corporate 
Strategy. It covers those 
elements of the strategy that fall 
under the remit of this Scrutiny. 

To enable the committee to 
undertake its monitoring role. 

 
When choosing a topic a Scrutiny Committee should consider whether:- 

 scrutiny could have an impact and add value 

Tudalen 173

Eitem Rhif  9



 

 the topic is of high local importance and reflects the 
concerns of local people 

 the resources are available that would be required to 
conduct the review, in terms of resources and budget  

 it avoids work duplication elsewhere 

 the issue is one that the committee can realistically 
influence 

 the issue is related to an area where the council, or one of 
its partners, is not performing well 

 the issue is relevant to all or large parts of the local area 

 the review would be in the council’s interests.  
 
Topics are not suitable for scrutiny when: 

 the issue is already being addressed elsewhere and 
change is imminent 

 the topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and will be 
referred there) 

 scrutiny involvement would have limited or no impact upon 
outcomes 

 the topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial to the council’s 
interest 

 the topic is too broad to make a review realistic 

 new legislation or guidance relating to the topic is 
expected within the next year 

 the topic area is currently subject to inspection or has 
recently undergone substantial change. 

 

Tudalen 174



 

Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee – Forward Work Programme 2020/21 

10th June 2021 21st July 2021 20th October 2021 10th December 2021 14th January 2022  

 

2nd February 2022 1st April 2022 

 

Carmarthenshire 
Well-Being Plan 
Annual Report 2020-
21 & PSB Update 

Draft 
Carmarthenshire 
County Council's 
Annual Report for 
2020/21  

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Monitoring 
Report 2021/22 

Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Report - Half 
Year Q2 

2021/22 Moved to 
January meeting 

November 2021 PSB 
minutes 

Revenue Budget 
Strategy 
Consultation 
2021/22 to 

2024/25 [Moved 
from January] 

Quarterly Treasury 
Management and 
Prudential Indicator 
Report 1st April 2021 
to 31st December 
2021 

PSB minutes 

 
Strategic Equality 
Plan Annual Report 
2020-21 

Quarterly Treasury 
Management and 
Prudential Indicator 
Report 1st April 2021 
to 30th June 2021 

TIC Annual Report 20/21 

Moved to February 
meeting 

Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Report - 
Half Year Q2 

2021/22 [Moved from 
December] 

Five Year Capital 
Programme 
2022/23 - 2026/27 

[Moved from 
January] 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Monitoring 
Report 2021/22 

Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Report - 
end of year 

2020/21 Moved to 
July meeting 

Annual Report on the 
Welsh Language 
2020-21 

 

May & July 2021 PSB 
minutes 

 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Monitoring Report 
2021/22 

Quarter 2 performance 
management report 

[Moved from 
December] 

Treasury 
Management Policy 
& Strategy 2022/23 

[Moved from 
January] 

Policy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
Actions and Referrals 
Update 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Monitoring 
Report 2020/21 

Policy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
Actions and 
Referrals update 

Quarter 1 performance 
management report 

Mid-Year Treasury 
Management and 
Prudential Indicator 
Report 1st April 2021 to 
30th September 2021 

 Revenue and 
Capital Budget 
Monitoring Report 
2021/22 

[Moved from 
January] 

Quarter 3 performance 
management report 

Policy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
Annual Report 
2020/21 

Annual Digital 
Transformation [and 
Technology] Strategy 
Report 
 

Digital Schools 
Strategy Annual 
Report 2021 [moved 
from July meeting] 

Policy & Resources 
Scrutiny Committee 
Actions and 

Referrals Update 

 Business Plans 
[added 11/10/21] 

Learning Policy [added 
11/10/21] 

CCTV Policy Sickness Absence 
Monitoring Report - 
end of year 
2020/21 

Annual Treasury 
Management and 
Prudential Indicator 
Report 2020-2021 

[moved from July 
meeting] 

September 2021 PSB 
minutes 
 

 TIC Position 
Statement 20/21 

 

 T
udalen 175



 

Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith \ Gwasanaethau Democrataidd \ Craffu 
Administration & Law \ Democratic Services \ Scrutiny 

 Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee – Forward Work Programme 2020/21 

 Handling Personal 
Data Policy [added 
13/7/21 

Vaccination Policy 
[added 26/7/21] 

Quarter 2 performance 
management report 
Moved to January 
meeting 

 Digital Schools 
Strategy [added 
2/11/21] 

 

  Ethical Employment in 
Supply Chains Policy 
and Annual Modern 
Slavery, Ethical 
Employment in Supply 
Chains Statement 

[added 11/10/21] 

  Digital Technology 
Strategy reports 
[added 2/11/21] 

 

Exec. Board Meetings: 10th May; 24th May;1ST June; 7th June; 21st June; 5th July; 26th July; 13th September; 27th September; 11th October;  
 
25th October; 8th November; 22nd November; 30th November; 6th December; 20th December;  
 
Council Meetings: 12th May; 19th May [AGM]; 9th June; 14th July; 15th September; 13th October; 10th November; 8th December;  

 

T
udalen 176



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

1 
 

 

Introduction 
 
This plan is published to encourage and enable greater understanding between the Executive, all Councillors, the public and other stakeholders. It assists the Scrutiny Committees in planning their contribution to policy 
development and holding the executive to account. 
 
The plan gives the public and stakeholders a chance to see the forthcoming major decisions to be made by the Executive Board over the next 12 months. It is reviewed and published quarterly to take account of changes 
and additional key decisions. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 177



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

2 
 

 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVES 
 

Subject area and brief description of 
nature of report 
 

Responsible Officer Executive Portfolio Scrutiny Committee to be 
consulted 

Date of expected decision by  Executive Board 

INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND 
COVER SHEET 

Wendy Walters, Chief 
Executive/Gwyneth Ayres 

Deputy Leader 
 

No May 2021 

ANNUAL REPORT Noelwyn Daniel -Head of ICT & 
Corporate Policy 
 

Deputy Leader VARIOUS IN JULY 27/09/21 

WELLBEING OBJECTIVES Wendy Walters Chief 
Executive 

Communities and Rural Affairs   

WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION 
DOCUMENTS 

Wendy Walters Chief 
Executive 

Deputy Leader If applicable If applicable 

REVIEW OF COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
BOUNDARIES & ELECTORAL 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Wendy Walters, Chief 
Executive 

Resources  As and when required 

REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 
(LEGISLATION CHANGES) - CRWG 

Linda Rees Jones Head of 
Administration & Law 

N/A 
CRWG - FEB 

N/A As And When Required 

CITY DEAL UPDATE (INCLUDING PENTRE 
AWEL) 

Wendy Walters Chief 
Executive 

Leader  As & When Required 

CARMARTHEN WEST RESIDENTAL  Jason Jones Head of 
Regeneration 

Regeneration / Property  Not applicable 26/04/21 

BURRY PORT RELEASE OF LAND Jason Jones Head of 
Regeneration 

Regeneration / Property  Not applicable 26/04/21 

8/12 VAUGHAN STREET, LLANELLI Jason Jones Head of 
Regeneration 

Regeneration / Property  Not applicable 26/04/21 

WELSH LANGUAGE ANNUAL REPORT Wendy Walters, Chief 
Executive/Gwyneth Ayres 

Culture, Sport & Tourism Yes March 2022 

CORPORATE STRATEGY Noelwyn Daniel -Head of ICT & 
Corporate Policy 
 

Deputy Leader Yes March 2022 

STRATEGIC EQUALITY REPORT Noelwyn Daniel -Head of ICT & 
Corporate Policy 
 

Deputy Leader Yes March 2022 

NET ZERO ACTION PLAN - REVIEW Jason Jones, Head of 
Regeneration 

Communities and Rural Affairs Date to be confirmed March 2022 

 

T
udalen 178



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

3 
 

 
 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

Subject area and brief description of 
nature of report 
 

Responsible Officer Executive Portfolio Scrutiny Committee to be 
consulted 

Date of expected decision by  Executive Board 

DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW TENANT TYPE 
CHALLENGE PANEL 

Jonathan Morgan – Head of 
Homes and SCr/Les James 

Housing  24TH May 2021 

UNIVERSAL CREDIT AND RENTS UPDATE 
RENT ARREARS POSITION STATEMENT 

Jonathan Morgan – Head of 
Homes and Safer 
Communities/ Jonathan Willis  

Housing  26th April 2021 

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR POLICY Jonathan Morgan – Head of 
Homes and Safer 
Communities /Les James / Sue 
Watts/Robert David Williams 

Culture, Sports & Tourism E&PP Scrutiny 
18/05/2021 
 

07/06/21 

CHS+ DELIVERING WHAT MATTERS 
BUSINESS PLAN 

Jonathan Morgan – Head of 
Homes and Safer 
Communities/ Rachel Davies/ 
Gareth Williams 

Housing January 2022 February 2022 
(Budget) 

DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES 
ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20  

Jake Morgan – Director of 
Communities/Silvana Sauro 

Social Care & Health  TBC 

DOG BREEDERS LICENCE UPDATE 
(Change of Policy / Legislation – awaiting 
WG confirmation) 

Jonathan Morgan – Head of 
Homes and Safer 
Communities/ Roger Edmunds 

Public Protection  TBC 

 

T
udalen 179



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

4 
 

 

 
CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

 

Subject area and brief description of 
nature of report 
 

Responsible Officer Executive Portfolio Scrutiny Committee to be 
consulted 

Date of expected decision by  Executive Board 

BI-MONTHLY REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET MONITORING REPORTS 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A SEPT 
NOV 
JAN 
MARCH 

QUARTERLY TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR REPORT 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A SEPT/OCT 
JAN 
APR 

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT  & 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR REPORT 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A JULY 

5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources ALL 
JAN/ FEB 

JAN 

COUNCIL TAX BASE Chris Moore / Helen Pugh Resources N/A DEC 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Chris Moore / Helen Pugh Resources N/A FEB 

BUDGET STRATEGY (Revenue and 
Capital) 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources ALL 
JAN/ FEB 

JAN 

HIGH STREET RATE RELIEF Chris Moore Director of 
Corporate Services /Helen 
Pugh 

Resources  
N/A 

March 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER Chris Moore Director of 
Corporate Services / Helen 
Pugh 

Resources – Audit Committee 
March   & 
SEPT 
 

 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND 
STRATEGY 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A FEBRUARY  – BUDGET MEETING 

FINAL BUDGET 
Revenue & Capital 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A FEBRUARY  – BUDGET MEETING 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET 
AND RENT SETTING REPORT 

Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources HOUSING FEBRUARY  BUDGET MEETING 

BUDGET OUTLOOK Chris Moore 
Director of Corporate Services 

Resources N/A NOV 

 
 
 

T
udalen 180



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

5 
 

 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 
 

Subject area and brief description of 
nature of report 
 

Responsible Officer Executive Portfolio Scrutiny Committee to be 
consulted 

Date of expected decision by Executive Board 

PROPOSAL TO RELOCATE YSGOL 
HEOL GOFFA AND TO INCREASE ITS 
CAPACITY (STAGE 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children 17/03/21 (stage 3) 12th April 2021 

PROPOSAL TO DISCONTINUE YSGOL 
GYNRADD BLAENAU AND TO 
INCREASE THE CAPACITY AND 
CHANGE THE NATURE OF PROVISION 
AT YSGOL GYNRADD LLANDYBIE 
(STAGE 1, 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children N/A TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

PROPOSAL TO DISCONTINUE YSGOL 
RHYDYGORS  (STAGE 1, 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children N/A) TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE AGE 
RANGE AT YSGOL SWISS VALLEY 
(TBC) (STAGE 1, 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children N/A TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

PROPOSAL TO DISCONTINUE YSGOL 
GYNRADD MYNYDD Y GARREG (STAGE 
1, 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children N/A TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE NATURE 
OF PROVISION AT YSGOL Y FELIN 
(STAGE 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children  TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

PROPOSAL TO CHANGE THE NATURE 
OF PROVISION AT MODEL VA PRIMARY 
SCHOOL (STAGE 2 AND 3) 

Simon Davies – Head of 
Access to Education 

Education & Children  TBC (Stage 2) 
TBC  (Stage 3) 

SCHOOL UPDATE REPORT- COVID 19, 
SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN AND 
FINANCE 

Gareth Morgans – Director of 
Education and Children 

Education & Children N/A  

LA EDUCATION SERVICES SELF 
EVALUATION 

Aneirin Thomas – Head of 
Education and Inclusion 

Education & Children tbc 
 

TBC 

POST 16 EDUCATION Aeron Rees – Head of 
Curriculum and Wellbeing 

Education & Children tbc 
 

TBC 

RESULTS OF 2021 EXAMINATIONS” Aneirin Thomas – Head of 
Education and Inclusion 

Education & Children tbc N/A 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES PAPER- TBC Stefan Smith - Head of 
Children’s Services 

Education & Children N/A tbc 

CARMARTHENSHIRE 10 YEAR 
STRATEGY FOR EDUCATION  

Gareth Morgans – Director of 
Education and Children 

Education & Children tbc TBC 

NEW 10 YEAR WELSH IN EDUCATION 
STRATEGY  ( 

Aeron Rees – Head of 
Curriculum and Wellbeing 

Education & Children tbc TBC 

 

T
udalen 181



 EXECUTIVE BOARD FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 20/21 
–as at 23/03/2021 (For the period  March 21   – February 22) 

6 
 

Subject area and brief description of 
nature of report 

  

Responsible Officer Executive Portfolio Scrutiny Committee to be 
consulted 

Date of expected decision by Executive Board  

PUBLIC REALM  Steve Pilliner / Richard waters  Environment   26/4/21 

LDO Llinos Quelch / Ian R Llewellyn Environment   10/5/21 

BUS REFORM  Steve Pilliner  Environment   24/5/21 

PACE MAKING CHARTER  Llinos Quelch / Ian R Llewellyn  Environment   24/5/21 

HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE MANUAL  
 

Steve Pilliner - Head of 
Transportation & Highways/ 
Chris Nelson/ Richard Waters 
 

Environment EPP  
4/10/21  

25/10/21  

EQUESTRIAN STRATEGY 
 

Steve Pilliner - Head of 
Transportation & Highways 
/Caroline Ferguson 
 

Environment EPP  
4/10/21 

25/10/21 

GRAFFITI POLICY  Ainsley Williams  Environment  EPP 4/10/21 25/10/21 

FLOOD RESPONSE  Ainsley Williams  Environment  4/10/21 25/10/21 

LEQ  Ainsley Williams  Environment  EPP 4/10/21 25/10/21 

ELECTRIC VEHICLE STRATEGY  Steve Pilliner  / Simon Charles  Environment  EPP 12/11/21 6/12/21 

PUBLIC CONVENIENCES Ainsley Williams. Head of 
Waste & Environmental 
Services Rhys Davies 

Environment EPP 
16/12/21 

January 22 

 
ENVIRONMENT 

 

T
udalen 182



 

   
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU 
 

Dydd Mercher, 20 Hydref 2021 
 

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd A.G. Morgan (Cadeirydd) 
 
Y Cynghorwyr:  
S.M. Allen, K.V. Broom, D.M. Cundy, T.A.J. Davies, H.L. Davies, J.S. Edmunds, 
J.K. Howell, G.H. John, C. Jones, D. Jones (yn lle J.G. Prosser), K. Madge a/ac 
D.E. Williams 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol Y Cynghorwyr: 
E. Dole, Arweinydd y Cyngor 
L.M. Stephens, Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor 
C.A. Davies, Aelod y Cabinet dros Cymunedau a Materion Gwledig 
D.M. Jenkins, Aelod y Cabinet dros Adnoddau 
 
Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod: 
P.R. Thomas, Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad) 
H. Pugh, Pennaeth Dros Dro Archwilio, Riag a Chaffael 
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith 
N. Daniel, Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau Cynllunio 
R. Hemingway, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Ariannol 
G. Ayers, Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Phartneriaeth 
A. Bebb, Electoral & Civil Registration Service 
D. Hockenhull, Rheolwr y Cyfryngau a Marchnata 
N. Evans, Rheolwr Cymorth Busnes 
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Cefnogi Bwrdd Gweithredol 
S. Rees, Cyfieithydd Ar Y Pryd 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
E. Bryer, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Rhith-Gyfarfod - 10.00 yb - 12.45 yp 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd J.G Prosser.  
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW 
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB I UNRHYW EITEM AR YR 
AGENDA 
 

Y 

Cynghorydd 

Rhif(au) y Cofnod Y Math o Fuddiant 

T.A.J. Davies 8 - Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter 

1 2021/22 (1 Ebrill hyd at 30 

Mehefin 2021) sy'n berthnasol i'r 

Maes Craffu hwn.  

11 - Polisi Cyflogaeth Foesegol 

mewn Cadwyni Cyflenwi a 

Datganiad Caethwasiaeth Fodern, 

Ei chwaer yng 

nghyfraith yw'r 

Pennaeth Refeniw 

a Chydymffurfiaeth 

Ariannol. 

Tudalen 183

Eitem Rhif  10



 

   
 

Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn 

Cadwyni Cyflenwi.  

K. Madge 4 - Adroddiad Monitro'r Gyllideb 

Refeniw a'r Gyllideb Gyfalaf 

2021/22. 

Ei ferch yn gweithio 

i'r Gwasanaethau 

Cymdeithasol. 

 
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip waharddedig.  
 

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW) 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
 

4. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 2021/22. 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb 
Gorfforaethol yr Awdurdod ac adroddiadau adrannol y Prif Weithredwr a'r 
Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol fel yr oeddent ar 30 Mehefin 2021 mewn perthynas â 
blwyddyn ariannol 2021/22. Roedd yr adroddiad hefyd yn cynnwys atodiad a oedd 
yn rhoi manylion Monitro Arbedion 2021/22.  
 
Roedd yr adroddiad yn rhagweld y byddai tanwariant diwedd blwyddyn o £508k ar 
gyllideb refeniw net yr  
Awdurdod ac y byddai tanwariant o £285k ar lefel adrannol. Roedd hyn yn bennaf 
oherwydd costau ychwanegol sy'n gysylltiedig â COVID-19 ac incwm a gollwyd yn 
cael ei ad-dalu o dan gynllun caledi Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Roedd y canlynol ymhlith y materion a'r ymholiadau a godwyd ynghylch yr 
adroddiad: 
 

 Gofynnwyd ai'r bwriad oedd llenwi'r swyddi gwag a oedd wedi cyfrannu at 
yr arbedion a wnaed gan yr Awdurdod. Cadarnhawyd bod yr Awdurdod yn 
ceisio recriwtio o dan brosesau arferol yn amodol ar yr amgylchedd 
recriwtio heriol presennol. Dywedwyd bod gan yr Awdurdod tua 100 o 
swyddi gwag a bod ymgyrchoedd yn cael eu cynnal i hybu ceisiadau i 
swyddi sy'n anoddach i'w llenwi megis gofalwyr cartref.  

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch Marchnad Caerfyrddin, rhoddwyd 
gwybod i'r Pwyllgor fod materion wedi'u hetifeddu yr oedd angen eu datrys 
ac y byddai'r farchnad yn agor cyn gynted ag y byddai popeth ar waith.  

 Cyfeiriwyd at y diffyg gofal plant. Gofynnwyd a fyddai swyddogion yn 
ystyried cyllid gofal plant posibl i ganiatáu i famau sengl wneud cais am y 
swyddi sy'n anoddach i'w llenwi. Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i swyddogion 
ystyried y cyllid hwn yn ystod y cylch nesaf o bennu cyllideb.  
 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 
 

5. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL YNGYLCH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS A'R 
DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH 2020-2021. 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried yr Adroddiad Blynyddol a restrai weithgareddau rheoli'r 
trysorlys a ddigwyddodd yn ystod 2020-2021 yn unol â Pholisi a Strategaeth 
Rheoli'r Trysorlys 2020-2021 a fabwysiadwyd gan y Cyngor ar 3 Mawrth 2020. 
 

Tudalen 184



 

   
 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r adroddiad. 
 

6. ADRODDIAD CHWARTEROL YNGYLCH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS A 
DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH EBRILL 1AF 2021 I MEHEFIN 30AIN 2021. 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried yr Adroddiad Chwarterol ynghylch y Dangosyddion 
Darbodaeth a Rheoli'r Trysorlys am y cyfnod 1 Ebrill 2021 - 30 Mehefin 2021 a 
oedd yn nodi gweithgareddau rheoli'r trysorlys a ddigwyddodd yn ystod chwarter 
cyntaf y flwyddyn yn unol â Pholisi a Strategaeth Rheoli'r Trysorlys 2020-2021 a 
fabwysiadwyd gan y Cyngor ar 3 Mawrth 2021.  
 
Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau fod buddsoddiadau'r awdurdod yn 
ystod y cyfnod yn dychwelyd enillion o 0.05% ar gyfartaledd, sy'n uwch na'r 
gyfradd LIBID 7 diwrnod. Cyfanswm y llog gros a gafwyd ar fuddsoddiadau am y 
cyfnod oedd £19k a'r llog a dalwyd ar fenthyciadau oedd £0.92m.  
 
Nid oedd yr Awdurdod wedi torri unrhyw un o'i Ddangosyddion Darbodus yn ystod 
y cyfnod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo'r adroddiad. 
 

7. ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD CORFFORAETHOL  CWARTER 1 2021/22 (1 
EBRILL I 30 MEHEFIN 2021) SY'N RHYCHWANTU'R HOLL ADRANNAU. 
 
Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i Adroddiad Perfformiad Corfforaethol Chwarter 1 
2021/22 (1 Ebrill hyd at 30 Medi 2021) sy'n rhychwantu pob adran.  
 
Dangosodd yr adroddiad hwn gynnydd ar ddiwedd Chwarter 1 - 2021/22 ar 
ganlyniadau (Camau Gweithredu a Mesurau) sy'n gysylltiedig â'r Strategaeth 
Gorfforaethol a'r 13 Amcan Llesiant.  
 
Nodwyd bod dyletswydd gyffredinol ar yr Awdurdod i wneud trefniadau i fonitro 
perfformiad ac i ddangos i ddinasyddion, aelodau a rheoleiddwyr sut y rheolwyd 
perfformiad, a bod ymyriadau priodol yn cael eu gweithredu.  
 
Roedd y canlynol ymhlith yr ymholiadau a godwyd ynghylch yr adroddiad: 
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at effaith Covid ar staff a'r problemau recriwtio ar gyfer yr 
Awdurdod. Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod blaenoriaeth yn cael ei rhoi i 
recriwtio rolau o fewn yr Adran Gofal Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd.  Cynhaliwyd 
ymgyrchoedd ac roedd tîm Rheoli Aur wedi'i sefydlu i fynd i'r afael â'r 
materion recriwtio.  

 Mewn ymateb i bryderon a godwyd ynghylch lefelau salwch staff eglurwyd 
bod yr Awdurdod wedi gweld cynnydd mewn absenoldebau ers i ysgolion 
ailagor.  Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod yr Awdurdod yn gwneud popeth yn 
ei allu i gefnogi staff i gadw'n iach.  Nodwyd bod absenoldebau salwch 
cyffredinol wedi gostwng ond bod atgyfeiriadau i'r gwasanaeth llesiant wedi 
cynyddu.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 
 

Tudalen 185



 

   
 

8. ADRODDIAD ADRANNOL PERFFORMIAD CWARTER 1 BLWYDDYN  2020/21 
(1 EBRILL I 30 MEHEFIN 2021) YN ARBENNIG I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU HWN. 
 
Rhoddodd y Pwyllgor ystyriaeth i Adroddiad Perfformiad Chwarter 1 2021/22 (1 
Ebrill hyd at 30 Mehefin 2021) sy'n berthnasol i'r maes craffu hwn.  
 
Dangosodd yr adroddiad hwn gynnydd ar ddiwedd Chwarter 1 - 2021/22 ar 
ganlyniadau (Camau Gweithredu a Mesurau) sy'n gysylltiedig â'r Strategaeth 
Gorfforaethol a'r 13 Amcan Llesiant. 
 
Nodwyd bod dyletswydd gyffredinol ar yr Awdurdod i wneud trefniadau i fonitro 
perfformiad ac i ddangos i ddinasyddion, aelodau a rheoleiddwyr sut y rheolwyd 
perfformiad, a bod ymyriadau priodol yn cael eu gweithredu 
 
Roedd y canlynol ymhlith y materion a godwyd ynghylch yr adroddiad: 
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at y ffaith bod lefelau salwch mewn rhai ardaloedd mor uchel â 
15% ac nad oedd gofalwyr wedi ymddangos am 2 ddiwrnod mewn rhai 
achosion. Gofynnwyd sut yr oedd hyn yn cael ei reoli fel bod pobl yn cael 
parhad yn y gofal. Dywedodd swyddogion nad oeddent yn ymwybodol o'r 
manylion gan y byddai'n dod o dan gylch gwaith y Pwyllgor Craffu - Gofal 
Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd, ond cadarnhawyd bod 66 o absenoldebau salwch 
yn gysylltiedig â Covid ar hyn o bryd a 240 o absenoldebau eraill a oedd yn 
cynnwys straen. Rhoddwyd sicrwydd bod mecanwaith boddhaol ar waith i 
reoli absenoldebau staff.  

 Gofynnwyd a oedd yr Awdurdod yn gallu gweithio gyda'r Bwrdd Iechyd ar 
recriwtio.  Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod yr Awdurdod yn gweithio gyda'r 
Bwrdd Iechyd, ond bod argyfwng recriwtio cenedlaethol.  Dywedwyd bod 
angen ateb mwy hirdymor a bod llythyr wedi'i anfon at Lywodraeth Cymru 
yn amlinellu pryder yr Awdurdod. 

 Eglurwyd bod y tîm Trawsnewid i Wneud Cynnydd (TIC) cyfan wedi'i adleoli 
yn ystod Covid, ond bod y tîm bellach yn ôl ar waith.  Awgrymwyd, gan nad 
oedd Adroddiad Blynyddol TIC wedi'i lunio, y dylid darparu adroddiad 
diweddaru i'r Pwyllgor Polisi ac Adnoddau fis nesaf.  

 Mynegwyd pryder ynghylch y system archebu ar-lein ar gyfer canolfannau 
ailgylchu ac nad oedd gan rai trigolion y gallu i ddefnyddio system ar-lein.  
Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod y gwasanaeth yn gwbl hygyrch gan fod 
preswylwyr hefyd yn gallu archebu slotiau ar y ffôn drwy'r ganolfan gyswllt.  

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â chyfarfodydd hybrid, dywedodd 
swyddogion fod offer newydd wedi'i osod yn y Siambr yn Neuadd y Sir a 
bod y system yn cael ei threialu ar hyn o bryd. Cadarnhawyd mai'r bwriad 
oedd cyflwyno'r defnydd o gyfleusterau hybrid, ond roedd y cynnydd yn 
nifer yr achosion Covid wedi arwain at arafu'r gwaith o gyflwyno'r cynllun 
gan fod diogelwch personol yn flaenoriaeth allweddol.  

 Gofynnwyd felly am y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddatblygu Gweithdai 
Glanaman. Cadarnhaodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau fod problemau 
gydag asbestos wedi dod i'r amlwg a oedd yn oedi gwaith, ond y gobaith 
oedd y gallai'r broses osod ddechrau yn gynnar y flwyddyn nesaf.  

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â'r cynnydd ynghylch Cynllun Twf y 10 
Tref, cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd nad oedd uchelgais yr Awdurdod wedi pylu 
a bod y tîm adfywio wedi penodi tri pherson ychwanegol i'r tîm. 
 

Tudalen 186



 

   
 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad. 
 

9. STRATEGAETH DDIGIDOL AR GYFER YSGOLION - ADRODDIAD 
BLYNYDDOL 2021. 
 
Bu'r Pwyllgor yn ystyried Adroddiad Blynyddol y Strategaeth Ddigidol ar gyfer 
Ysgolion 2021, a gyflwynwyd gan y Dirprwy Arweinydd. Darparodd yr adroddiad 
cynnydd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am Strategaeth Ddigidol ar gyfer Ysgolion 
Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 2018-2021.    Ym mis Mai 2018, lluniodd Cyngor Sir 
Caerfyrddin ei Strategaeth Ddigidol ar gyfer Ysgolion gyntaf erioed a hynny ar 
gyfer y cyfnod 2018 - 2021. Roedd y strategaeth honno yn nodi'r weledigaeth, yn 
seiliedig ar yr egwyddorion cyffredinol a'r meysydd blaenoriaeth allweddol ar gyfer 
darparu Gwasanaethau TGCh i ysgolion ledled Sir Gaerfyrddin.  Ym mhob un o'r 
meysydd blaenoriaeth allweddol, cymeradwywyd nifer o brosiectau a chanlyniadau 
allweddol, ac mae'r Adroddiad Blynyddol yn nodi'r cynnydd a wnaed dros y 12 mis 
diwethaf. 
 
Roedd y canlynol ymhlith y materion a godwyd ynghylch yr adroddiad: 
 

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â'r heriau a wynebir gan Lywodraethwyr 
sy'n defnyddio'r ganolfan a diffyg hysbysiadau system, rhoddwyd gwybod i'r 
Pwyllgor fod hwn yn fater yr oedd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymwybodol ohono 
ac y byddai'n mynd i'r afael ag ef.  

 Gofynnwyd a oedd gan yr Awdurdod restr o bob plentyn nad oedd ganddo 
fynediad i'r rhyngrwyd. Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod ysgolion yn 
gweithio'n agos gyda'r Adran Addysg i nodi'r disgyblion hyn er mwyn 
sicrhau nad oedd unrhyw ddisgyblion dan anfantais oherwydd materion fel 
cysylltedd.   

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â chynlluniau'r dyfodol, rhoddwyd gwybod 
i'r pwyllgor fod strategaeth newydd yn cael ei datblygu ac y byddid yn 
ymgynghori â Phenaethiaid ac Aelodau.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo cynnwys Strategaeth 
Ddigidol ar gyfer Ysgolion - Adroddiad Blynyddol 2021. 
 

10. POLISI BRECHU. 
 
Cyflwynodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd bolisi brechu newydd yr Awdurdod ar gyfer ei 
staff i'r Pwyllgor.  
 
Roedd rôl Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin o ran helpu i gyflwyno'r rhaglen frechu wedi'i 
goruchwylio gan Grŵp Tactegol Brechu, a chafodd y Grŵp hwn y dasg o 
ddatblygu Polisi brechu ar gyfer yr Awdurdod a oedd yn nodi'n glir ymagwedd yr 
Awdurdod at frechu a'r materion ategol o ran y gweithlu a oedd yn gysylltiedig.  
 
Datblygwyd y polisi i adlewyrchu'r newidiadau yn y canllawiau a'r rheoliadau a 
ddaeth gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  Trefnwyd y Polisi yn wreiddiol i'w drafod yn 
gynharach yn y flwyddyn ond cafodd ei ddal yn ôl wrth aros am gyngor / 
canllawiau cenedlaethol yn ymwneud â brechu gorfodol. Hyd yma ni wnaed 
penderfyniad ar y mater hwn, ac felly roedd y polisi'n annog yr holl staff yn gryf i 
fanteisio ar y cynnig.  Byddai'r polisi'n cael ei adolygu pan fyddai canllawiau 
newydd yn dod i law. 

Tudalen 187



 

   
 

 
Roedd y canlynol ymhlith yr ymholiadau a godwyd ynghylch yr adroddiad: 
 

 Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â'r posibilrwydd o ymgyrch ar y cyd â'r 
Bwrdd Iechyd ynghylch y brechiad rhag y ffliw, rhoddwyd gwybod i'r 
Pwyllgor fod gwaith ar y cyd yn cael ei wneud â'r Bwrdd Iechyd drwy grŵp 
tactegol brechu a oedd yn cynnwys Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Integredig yr 
Awdurdod. 

 Awgrymwyd y dylid newid y geiriad 'Staff sydd wedi gwrthod cael brechiad 
Covid 19' i 'Staff nad ydynt yn dymuno cael brechiad Covid-19'. Dywedodd 
swyddogion y byddent yn ystyried geiriad y frawddeg.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod yr adroddiad yn cael ei dderbyn a'i 
gyfeirio at y Cyngor i gael ei gymeradwyo.  
 

11. POLISI CYFLOGAETH FOESEGOL MEWN CADWYNI CYFLENWI A 
CHAETHWASIAETH FODERN, DATGANIAD CYFLOGAETH FOESEGOL 
MEWN CADWYNI CYFLENWI. 
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Adnoddau y Polisi Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn 
Cadwyni Cyflenwi a Datganiad Caethwasiaeth Fodern, Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn 
Cadwyni Cyflenwi.  
 
Cysylltodd Llywodraeth Cymru â phob Awdurdod Lleol ledled Cymru ar 9 Chwefror 
2018, yn gofyn i'r Cyngor fabwysiadu'r Côd Ymarfer – Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn 
Cadwyni Cyflenwi. Ym mis Mehefin 2018 ymrwymodd Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn 
ffurfiol i ymuno â'r Côd a lluniwyd cynllun gweithredu gan yr Uned Caffael 
Corfforaethol a chydweithwyr ym maes Polisi ac Adnoddau Dynol i fwrw ymlaen â 
hyn. Fel rhan o'r ymrwymiad, roedd yn ofynnol i'r Awdurdod lunio polisi 
ysgrifenedig ar gyflogaeth foesegol o fewn yr Awdurdod a'i gadwyni cyflenwi.  
 
Nodwyd bod Bil Partneriaeth Gymdeithasol a Chaffael Cyhoeddus (Cymru) yn 
destun ymgynghoriad a ddaeth i ben ar 23 Ebrill 2021. Roedd y Bil arfaethedig 
hwn yn ceisio sicrhau bod Gwaith Teg yn cael ei gyflawni drwy Gaffael a gosod 
dyletswyddau ar awdurdodau contractio i archwilio opsiynau ar gyfer cyflawni 
gwaith teg. Y cynnig oedd edrych ar gynnwys cwestiynau ynghylch arferion gwaith 
teg a chyflog byw, gan gynnwys diwydrwydd dyladwy o ran cadwyni cyflenwi 
tramor, llais y gweithwyr a chynrychiolaeth – cydnabyddiaeth undeb, mynediad i 
weithwyr, cyd-fargeinio; sicrwydd a hyblygrwydd; cyfleoedd i gael mynediad at 
waith, i dyfu ac i gamu ymlaen; amgylchedd gwaith diogel, iach a chynhwysol; 
hawliau cyfreithiol yn cael eu cefnogi a'u gwireddu a chydraddoldeb ac 
amrywiaeth. Roedd y Bil hwn yn rhoi dyletswyddau ar awdurdodau contractio ar y 
cylch caffael yn ei gyfanrwydd, nid dim ond y camau "hysbyseb i ddyfarnu".  
 
Rhoddwyd sylw i'r canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad: 
 

 Cyfeiriwyd at eiriad Arferion Cyflogaeth ar dudalen 135 o'r pecyn agenda.  
Awgrymwyd y dylid newid y geiriad "ni ddefnyddir contractau dim oriau yn 
annheg'' i ''ni ddefnyddir contractau dim oriau oni bai bod y gweithiwr yn 
gofyn yn benodol amdanynt’’  

 
 

Tudalen 188



 

   
 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL:  
11.1 derbyn y Polisi Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn Cadwyni Cyflenwi yn amodol 

ar newid y geiriad; 
11.2 derbyn Datganiad Caethwasiaeth Fodern, Cyflogaeth Foesegol mewn 

Cadwyni Cyflenwi blynyddol y Cyngor. 
 

12. COFNODION BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR - MAI 
& GORFFENNAF 2021. 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Phartneriaeth gofnodion cyfarfod 
Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Sir Gaerfyrddin a gynhaliwyd ar 4 Mai 2021 a 
15 Gorffennaf, 2021.  
 
Roedd Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 yn ei gwneud yn 
ofynnol bod pwyllgor craffu llywodraeth leol dynodedig yn cael ei benodi i graffu ar 
waith y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus. Yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, penodwyd Pwyllgor 
Craffu – Polisi ac Adnoddau y Cyngor fel y Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol. 

 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â'r mater gyda recriwtio, dywedwyd wrth y 
pwyllgor fod y mater yn cael ei ystyried ar y cyd â'r Bartneriaeth Sgiliau 
Ranbarthol.  

 
Dywedwyd wrth y Pwyllgor fod y BGC yn ystyried cyd-leoli gwasanaethau ar 
draws Sir Gaerfyrddin a bod adeilad y cyngor yn Llandeilo wedi'i nodi fel lleoliad 
peilot posibl.  

 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn cofnodion cyfarfodydd y Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus a gynhaliwyd ar 4 Mai 2021 a 15 Gorffennaf 2021. 
 

13. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 
 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor y byddai Adroddiad Blynyddol TIC 2021 yn cael ei 
newid am Adroddiad Diweddaru TIC.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r rhestr o eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i'w 
hystyried yn y cyfarfod nesaf ar 10 Rhagfyr 2021. 
 

14. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD 
AR Y 21AIN GORFFENNAF 2021. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a 
gynhaliwyd ar 21 Gorffennaf 2021 gan eu bod yn gywir.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CADEIRYDD       DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 189



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	4 ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB CYFALAF A REFENIW 2021/22.
	Atodiad A
	Atodiad B
	Atodiad C
	Atodiad D
	Atodiad E
	Appendix F

	5 ADRODDIAD CHWARTEROL YNGYLCH RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS A DANGOSYDD DARBODAETH EBRILL 1AF 2021 I MEDI 30AIN 2021.
	Adroddiad
	Appendix1 Mid Yr 2021 Summary
	Appendix1 Mid Yr 2021 Top 10

	6 BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR - ASESIAD DRAFFT O LESIANT LLEOL SIR GÂR.
	Draft Assessment of Local Well-being 2021

	7 COFNODION BWRDD GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS (PSB) SIR GÂR - MEDI 2021.
	Cofnodion 29.09.2021

	8 DIWEDDARAF AM WEITHREDIADAU AC ATGYFEIRIADAU'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLISI AC ADNODDAU.
	P&R Actions  2021-22

	9 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL.
	P and R FWP as at 211101
	EXECUTIVE BOARD  FWP - March 2021 for publication

	10 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 20FED HYDREF, 2021.

